

Junicode

the font for medievalists



specimens and user manual

for version 2.209

Contents

| 1 | About Junicode | | | | | | | | |
|---|---|-------------------------------|---------------------------------------|----|--|--|--|--|--|
| 2 | Specimens | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | Gett | Getting Started with Junicode | | | | | | | |
| 4 | Feature Reference | | | | | | | | |
| | 4.1 | Introd | uction | 14 | | | | | |
| | 4.2 | Case-F | Related Features | 17 | | | | | |
| | | 4.2.1 | smcp – Small Capitals | 17 | | | | | |
| | | 4.2.2 | c2sc – Small Capitals from Capitals | 17 | | | | | |
| | | 4.2.3 | pcap – Petite Capitals | 18 | | | | | |
| | 4.2.4 c2pc – Petite Capitals from Capitals | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | 4.3.1 | cv01-cv52 – Basic Latin Variants | 18 | | | | | |
| | | 4.3.2 | cv53-cv66, cv91 – Other Latin Letters | 21 | | | | | |
| | | 4.3.3 | sso1 – Alternate thorn and eth | 22 | | | | | |
| | | 4.3.4 | sso2 – Insular Letter-Forms | 22 | | | | | |
| | | 4.3.5 | ss04 – High Overline | 23 | | | | | |
| | | 4.3.6 | sso5 – Medium-High Overline | 23 | | | | | |
| | | 4.3.7 | sso6 – Enlarged Minuscules | 23 | | | | | |
| | | 4.3.8 | sso7 – Underdotted Text | 24 | | | | | |
| | | 4.3.9 | sso8 – Contextual Long s | 24 | | | | | |
| | | 4.3.10 | ss16 – Contextual r Rotunda | 24 | | | | | |
| | | T.J.20 | | -7 | | | | | |

| | 4.3.11 | <pre>salt - Stylistic Alternates (medieval capitals, etc.)</pre> | 24 |
|------|--------|--|----|
| | 4.3.12 | cv68 – Variant of ? (U+0294, glottal stop) | 25 |
| 4.4 | Greek | | 25 |
| | 4.4.1 | sso3 – Alternate Greek | 26 |
| 4.5 | Gothic | | 26 |
| | 4.5.1 | ss19 – Latin to Gothic Transliteration | 26 |
| 4.6 | Runic | | 26 |
| | 4.6.1 | ss12 – Early English Futhorc | 27 |
| | 4.6.2 | ss13 – Elder Futhark | 27 |
| | 4.6.3 | ss14 – Younger Futhark | 27 |
| | 4.6.4 | ss15 – Long Branch to Short Twig | 27 |
| | 4.6.5 | rtlm – Right to Left Mirrored Forms | 27 |
| 4.7 | Ligatu | res and Digraphs | 27 |
| | 4.7.1 | hlig – Historic Ligatures | 28 |
| | 4.7.2 | dlig – Discretionary Ligatures | 29 |
| | 4.7.3 | ss17 – Rare Digraphs | 29 |
| 4.8 | Numb | ers and Sequencing | 30 |
| | 4.8.1 | frac – Fractions | 30 |
| | 4.8.2 | numr – Numerators | 30 |
| | 4.8.3 | dnom – Denominators | 30 |
| | 4.8.4 | nalt – Alternate Annotation Forms | 30 |
| | 4.8.5 | tnum – Tabular Figures | 30 |
| | 4.8.6 | onum – Oldstyle Figures | 31 |
| | 4.8.7 | pnum – Proportional Figures | 31 |
| | 4.8.8 | lnum – Lining Figures | 31 |
| | 4.8.9 | zero – Slashed Zero | 31 |
| | 4.8.10 | sso9 – Alternate Figures | 31 |
| 4.9 | Supers | cripts and Subscripts | 31 |
| | 4.9.1 | sups – Superscripts | 31 |
| | 4.9.2 | subs – Subscripts | 32 |
| 4.10 | Punctu | nation and Symbols | 32 |
| | 4.10.1 | ss18 – Old-Style Punctuation Spacing | 32 |
| | 4.10.2 | cv69 – Variants of J] (U+204A / U+2E52, Tironian nota) . | 32 |
| | 4.10.3 | cv70 – Variants of . (period) | 33 |

| | 4.10.4 | cv_{71} – Variant of \cdot (U+00B7, middle dot) | 33 |
|------|---------|---|----|
| | 4.10.5 | cv72 – Variants of , (comma) | 33 |
| | 4.10.6 | cv73 – Variants of ; (semicolon) | 33 |
| | 4.10.7 | cv74 – Variants of : (U+2E4E, <i>punctus elevatus</i>) | 33 |
| | 4.10.8 | cv75 – Variant of ! (exclamation mark) | 33 |
| | 4.10.9 | cv76 – Variants of ? (question mark) | 33 |
| | 4.10.10 | cv77 – Variant of ~ (ASCII tilde) | 33 |
| | 4.10.11 | cv78 – Variant of * (asterisk) | 34 |
| | 4.10.12 | cv79 – Variants of / (slash) | 34 |
| 4.11 | Spacing | g Abbreviations | 34 |
| | 4.11.1 | cv80 – Variant of 2 (U+A75D, rum abbreviation) | 34 |
| | 4.11.2 | cv82 – Variants of spacing ⁹ (U+A770) | 34 |
| | 4.11.3 | cv83 – Variants of 3 (U+A76B, "et" abbreviation) | 34 |
| | 4.11.4 | cv67 – Spacing zigzag (variant of U+00AF, spacing macron) | 34 |
| | 4.11.5 | cv99 – Word omitted symbol (variant of U+00B0, degree) | 35 |
| 4.12 | Combi | ning Marks | 35 |
| | 4.12.1 | cv84 – MUFI combining marks (variants of U+0304) | 35 |
| | 4.12.2 | cv81 – Variants of č (U+035B, combining zigzag above) . | 36 |
| | 4.12.3 | ss10 – Character Entities for Combining Marks | 36 |
| | 4.12.4 | ss20 – Low Diacritics | 37 |
| | 4.12.5 | cv85 – Variant of 🖱 (U+1DD3, combining open a) | 38 |
| | 4.12.6 | cv86 – Variant of ိ (U+1DD8, combining insular d) | 38 |
| | 4.12.7 | cv87 – Variant of े (U+1DE3, combining r rotunda) | 38 |
| | 4.12.8 | cv88 – Variant of combining dieresis (U+0308) | 38 |
| | 4.12.9 | cv89 – Variant of $\overline{\circ}$ (U+0305, combining overline) | 38 |
| | 4.12.10 | cv90 – Variants of $\overline{\odot}$ (U+035E, combining double macron) | 38 |
| | 4.12.11 | cv92 – Variant of combining breve below (U+032E) | 38 |
| 4.13 | Curren | cy and Weights | 39 |
| | 4.13.1 | cv_{93} – Variants of \square (U+0044, generic currency sign) | 39 |
| | 4.13.2 | cv94 – Variant of tb (U+2114) | 39 |
| | 4.13.3 | cv_{95} – Variants of £ (U+00A3, British pound sign) | 39 |
| | 4.13.4 | cv_{96} – Variant of \Re (U+20B0, German penny sign) | 39 |
| | 4.13.5 | cv_{97} – Variant of f (U+0192, florin) | 39 |
| | 4.13.6 | cv_{98} – Variant of \mathcal{Z} (U+2125, Ounce sign) | 39 |

| | 4.14 Ornaments | |
|---|---|------------|
| | 4.14.1 ornm – Ornaments | ••• |
| | 4.14.2 Lady Junicode | |
| | 4.15 Required Features | ••• |
| 5 | Entering characters with tags | |
| 6 | Transcribing records | |
| | 6.1 A preliminary note on transcription | |
| | 6.2 Common combining marks | |
| | 6.3 Spacing characters | |
| | 6.4 Other formatting | |
| | 6.5 On the web | |
| 7 | The Enlarge Axis | |
| | 5 | |
| 8 | Junicode on the Web | |
| 8 | Junicode on the Web | |
| 8 | Junicode on the Web | |
| 8 | Junicode on the Web 8.1 Subsetting Junicode | |
| | Junicode on the Web 8.1 Subsetting Junicode | ••• |
| | Junicode on the Web 8.1 Subsetting Junicode | |
| | Junicode on the Web 8.1 Subsetting Junicode | · · |
| | Junicode on the Web 8.1 Subsetting Junicode | · · · · |

1. About Junicode

Junicode is modeled on the Pica Roman type purchased by Oxford University in 1692 and used to set the bulk of the Latin text of George Hickes, *Linguarum vett. septentrionalium thesaurus grammatico-criticus et archaeologicus* (Oxford, 1703–5). This massive two-volume folio is not only a major work of scholarship on the languages and literatures of northern Europe in the Middle Ages, but also a fine example of the work of the Oxford Press at this period: printed in multiple types (for every language had to have its proper type) and lavishly illustrated with engravings of manuscript pages, coins and artifacts.

Junicode also includes two other typefaces from the *Thesaurus*: Pica Saxon, used to set passages in the Old English language, and a typeface reproducing the Gothic alphabet ("Gothic" here being not the late medieval style, but rather the earliest extensively attested Germanic language). These were commissioned by the literary scholar Franciscus Junius (1591–1677) and bequeathed by him to the University. Examples of all these typefaces can be found in *A Specimen of the Several Sorts of Letter Given to the University by Dr. John Fell, Sometime Lord Bishop of Oxford. To Which Is Added the*

2. ABOUT JUNICODE

Letter Given by Mr. F. Junius (Oxford, 1693).¹

Junicode has two distinct Greek faces. The first, newly designed to harmonize with the roman face, is upright and modern. The other, accompanying the italic face, is based on type designed by Alexander Wilson (1714–86) of Glasgow and used in numerous books published by the Foulis Press, most notably the great Glasgow Homer of 1756–58.

The Junicode project began around 1998, when the developer began to revise his older (early 1990s) "Junius" fonts for medievalists to take account of the Unicode standard, then relatively new. The font's name, a contraction of "Junius Unicode," was supposed to be a stopgap, serving until a more suitable name could be found, but "Junicode" quickly stuck, and it is now so well known that it can't be changed.² The project has been active for its entire history, responding to frequent requests from users and changes in font technology; a particular focus of recent versions of Junicode (numbered 2.000 and higher) is the promotion of best practices in the presentation of medieval texts, especially in the area of accessibility. This aspect of the font is explored in the Introduction to the Feature Reference.

¹ There is a facsimile of this work at the Digital Bodleian.

² An effort to change the name to "JuniusX" produced only confusion. If you find a font by the name JuniusX on a free font site, that is nothing more than an early version of Junicode 2.

2. Specimens

Old and Middle English

Wē æthrynon mid ūrum ārum þā ÿðan þæs dēopan wæles; wē ģesāwon ēac þā muntas ymbe þære sealtan sæ strande, and wē mid āðēnedum hræģle and ģesundfullum windum þær ģewīcodon on þām ģemærum þære fæģerestan þēode. Þā ÿðan ģetācniað þisne dēopan cræft, and þā muntas ģetācniað ēac þā micelnyssa þisses cræftes. (Regular)

SIPEN be sege and be assaut watz sesed at Troye, De bor3 brittened and brent to brondez and askez, De tulk bat be trammes of tresoun ber wro3t Watz tried for his tricherie, be trewest on erthe: Hit watz Ennias be athel, and his highe kynde, Dat siben depreced prouinces, and patrounes bicome Welne3e of al be wele in be west iles. (SemiExpanded)

Apply the OpenType feature sso2 (Stylistic Set 2) for insular letter-forms.

Hen cýnepulr benam rizebnýht hir picer j peftreaxna piotan rop unpýhtum dędū buton hamtúnrcipe j he hærde þa oþ he orrloz þone aldopmon þe hi lenzeft punode j hiene þa cýnepulr on andped adpærde j h þæp punade oþ þæt hine án rpán orftanz æt ppýreterrlodan j he ppęc þone aldopmon cumbpan j re cýnepulr ort miclum zereohtum reaht uuiþ bpetpalū. (SemiCondensed)

Old Irish

Fect n-oen do Ailill 7 do Meidb íar n-dergud a rígleptha dóib i Cruachanráith Chonnacht, arrecaim

4 SPECIMENS

comrad chind-cherchailli eturru. Fírbriathar, a ingen, bar Ailill, is maith ben ben dagfir. Maith omm, bar ind ingen. Cid diatá latsu ón. Is de atá lim, bar Ailill, ar it ferr-su indiu indá in lá thucus-sa thu. (Condensed Medium)

For insular letter-forms, apply the OpenType feature sso2 (Stylistic Set 2), making sure the language is set to Irish.

bamaith-re pemut, ap Meob. Ir maith nach cualammap 7 nach retammap, ap Ailill, acht oo bithriu ap bantincup mnaa 7 bioba na cpich ba nerrom ouit oc bpeith oo rlait 7 oo chpech 1 rúatach úait. Ni ramlaio bára, ap Meob, acht m'athaip 1 n-apopizi hEpenn .i. Eocho Feiolech mac Fino meic Finoomain meic Finoeoin meic Finozuni meic Rozein Rúaio meic Rizéoin meic blathachta meic beothechta meic Enna Azniz meic Oenzura Cupbiz. bátap aice re inzena o'inzenaib: Oepbpiu, Ethi 7 Éle, Clothpu, Muzain, Meob, merri ba uarliu 7 ba uppaitiu oíb. (Regular)

For a (somewhat) uncial look, try combining sso2 with smcp (Small Caps), adding other variants as you see fit.

bamaich-re pemuc, ap Meob. Ir maich nach cualammap j nach recammap, ap Ailill, acht oo bichriu ap bantincup mnaa j bioba na chich ba nerrom duit oc bheich oo rlait j do chpech i fúatach úait. Ni ramlaid bára, ap Meob, acht m'athaip i n-apopisi hépenn I. Eocho feidlech mac find meic findomain meic findeoin meic findsuni meic Rosein Rúaid meic Risédin meic blachachta meic beochechta meic Enna Asnis meic Oensura Cupbis. bátap aice re insena d'insenaib: Depbpiu, echi j Éle, Clothpu, Musain, Meob, merri ba uarliu j ba uppaiciu díb. (Regular)

Old Icelandic

For Nordic shapes of b and δ in an English context, specify the appropriate language (e.g. Icelandic or Norwegian); or apply the OpenType sso1 (Stylistic Set 1) feature.

Um haustit sendi Mǫrðr Valgarðsson orð at Gunnarr myndi vera einn heimi, en lið alt myndi vera niðri í eyjum at lúka heyverkum. Riðu þeir Gizurr Hvíti ok Geirr Goði austr yfir ár, þegar þeir spurðu þat, ok austr yfir sanda til Hofs. Þá sendu þeir orð Starkaði undir Þríhyrningi; ok fundusk þeir þar allir er at Gunnari skyldu fara, ok

réðu hversu at skyldi fara. (SemiExpanded Medium)

Runic

Junicode has features for automated transliteration of Latin letters into various runic systems.

FINL FLEWN FNER FT FMRXMTBMRIX PFRF XF:JRIL XRFRT FFR MM FT XRMNT XIJPFM MRFTFJ BFT RFMPFTNJ FTM RMNMPFTNJ TP&XMT XIBRFFR FF&MMF MIF PNTIF FT RFMF LFJTI: FFIF NTTMX (Expanded)

German

Ich fag üch aber / minen fründen / Fő2chtēd üch nit vo2 denen die den lyb tódend / vnd darnach nichts habennd das fy mer thúgind. Ich wil üch aber zeigē vo2 welchem ir üch fő2chten follend. Fő2chtend üch vo2 dem / der / nach dem er tódet hat / ouch macht hat zewerffen inn die hell: ja ich fag üch / vo2 dem felben fő2chtēd üch. Koufft man nit fünff Sparen vīn zween pfennig: (Condensed)

Latin

Junicode contains the most common Latin abbreviations, making it suitable for diplomatic editions of Latin texts.

Adiuuanos dī falutarif nofter & ppī głam nominif tui dnē libanof· & ppitiuf efto peccatif noftrif ppter nomen tuum· Ne fo2te dicant ingentib: ubi eft dī eo2um & innotefcat innationib: co2ā oculif nīrif· Pofuerunt mofticina feruo2ū ruo2ū efcaf uolatilib: celi carnef fcō2 tuo2 beftiif tenice· Facti fum⁹ ob.pb2ium uicinif nīrif· (Light)

Gothic

jabai auk loas gasailoiþ þuk þana habandan kunþi in galiuge stada anakumbjandan, niu miþwissei is siukis wisandins timrjada du galiugagudam gasaliþ matjan? fraqistniþ auk sa unmahteiga ana þeinamma witubnja broþar in þize Xristus gaswalt. swaþ þan frawaurkjandans wiþra broþruns, slahandans ize gahugd siuka, du Xristau frawaurkeiþ. (SemiCondensed Light)

Use ss19 to produce Gothic letters automatically from transliterated text.

6 SPECIMENS

Gλελι ληκ ols γlsλιoιψ ψηκ ψληλ ηλεληδλη κηηψι in γλληγε stad ληλκημεgληδλη, nin miψussei is sinkis visληδιης τιμκgλδλ δη γλληγληδλη γlsλλιψ mλtgλη? Gλελι ληκ ols γlsλιoιψ ψηκ ψληλ ηλεληδλη κηηψι in γλληγε stadλ ληλκημεgληδλη, nin miψussei is sinkis visληδιης τιμκgλδλ δη γλλιηγλγηδλη γlsλλιψ mλtgλη? (SemiExpanded Bold)

Sanskrit Transliteration

mānam dvividham viṣayadvai vidyātśaktyaśaktitaḥ arthakriyāyām keśadirnārtho 'narthādhimokṣataḥ sadrśāsadrśatvācca viṣayāviṣayatvataḥ śabdasyānyanimittānām bhāve dhīsadasattvatah (SemiCondensed Medium)

International Phonetic Alphabet

hwan θ at a:pril wi θ is fu:rəs so:tə θ ə druxt əf martf ha θ pe:rsəd to: θ ə ro:te and ba:ðəd evri væin in switf liku:r əf hwitf vertiu endzendrəd is θ ə flu:r hwan zefirus e:k wi θ his swe:tə bræ: θ (Regular)

Greek

βίβλος γενέσεως ἰησοῦ χριστοῦ υἱοῦ δαυὶδ υἱοῦ ἀβραάμ. ἀβραὰμ ἐγέννησεν τὸν ἰσαάκ, ἰσαὰκ δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν ἰακώβ, ἰακὼβ δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν ἰούδαν καὶ τοὺς ἀδελφοὺς αὐτοῦ, ἰούδας δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν φάρες καὶ τὸν ζάρα ἐκ τῆς θαμάρ, φάρες δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν ἑσρώμ, ἑσρὼμ δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν ἀράμ, ἀρὰμ δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν ἀμιναδάβ, ἀμιναδὰβ δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν ναασσών, ναασσὼν δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν σαλμών, σαλμὼν δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν βόες ἐκ τῆς ῥαχά (Regular)

βίβλος γενέσεως ἰησοῦ χριστοῦ υἰοῦ δαυίδ υἰοῦ ἀβραάμ. ἀβραὰμ ἐγέννησεν τὸν ἰσαάκ, ἰσαὰκ δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν ἰακώβ, ἰακώβ δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν ἰούδαν καὶ τοὺς ἀδελφοὺς αὐτοῦ, ἰούδας δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν φάρες καὶ τὸν ζάρα ἐκ τῆς θαμάρ, φάρες δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν ἑσρώμ, ἑσρώμ δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν ἀράμ, ἀρὰμ δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν ἀμιναδάβ, ἀμιναδὰβ δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν ναασσών, ναασσών δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν σαλμών, σαλμών δὲ ἐγέννησεν τὸν βόες ἐκ τῆς ῥαχά (Italic)

Lithuanian

Lithuanian poses several typographical challenges. Make sure Contextual Alternates (calt) is turned on; for i, use i followed by combining dot accent (U+0307) and acute (U+0301).

Visa žemė turėjo vieną kalbą ir tuos pačius žodžius. Kai žmonės kėlėsi iš rytų, jie rado slėnį Šinaro krašte ir ten įsikūrė. Vieni kitiems sakė: Eime, pasidirbkime plytų ir jas išdekime. – Vietoj akmens jie naudojo plytas, o vietoj kalkių – bitumą. Eime, – jie sakė, – pasistatykime miestą ir bokštą su dangų siekiančia viršūne ir pasidarykime sau vardą, kad nebūtume išblaškyti po visą žemės veidą. (Expanded)

Polish

The default shape and position of ogonek in Junicode are suitable for modern Polish. For the medieval Latin e-caudata, consider using cv62.

Mieszkańcy całej ziemi mieli jedną mowę, czyli jednakowe słowa. A gdy wędrowali ze wschodu, napotkali równinę w kraju Szinear i tam zamieszkali. I mówili jeden do drugiego: Chodźcie, wyrabiajmy cegłę i wypalmy ją w ogniu. A gdy już mieli cegłę zamiast kamieni i smołę zamiast zaprawy murarskiej, rzekli: Chodźcie, zbudujemy sobie miasto i wieżę, której wierzchołek będzie sięgał nieba, i w ten sposób uczynimy sobie znak, abyśmy się nie rozproszyli po całej ziemi. (Condensed Medium)

8 SPECIMENS

Fleurons

Junicode contains a number of fleurons (floral ornaments) copied from a 1785 Caslon specimen book. Access these via the OpenType feature ornm. Fleurons have only one weight and width, and they are the same in roman and italic.



3. Getting Started with Junicode

Junicode comes in two flavors—static and variable. Static fonts are the ones users are most familiar with, each font file supplying a single set of outlines that do not change except in size. By contrast, a single variable font file stores a set of outlines that can morph in various ways—for example, becoming bolder or lighter, narrower or wider, and sometimes undergoing more complex transformations. The static version of Junicode consists of thirty-eight font files, each providing a distinct variation of the font's style; the variable version consists of only two (one each for roman and italic), but those two font files are capable of much more than the static version's thirty-eight.

Because the static and variable versions of Junicode are differently named ("Junicode" and "Junicode VF"), both can be installed on the same system. However, you should choose one or the other for any particular project. Choose the static version if the application you are using does not yet support variable fonts. Such applications include Microsoft Word, Apple Pages, Quark Xpress, Google Docs, Affinity Publisher, and most flavors of TEX (except for LuaTEX—see below). Another reason to choose the static version is its familiarity: if you don't need the advanced capabilities of the variable version, it is perfectly all right to stick with what you know.

All major web browsers (including browsers for mobile devices) support variable fonts, and there are good reasons to choose the variable version of Junicode for any web project. The greatest reason to go with the variable version is to speed the loading of web pages: users will never have to download more than two font files (the size of which can be radically reduced via subsetting, explained in Section 8 of this Manual). Additionally, however, variable fonts can make a page of text more dynamic and visually interesting. See Mozilla's Variable Fonts Guide for more information about using variable fonts on the web.

A growing number of desktop applications support variable fonts. Use the variable version of Junicode in Adobe InDesign (always with the World-Ready Paragraph Composer).¹ LibreOffice has supported variable fonts since version 7.5 (2023). LuaT_EX has excellent support for variable fonts: make sure your T_EX installation is up to date (since in recent years support for variable fonts has improved with every release), and always choose "harf" mode in your font-selection code. For an example of font-selection code for a variable font, see the file JunicodeManual.sty (part of the source for this manual) in the "docs" directory of the GitHub Junicode site. You are welcome to copy and modify this code. A number of graphical design apps also support variable fonts, including Adobe Illustrator, PhotoShop, Figma, Sketch, and CorelDRAW.

The static version of Junicode has five weights and five widths, which are combined in many ways for a total of nineteen styles in both roman and italic.² It is not necessary to install all of these; in fact, your life will be simplified (font menus easier to navigate) if you make a selection. You will probably want the traditional Regular, Bold, Italic, and Bold Italic fonts, but you should survey the styles displayed in the Specimen section of this booklet, choose the ones that look best to you, and install only those. A reasonable selection for many users will include the traditional four styles for main text, several SemiExpanded styles for footnotes, and SemiCondensed for titles.

Junicode's static fonts come in two types, TrueType (files with a .ttf extension) and CFF (files with an .otf extension). These are functionally identical, but they may look subtly different on your computer's screen because of the different technologies used to render glyphs. Choose the one you find most appealing.

With around 5,000 characters, Junicode is a large font. Finding the things you

¹ The choice of a Composer is well hidden in the "Justification" section of the "Paragraph Style Options" dialog. Use of the default "Adobe Paragraph Composer" with Junicode VF may cause InDesign to crash or otherwise misbehave. To prevent crashes when using the variable version of Junicode, it is also advisable to delete InDesign's preferences when launching the program after a font upgrade. To do this, press Shift-Alt-Control (on Windows) or Shift-Control-Option-Command (on the Mac) all together, *immediately* after clicking to launch InDesign.

² Several of the twenty-five possible combinations (e.g. light expanded) have been omitted as unlikely to be useful; however, these can be accessed via the variable font.

want in a collection that size can be a challenge, and then entering them in your documents is another challenge. This document will help, but it presupposes a certain amount of knowledge—for example, how to install a font in Windows, Mac OS or Linux and how to install and use different kinds of software.

Medievalists will find the *MUFI Character Recommendation*, version 4.0 (2015) an essential supplement to this document. The *Recommendation* lists thousands of characters identified by the Medieval Unicode Font Initiative as being of interest to medievalists. Junicode contains all of these characters. There are two versions of the *Recommendation*: you will probably find the "Alphabetical Order" version most helpful.

From the *MUFI Character Recommendation* and Chapter 10 ("Encoded Glyphs in Junicode") of this manual, you can find out the **code points**³ of the characters you need. These code points can be used to enter characters in your documents when they cannot be typed on the keyboard.

To enter any Unicode character in a Windows application, type its four-digit code, followed by Alt-X. To do the same in the Mac OS, first install and switch to the "Unicode Hex Input" keyboard, then type the code while holding down the Option key. In most Linux distributions you can enter a code by typing Shift-Control-U, then the code followed by Return or Enter.

Combining marks (diacritics and certain abbreviation signs) can pose special problems for medievalists. Unicode contains a great many **precomposed characters** consisting of a base letter plus one or more marks. If these are all you need you're fortunate—especially if they can be typed on an international keyboard (not all can).⁴ But medieval manuscripts frequently contain combinations of base + mark that are not used in modern written languages. For these, you'll have to enter bases and marks separately.

To position a mark correctly over a base character, first enter the base, followed by the mark or marks. The sequence $\mathbf{m} + \hat{\circ}$ (U+1DD9) will make $\hat{\mathbf{m}}$; $\mathbf{y} + \hat{\circ}$

³ A Unicode code point is a numerical identifier for a character. It is generally expressed as a four-digit hexadecimal (or base-16) number with a prefix of "U+". The letter capital "A," for example, is U+0041 (65 in decimal notation), and lowercase "3" (Middle English yogh) is U+021D.

⁴ Both Windows and the Mac OS come with international keyboards that make it easy to type special letters and diacritics. To find out how to enable these, search online for "Mac OS International Keyboard" or "Windows International Keyboard."

 $(U+0304) + \breve{o} (U+0306)$ will make $\frac{\breve{v}}{V}$; $e + \circ (U+0323) + \ddot{o} (U+1DE0)$ will make $\frac{e}{V}$.

More than sixteen hundred characters in Junicode can only be accessed via OpenType features—that is, by way of the programming built into the font—and many others *should* be accessed that way for reasons explained in the Introduction to the Feature Reference section of this document.

For example, some programs (including Microsoft Word) produce small caps by scaling capitals down to approximately the height of lowercase letters. These always look too thin and light. But Junicode contains hundreds of TRUE SMALL CAPS designed to harmonize with the surrounding text. These can only be accessed via the OpenType smcp feature, which you can apply to a run of text much as you apply italic or bold styles: select some text and then apply the feature.

Unfortunately, not every program supports OpenType features, and some that do either support only a few or make them difficult to access. Programs that support Junicode's features fully include the free word processor LibreOffice Writer, all major browsers (Firefox, Chrome, Safari and Edge), and the typesetting programs LuaLATEX and XALATEX. Adobe InDesign supports OpenType features only partially, but all features can be accessed via Roland Dreger's open-type-features script, and InDesign provides access to all of Junicode's characters via its "Glyphs" dialog.

Microsoft Word, unfortunately, provides only limited support for OpenType features. It supports the Required Features discussed below, and also variant number forms and Stylistic Sets (though only one at a time). Many characters (for example, TRUE SMALL CAPS and those accessible only via Character Variant features) cannot be accessed at all. To activate Word's OpenType support, you must open the "Font" dialog, click over to the "Advanced" tab, and check the "Kerning" box. (Oddly, the "Kerning" box enables all other OpenType features.) Then, in the same tab, select Standard Ligatures, Contextual Alternates, and any other features you want. OpenType features are best applied to character styles rather than directly to text: this will save you from having to perform this operation repeatedly.

It is also good to set the language properly for the text you're working on. Programs like Word will automatically set the language to the default for your system. If you change to a language other than your own for a passage (or even a

single word), you should set the language for that passage appropriately. This will unlock a number of capabilities. For example, in Old and Middle English, Word and other programs will use the English form of thorn and eth ($b\delta$) instead of the modern Icelandic ($b\delta$), and in ancient Greek you will be able to type accents after vowels instead of looking up the codes for hundreds of polytonic vowel + accent combinations. But these and other capabilities are only available when you set the language correctly.

In LibreOffice and InDesign you can set the language with a drop-down menu in the "Character" dialog. In Word there is a separate "Language" dialog, accessible from the "Tools" menu.

If you have questions about any aspect of Junicode, post a query in the Junicode discussion forum. If you notice a bug, or wish to request an enhancement or other change, please open an issue at the font's development site.

4. Feature Reference

4.1. Introduction

The OpenType features of Junicode version 2 and its variable counterpart (hereafter referred to together as "Junicode") have two purposes. One is to provide convenient access to the rich character set of the Medieval Unicode Font Initiative (MUFI) recommendation. The other is to enable best practices in the presentation of medieval text, promoting accessibility in electronic texts from PDFs to e-books to web pages.

Each character in the MUFI recommendation has a code point associated with it: either the one assigned by Unicode or, where the character is not recognized by Unicode, in the Private Use Area (PUA) of the Basic Multilingual Plane, a block of codes, running from U+E000 to U+F8FF, that are assigned no value by Unicode but instead are available for font designers to use in any way they please.

The problem with PUA code points is precisely their lack of any value. Consider, as a point of comparison, the letter **a** (U+0061). Your computer, your phone, and probably a good many other devices around the house store a good bit of information about this **a**: that it's a letter in the Latin script, that it's lowercase, and that the uppercase equivalent is **A** (U+0041). All this information is available to word processors, browsers, and other applications running on your computer.

Now suppose you're preparing an electronic text containing what MUFI calls LATIN SMALL LETTER NECKLESS A (a). It is assigned to code point U+F215, which belongs to the PUA. Beyond that, your computer knows nothing about it: not that it is a variant of a, or that it is lowercase, or a letter in the Latin

alphabet, or even a character in a language system. A screen reader cannot read, or even spell out, a word with U+F215 in it; a search engine will not recognize the word as containing the letter **a**.

Junicode offers the full range of MUFI characters—you can enter the PUA code points—but also a solution to the problems posed by those code points. Think of an electronic text (a web page, perhaps, or a PDF) as having two layers: an underlying text, stable and unchanging, and the displayed text, generated by software at the instant it is needed and discarded when it is no longer on the screen. For greatest accessibility the underlying text should contain the plain letter **a** (U+0061) along with markup indicating how it should be displayed. To generate the displayed text, a program called a "layout engine" will (simplifying a bit here) read the markup and apply the OpenType feature cvo2[5]¹ to the underlying **a**, bypassing the PUA code point, with the result that readers see **a**—the "neckless a." And yet the letter will still register as **a** with search engines, screen readers, and so on.

This is the Junicode model for text display, but it is not peculiar to Junicode: it is widely considered to be the best practice for displaying text using current font technology.

The full range of OpenType features listed in this document is supported by all major web browsers, LibreOffice, X_HT_EX, LuaT_EX, and (presumably) other document processing applications. All characters listed here are available in Adobe InDesign, though that program supports only a selection of OpenType features. Microsoft Word, unfortunately, supports only Stylistic Sets, ligatures (all but the standard ones in peculiar and probably useless combinations), number variants, and the Required Features. In terms of OpenType support, Word is the most primitive of the major text processing applications.

Many MUFI characters cannot be produced by using the OpenType variants of Junicode. These characters fall into three categories:

¹ Many OpenType features produce different outcomes depending on an index passed to an application's layout engine along with the feature tag. Different applications have different ways of entering this index: consult your application's documentation. Here, the index is recorded in brackets after the feature tag. Users of fontspec (with XHATEX or LuaTEX) should also be aware that fontspec indexes start at zero while OpenType indexes start at one. Therefore all index numbers listed in this document must be reduced by one for use with fontspec.

- Those with Unicode (non-PUA) code points. MUFI has done valuable work obtaining Unicode code points for medieval characters. All such characters (those with hexadecimal codes that *do not* begin with E or F) are presumed safe to use in accessible and searchable text. However, some of these are covered by Junicode OpenType features for particular reasons.
- Precomposed characters—those consisting of base character + one or more diacritics. For greatest accessibility, these should be entered not as PUA code points, but rather as sequences consisting of base character + diacritics. For example, instead of MUFI U+E498 LATIN SMALL LETTER E WITH DOT BELOW AND ACUTE, USE **e** + U+0323 COMBINING DOT BELOW + U+0301 COMBINING ACUTE ACCENT: é (when applying combining marks, start with any marks below the character and work downwards, then continue with any marks above the character and work upwards. For example, to make $\dot{\phi}$, place characters in this order: **o**, COMBINING OGONEK U+0328, COMBINING DOT BELOW U+0323, COMBINING MACRON U+0304, COMBINING ACUTE U+0301). Some MUFI characters have marks in unconventional positions, e.g. ö LATIN SMALL LETTER O WITH DOT ABOVE AND ACUTE, where the acute appears beside the dot instead of above. This and other characters like it should still be entered as a sequence of base character + marks (here o, COMBINING DOT ABOVE U+0307, COMBINING ACUTE U+0301). Junicode will position the marks in the manner prescribed by MUFI.
- Characters for which a base character (a Unicode character to which it can be linked) cannot be identified, or for which there may be an inconsistency in the MUFI recommendation. These include:
 - **fl** U+E8AF. This is a ligature of long **s** and **l** with stroke, but there are no base characters with this style of stroke.
 - **u**́**U**́ U+EFD8 and U+EFD9. MUFI lists these as ligatures (corresponding to the historic ligatures **uU**, but they cannot be treated as ligatures in the font because a single diacritic is positioned over the glyphs as if they were digraphs like **aA**.
 - ppP U+EBE7 and U+EBE6, for the same reason.

- ⁶ U+F159 LATIN ABBREVIATION SIGN SMALL DE. Neither a variant of
 ^d nor an eth (ð), this character may be a candidate for Unicode
 encoding.
- Characters for which OpenType programming is not yet available. These will be added as they are located and studied.

These characters should be avoided, even if you are otherwise using MUFI's PUA characters:

- U+F1C5 COMBINING CURL HIGH POSITION. Use U+1DCE COMBINING OGONEK ABOVE. The positioning problem mentioned in the MUFI recommendation is solved in Junicode (and, to be fair, many other fonts with Open-Type programming).
- U+F1CA COMBINING DOT ABOVE HIGH POSITION. Use U+0307 COMBINING DOT ABOVE. It will be positioned correctly on any character.

4.2. Case-Related Features

4.2.1. smcp – Small Capitals

Converts lowercase letters to small caps; also several symbols and combining marks. All lower- and uppercase pairs (with exceptions noted below) have a small cap equivalent. Lowercase letters without matching caps may lack matching small caps. fghij \rightarrow FGHIJ.

Note: Precomposed characters defined by MUFI in the Private Use Area have no small cap equivalents. Instead, compose characters using combining diacritics, as outlined in the introduction. For example, smcp applied to the sequence t + COMBINING OGONEK (U+0328) + COMBINING ACUTE (U+0301) will change t to t.

4.2.2. c2sc – Small Capitals from Capitals

Use with smcp for all-small-cap text. ABCDE \rightarrow ABCDE.

Note: The variants of N (U+014A—see Other Latin Letters) have no lowercase equivalents. Their small capital forms can be accessed only through this feature.

4.2.3. pcap – Petite Capitals

Produces small caps in a smaller size than smcp. Use these when small caps have to be mixed with lowercase letters. The whole of the basic Latin alphabet is covered, plus a number of other letters, but fewer than half of Junicode's small caps have petite cap equivalents. klmnoþ \rightarrow KLMNOp.

4.2.4. c2pc – Petite Capitals from Capitals

Produces petite capitals from capitals. Use with pcap to convert mixed-case texts to petite capitals. PQRST \rightarrow PQRST.

Note: The variants of N (U+014A—see Other Latin Letters) have no lowercase equivalents. Their petite capital forms can be accessed only through this feature.

4.2.5. case – Case-Sensitive Forms

Produces combining marks that harmonize with capital letters: \mathring{R} , \mathring{X} , etc. Use of this feature reduces the likelihood that a combining mark will collide with a glyph in the line above. Some applications turn this feature on automatically for runs of capitals, and precomposed characters (e.g. \pounds U+00C9, \overline{U} U+016A) already use case-appropriate combining marks. This feature also changes oldstyle to lining figures, since these harmonize better with uppercase letters.

4.3. Alphabetic Variants

4.3.1. cv01-cv52 – Basic Latin Variants

These features also affect small cap (smcp) and underdotted (sso7) forms, where available. Variants in magenta are also available via sso6 "Enlarged Minuscules." Use the cvNN features instead of sso6 when you want to substitute an enlarged minuscule for a capital (or, less likely, a lowercase) letter everywhere in a text.

Variant of cvNN Variants

| Variant of | cvNN | Variants |
|------------|------|--|
| А | CVO1 | 1=a, 2=A, 3=A, 4=a |
| a | CVO2 | 1=a, 2=a, 3=a, 4=a, 5=a, 6= <mark>a</mark> , 7=a, 8=a, 9=u, 10=a, 11=a |
| В | cvo3 | 1=b, 2=b |
| b | cvo4 | 1=D |
| С | cv05 | 1=Ľ, 2=C |
| с | cv06 | 1=ct, 2=C, 3=C |
| D | cvo7 | 1=Ö, 2=d, 3=ð |
| d | cvo8 | 1=ð, 2=ð, 3=dt, 4= <mark>d</mark> , 5 = ð, 6= <mark>ð</mark> , 7=ð, 8=d (also affects d) |
| Е | cvo9 | 1=C, 2=C, 3=C, 4=C |
| e | CV1O | 1=e, 2=e, 3=e, 4=e, 5=l, 6=e, 7=e, 8=e |
| F | CV11 | 1=°F, 2=f, 3=°F |
| f | CV12 | 1=r, 2=r, 3=r, 4=r, 5=f, 6=ft, 7=f, 8=r, 9=r, 10=f |
| G | CV13 | 1=δ, 2=Ū, 3=Γ, 4= <mark>g</mark> |
| g | CV14 | 1=ξ, 2=g, 3=g, 4=g, 5=g, 6=g, 7=gt, 8=g, 9=g, 10=g, 11=ξ, 12=ξ, 13=ξ, 14=g, 15=ξ |
| Н | CV15 | 1=D, 2=h, 3=H |
| h | cv16 | 1=h, 2=h, 3=h, 4=h, 5=ħ, 6=h |
| Ι | CV17 | 1=İ, 2=I, 3=i, 4=l |
| i | cv18 | 1=1, 2=1, 3=±, 4=ij, 5=j, 6=i* |
| J | cv19 | 1=Ĵ, 2=j |
| j | CV20 | 1=J, 2= j , 3=j, 4=j |

| Variant of | cvNN | Variants |
|------------|------|---|
| К | CV21 | 1= <u>k</u> |
| k | CV22 | 1=k, 2=k, 3=k, 4=k, 5=k, 6=k, 7=k |
| L | CV23 | 1=l |
| 1 | cv24 | 1=[, 2=l, 3=t, 4=l', 5=l, 6=l |
| М | cv25 | 1=M, 2=M, 3=W, 4=m |
| m | cv26 | 1=m, 2=m, 3=m, 4=m |
| N | CV27 | 1=Ŋ, 2= n, 3=Д |
| n | cv28 | 1=1), 2=№, 3=£, 4=m), 5=n, 6=ŋ, 7=ℕ, 8=Ħ, 9=1) |
| Ο | cv29 | 1=0, 2=0 |
| О | cv30 | 1=0, 2=0 |
| Р | CV31 | 1=9, 2= p |
| р | CV32 | 1= p , 2= p ** |
| Q | cv33 | 1=9, 2= <mark>9</mark> , 3=Q_, 4=Q |
| q | cv34 | 1=ġ, 2=q |
| R | cv35 | 1=]`l, 2= ? , 3= r |
| r | cv36 | 1=p, 2=2, 3=r, 4=r, 5=r, 6=n, 7=p |
| S | cv37 | 1= J [•] , 2=8, 3= S , 4=8 ⁰ , 5=1 ⁰ , 6=∫, 7=∑, 8=ℤ |
| s | cv38 | 1=r, 2=s, 3=f, 4=f, 5=f, 6=f, 7=s, 8=f, 9=r, 10=S, 11=f, 12=f, 13=st, 14=s, 15=f' |
| Т | cv39 | 1=C, 2=t |
| t | cv40 | 1=t, 2=t, 3=t, 4=J, 5=t |
| U | CV41 | 1= U , 2=U, 3=U |
| u | CV42 | 1=U |

| Variant of | cvNN | Variants |
|------------|------|---|
| V | cv43 | 1=V |
| v | cv44 | 1=v, 2=v, 3=v, 4=v, 5=v, 6=v |
| W | cv45 | 1=W, 2=W |
| w | cv46 | 1=W, 2=\$ |
| Х | cv47 | 1=X |
| х | cv48 | 1=x, 2=x, 3=x, 4=x, 5=x |
| Y | cv49 | 1=¥, 2=y |
| у | cv50 | 1= <i>y</i> , 2= <i>y</i> , 3= <i>s</i> , 4= <i>y</i> , 5= <i>r</i> , 6= <i>r</i> |
| Z | cv51 | 1=\$, 2=Z |
| Z | cv52 | 1=3, 2=h, 3=Z |

* cv18[4] changes ii to ij at the end of a word; cv18[5] changes i to j at the end of a word whether another i precedes or not. These variants are chiefly useful for roman numbers, but also for Latin words ending in -ii. The j produced by this feature is searchable as i.

** cv32[2] should be on in any edition or extensive quotation of the Ormulum. The feature produces a p that differs from the default only in the way it forms a double-p ligature with hlig: B, not pp.

4.3.2. cv53-cv66, cv91 – Other Latin Letters

Some features affect both upper- and lowercase forms. cv62 also affects combining e with ogonek, accessible via either cv84 or ss10 with the entity reference δ_{eogo} ;

| Variant of | cvNN | Variants |
|------------|------|----------------|
| Ą (U+0104) | cv53 | 1=A, 2=A, 3=Az |
| ą (U+0105) | cv54 | 1=a, 2=a |

| Variant of | cvNN | Variants |
|-----------------------|------|---|
| a (U+A733) | cv55 | 1=a, 2=a, 3=a, 4=x |
| Æ (U+00C6) | cv56 | 1=Æ, 2= <mark>æ</mark> |
| æ (U+00E6) | cv57 | 1= $\&$, 2= $\&$, 3= $\&$, 4= $\&$, 5= $\&$, 6= $\&$, 7 $\&$, 8= $\&$ 9= $\&$, 10= $\&$, 11= $\&$ |
| AO (U+A734) | cv58 | 1=Ø, 2= <mark>0</mark> , 3= 0 |
| æ (U+A735) | cv59 | 1=0, 2=0, 3=0 |
| ar (U+A739) | cv60 | 1= <i>W</i> |
| đ (U+0111) | cv61 | 1=ď |
| E, e (U+0118, U+0119) | cv62 | 1=Ę, ę; 2=Ę, ¢ |
| 3, 3 (U+021C, U+021D) | cv63 | 1=33, 2=Zz |
| t (U+A749) | cv64 | 1=ľ |
| N (U+014A) | cv91 | 1=Ŋ, 2=Ŋ |
| φ (U+A7C1) | cv65 | 1=0, 2=0, 3=0, 4=0 |
| þ, þ (U+А765) | cv66 | 1=Þ, þ |

4.3.3. sso1 – Alternate thorn and eth

Produces Nordic thorn and eth ($b\delta P$) when the language is English, and English thorn and eth ($b\delta P$) with any other language, reversing the font's ordinary usage. This also affects small caps, crossed thorn (b p—see also cv66), combining mark eth (U+1DD9, $\delta \delta$), and enlarged thorn and eth (see sso6). This feature depends on loca (Localized Forms), which in most applications will always be enabled.

4.3.4. sso2 – Insular Letter-Forms

Produces insular letter-forms, e.g. <code>orgprp</code>. The result is different, depending on whether the language is English or Irish (make sure the language for your document is set properly). In English text, capitals are not affected (except W), as these do not not commonly have insular shapes in early manuscripts; instead, enter the Unicode code points or use the Character Variant (cvNN) features.

In English text, sso2 imitates the typography of the Old English passages of Hickes's *Thesaurus*, not the usage of Old English or Anglo-Latin manuscripts. In Irish texts, it imitates the distribution of insular characters but cannot imitate the style of particular scribal hands or typefaces.

4.3.5. sso4 – High Overline

Produces a high overline over letters used as roman numbers: **cdijlmvx CDI JLMVXO**.

4.3.6. sso5 – Medium-High Overline

Produces a medium-high overline over (or through the ascenders of) letters used as roman numbers, and some others as well: **bcdhyklmfvxp**.

4.3.7. sso6 – Enlarged Minuscules

Letters that are lowercase in form but uppercase in function, and between upperand lowercase in size, often used in medieval manuscripts as *litterae notabiliores* to begin sentences, paragraphs, and other textual units. This feature covers the whole of the basic Latin alphabet and a number of other letters that occur at the beginnings of sentences, plus a few punctuation marks. Uppercase letters are also covered by this feature so that enlarged minuscules can, if you like, be searched as capitals. This is Junicode's collection of enlarged minuscules:

| a → a | $\hat{d} \rightarrow \hat{d}$ | $e \rightarrow e$ | $i \rightarrow i$ | $\alpha \rightarrow \alpha$ | $p \rightarrow p$ |
|-----------------------------|---|---------------------------------|-------------------|-------------------------------------|---|
| á → á | $\dot{o} \rightarrow \dot{o}$ | $f \rightarrow f$ | $1 \rightarrow 1$ | $p \rightarrow p$ | $x \rightarrow x$ |
| $\alpha \rightarrow \alpha$ | $g \rightarrow g$ | $r \rightarrow r$ | $j \rightarrow j$ | $q \rightarrow q$ | $y \rightarrow y$ |
| $a \rightarrow a$ | $\delta \rightarrow \delta$ | $g \rightarrow g$ | J \rightarrow J | $r \rightarrow r$ | $z \rightarrow z$ |
| $x \to x$ | $ð \rightarrow ð$ | $\xi \rightarrow \xi$ | $k \rightarrow k$ | $s \rightarrow s$ | $\flat \rightarrow \flat$ |
| $\omega \rightarrow \omega$ | $\delta \rightarrow \delta$ | $g \rightarrow g$ | $1 \rightarrow 1$ | $f \rightarrow f$ | $\flat \rightarrow \flat$ |
| $b \rightarrow b$ | $e \rightarrow e$ | $h \rightarrow h$ | $m \rightarrow m$ | $t \rightarrow t$ | $\therefore \rightarrow \vdots$ |
| $c \rightarrow c$ | $e \rightarrow e$ | $\mathfrak{h} \to \mathfrak{h}$ | $m \rightarrow M$ | $u \rightarrow u$ | $\sim \rightarrow \sim$ |
| $d \rightarrow d$ | $\acute{\mathrm{e}} \rightarrow \acute{\mathrm{e}}$ | $b \rightarrow b$ | $n \rightarrow n$ | $v \rightarrow v$ | $\therefore \rightarrow \vdots$ |
| ḋ → ḋ | $e \rightarrow e$ | $\hbar \rightarrow \hbar$ | $0 \rightarrow 0$ | $\mathbf{w} \rightarrow \mathbf{w}$ | $^{\checkmark} \rightarrow ^{\checkmark}$ |

If you are using the variable version of the font (Junicode VF), consider using the Enlarge axis instead, for reasons of flexibility and accessibility.

4.3.8. sso7 – Underdotted Text

Produces underdotted text (indicating deletion in medieval manuscripts) for most Latin and Greek letters, e.g. abcdefg ΗIJĶĻϺ αβγδεζη ΑΒΓΔΕΖΗ. This also affects small caps, e.g. ΗIJĶĻMŅ ΘŀĶĄMŅĦ. If this feature fails for any letter, use U+0323, combining dot below.

4.3.9. sso8 – Contextual Long s

In English, French, and Latin text only, varies s and f according to rules followed by many early printers: fports, effence, ftormy, difheveled, transfufions, flynefs, cliffside. For this feature to work properly, calt "Contextual Alternates" must also be enabled (as it should be by default: see Required Features below). This feature does not work in LuaT_EX, except in harf mode.

4.3.10. ss16 – Contextual r Rotunda

Converts r to 2 (lowercase only) following the most common rules of medieval manuscripts: p2iest, firmer, frost, o2nament. For this feature to work properly, calt "Contextual Alternates" must also be enabled (as it should be by default: see Required Features below). This feature does not work in LuaT_EX, except in harf mode.

4.3.11. salt – Stylistic Alternates (medieval capitals, etc.)

Junicode has two series of decorative capitals in medieval scripts. These affect only the letters A-Z and a-z. salt[1] provides rustic capitals, a script used for text in the late ancient and early medieval periods and for display until around the eleventh century: $\zeta \Lambda Z II \hat{K} IQ U IN S IIBY COS D UXIT KARTHAGO TRIUMPHOS.$ salt[2] provides Lombardic capitals, a style used mainly for what are now called drop caps and not for running text, titles, or headers: A B C D F F. Rustic capital Æ is available (\hat{K}), but not Lombardic. salt[3] provides variants of rustic G

and Lombardic F and T: **GFT** Miscellaneous alternates (for which Character Variants are unavailable) are also gathered here:

| ĭ: 1=\$, 2=c€, 3=€. | - (hyphen): 1=2 |
|---------------------|-----------------|
| ð: 1=70, 2=ð, 3=ð. | 1: 1=tc. |
| ÿ: 1= <i>ŷ</i> . | 1=8. |
| | p: 1=p. |

4.3.12. cv68 – Variant of ? (U+0294, glottal stop)

4.4. Greek

Junicode has two distinct styles of Greek. In the roman face, it is upright and modern, especially designed to harmonize with Junicode's Latin letters. In the italic, it is slanted and old-style, being based on the eighteenth-century Greek type designed by Alexander Wilson and used by the Foulis Press in Glasgow. Both Greek styles include the full polytonic and monotonic character sets: $\alpha\beta\gamma\delta\epsilon\zeta$.

To set Greek properly (especially polytonic text) requires that both locl and ccmp be active, as they should be by default in most text processing applications (but in MS Word they must be explicitly enabled by checking the "kerning" box on the "Advanced" tab of the Font Dialog).

Modern monotonic Greek should be set using only characters from the Unicode "Greek and Coptic" range (U+0370–U+03FF). When monotonic text is set in all caps, Junicode suppresses accents automatically (except in single-letter words, for which you must substitute unaccented forms manually). This substitution is not performed on text containing visually identical letters from the "Greek Extended" range (U+0F00–U+1FFF). Thus when setting polytonic Greek, one should use (for example) 'A (U+1FBB), not 'A (U+0386), though they look the same.

You can set polytonic Greek either by entering code points from the Greek Extended range or by entering sequences of base characters and diacritics. When

using the latter method, you must first make sure the language for the text in question (whether a single word, a short passage, or a complete document) is set to Greek, and then enter characters in canonical order (that is, the sequence defined by Unicode as equivalent to the composite character). The order is as follows: 1. base character; 2. diacritics positioned either above or in front of the base character, working from left to right or bottom to top; 3. the *ypogegrammeni* (U+0345), or for capitals, if you prefer, the *prosgegrammeni* (U+1FBE).²

For example, the sequence ω (U+03C9) \circ (U+0313) \circ (U+0301) \circ (U+0345) produces $\tilde{\omega}$. Substitute capital Ω (U+03A9) and the result is " Ω_L . Note that in a number of applications the layout engine will perform these substitutions before Junicode's own programming is invoked. If either the layout engine or Junicode fails to produce your preferred result, try placing U+034F COMBINING GRAPHEME JOINER (don't waste time puzzling over the name) somewhere in the sequence of combining marks—for example, before the *ypogegrammeni* to make " Ω .

4.4.1. sso3 – Alternate Greek

Provides alternate shapes of $\beta \gamma \theta \pi \phi \chi \omega$: $\beta \gamma \theta \pi \phi \chi \omega$. These are chiefly useful in linguistics, as they harmonize with IPA characters.

4.5. Gothic

4.5.1. ss19 – Latin to Gothic Transliteration

Produces Gothic letters from Latin: Warþ þan in dagans jainans $\rightarrow \gamma \lambda K \Psi \Psi \lambda N$ IN $\lambda \lambda \Gamma \lambda NS G \lambda IN \lambda NS$. In web pages and PDFs, the letters will be searchable as their Latin equivalents.

4.6. Runic

² Some applications will automatically reorder sequences of letters and accents, sparing you the trouble of remembering the canonical order.

4.6.1. ss12 – Early English Futhorc

Changes Latin letters to their equivalents in the early English futhorc. Because of the variability of the runic alphabet, this method of transliteration may not produce the result you want. In that case, it may be necessary to manually edit the result. fisc flodu ahof $\rightarrow FIHK FIFKIN FNFF$.

4.6.2. ss13 – Elder Futhark

Changes Latin letters to their equivalents in the Elder Futhark. Because of the variability of the runic alphabet, this method of transliteration may not produce the result you want. In that case, it may be necessary to manually edit the result. ABCDEFG $\rightarrow FB < MMFX$.

4.6.3. ss14 – Younger Futhark

Changes Latin letters to their equivalents in the Younger Futhark. Because of the variability of the runic alphabet, this method of transliteration may not produce the result you want. In that case, it may be necessary to manually edit the result. ABCDEFG $\rightarrow \dagger BT \uparrow I \not\models T$.

4.6.4. ss15 – Long Branch to Short Twig

In combination with ss14, converts long branch (the default for the Younger Futhark) to short twig runes: $\frac{1}{1}$

4.6.5. rtlm – Right to Left Mirrored Forms

Produces mirrored runes, e.g. FBL $MFX \rightarrow XMBJ31$. This feature cannot change the direction of text or reverse its order.

4.7. Ligatures and Digraphs

Old-style fonts typically contain a standard collection of ligatures (conjoined letters), including fi, fl, ff, ffi, and ffl. Most software will display these ligatures

automatically (except Microsoft Word, for which they must be enabled explicitly). Junicode has a large number of ligatures, including the standard f-ligatures, a similar set for long s, e.g. fl, ff, ffi, but also more unusual forms like ft, ft, fp (the last two with sso2 and cv38[11]).

Junicode also contains more specialized ligatures: for various enclosed alphanumerics, e.g. (15) \rightarrow (5), (18) \rightarrow (18); for the five tone modifiers (U+02E5, U+02E9, U+02E6, U+02E8, U+02E7), a large number of ligatures, e.g. $11 \rightarrow 1$, $114 \rightarrow 1$; for combinations of vowel + rhotic hook (U+02DE), several more ligatures, e.g. $a^{-} \rightarrow a^{-}$, $ce^{-} \rightarrow ce^{-}$. These, like the more common ligatures, are automatic.

Many of Junicode's ligatures, however, are not automatic, but belong to the set of either Historic Ligatures or Discretionary Ligatures, both of which must be invoked explicitly. These are listed in the following sections.

4.7.1. hlig – Historic Ligatures

Produces ligatures for combinations that should not ordinarily be rendered as ligatures in modern text.³ Most of these are from the MUFI recommendation, ranges B.1.1(b) and B.1.4. This feature does not produce digraphs (which have a phonetic value), for which see ss17. The ligatures:

| af \rightarrow f | $ab \rightarrow b$ | de $\rightarrow \delta$ | $e_{p} \rightarrow e_{p}$ | $gg \rightarrow gg$ |
|---------------------|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------------|-------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|
| $ar \rightarrow r$ | av $\rightarrow a$ | $ge \rightarrow ge$ | $e_{\Gamma} \rightarrow e_{\Gamma}$ | $gg \rightarrow gg$ |
| ag \rightarrow ag | $\lambda V \rightarrow \lambda V$ | $ea \rightarrow ea$ | $e\tau \rightarrow ft$ | $go \rightarrow go$ |
| al \rightarrow d | $pp \rightarrow pp$ | $ec \rightarrow fc$ | $ex \rightarrow fx$ | $gp \rightarrow qp$ |
| an \rightarrow an | bg \rightarrow b | $e_{\rm F} \rightarrow e_{\rm F}$ | $ey \rightarrow ey$ | $\mathrm{gr} \rightarrow \mathrm{gr}$ |
| $aN \rightarrow aN$ | bo \rightarrow bo | $e_{\xi} \rightarrow f_{\xi}$ | fä → fä | $Hr \rightarrow h$ |
| $ap \rightarrow p$ | $ch \rightarrow dy$ | $em \rightarrow fm$ | $gd \rightarrow d$ | $hr \rightarrow h$ |
| ar \rightarrow ar | $ck \rightarrow dk$ | en \rightarrow fh | $g\delta \rightarrow \check{g}$ | $hf \rightarrow fh$ |
| $aR \rightarrow R$ | $99 \rightarrow 99$ | $eo \rightarrow co$ | $g \phi \rightarrow \dot{\phi}$ | $hf \rightarrow fh$ |

³ Some fonts define hlig differently, as including all ligatures in which at least one element is an archaic character, e.g. those involving long s (f). In Junicode, however, a historic ligature is defined not by the characters it is composed of, but rather by the join between them. If two characters (though modern) should not be joined except in certain historic contexts, they form a historic ligature. If they should be joined in all contexts (even if archaic), the ligature is not historic and should be defined in liga.

| $kr \rightarrow k$ | $OZ \rightarrow CR$ | $ps \rightarrow l^{g}$ | $fch \rightarrow fch$ | $pp \rightarrow \beta$ |
|---------------------------------|---|-------------------------------|-----------------------------|---|
| $kf \rightarrow k$ | $02 \rightarrow 02$ | $Psi \rightarrow Pi$ | $ftr \rightarrow ftr$ | $ ho r \rightarrow ho$ |
| $kf \rightarrow fk$ | $O \not{\downarrow} \rightarrow O \not{\downarrow}$ | psi → l⁵ı | $fp \rightarrow p$ | |
| $11 \rightarrow 11$ | $02 \rightarrow 02$ | $dh \rightarrow dh$ | $fp \rightarrow fp$ | $bf \rightarrow f$ |
| na → nួ | $\mathrm{PP} \to \mathrm{I\!P}$ | $q_3/q_3 \rightarrow q_3/q_3$ | $\tau \tau \rightarrow \pi$ | $\delta\delta \rightarrow \delta\delta$ |
| ni \rightarrow n ₁ | $pp \rightarrow pp$ | $qq \rightarrow qq$ | $UE \rightarrow UE$ | $bb \rightarrow b$ |
| $Nf \rightarrow Nf$ | $bb \rightarrow bb$ | $QZ \rightarrow QZ$ | $ue \rightarrow ue$ | |
| $nv \rightarrow v$ | $Ps \rightarrow P'$ | $q_2 \rightarrow q_2$ | $UU \rightarrow UU$ | $pp \rightarrow \beta$ |
| oc $\rightarrow \infty$ | $pe \rightarrow pe$ | fä → fä | uu → uı | 柿 → 柿 |

Note: For the ligature \mathbf{N} to work properly, U+017F **f** must be entered directly, not by applying an OpenType feature to **s**.

4.7.2. dlig – Discretionary Ligatures

Produces lesser-used ligatures: ct, fp, str, st, tr, tt, ty. The collection of discretionary ligatures in the italic face also includes *as, is, us*.

4.7.3. ss17 – Rare Digraphs

By "digraph" we mean conjoined letters that represent a phonetic value: the most common examples for western languages are \mathbf{x} and \mathbf{c} (though these, because they are so common, are not included in this feature). Use of this feature in web pages enables easier searches: for example, producing **þa** from **þau** allows the word to be searched as "þau." The digraphs covered by this feature are \mathbf{a} , \mathbf{a} , \mathbf{a} , \mathbf{a} , \mathbf{a} , \mathbf{b} , \mathbf{b} , \mathbf{g} , \mathbf{c} , \mathbf{y} , **b**, \mathbf{b} , \mathbf{g} , \mathbf{c} , \mathbf{y} , plus capital and small cap equivalents and digraph + diacritic combinations anticipated in the MUFI recommendation. To produce such a digraph + diacritic combination, either type a letter + diacritic combination as the second element of the digraph or type the diacritic after the second element. For example, $\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{u}$ yields \mathbf{a} , and so does $\mathbf{a} + \mathbf{u} + U+0301$ (combining acute accent). To produce a digraph + diacritic combination not covered by MUFI (e.g. \mathbf{a}), you may have to place U+034F COMBINING GRAPHEME JOINER (see cv84) between the second element of the digraph and the combining mark.

4.8. Numbers and Sequencing

4.8.1. frac – Fractions

Applied to a slash and surrounding numbers, produces fractions with diagonal slashes. 6/9 becomes $\frac{6}{91}$.

4.8.2. numr – Numerators

Changes numbers to those suitable for use on the left/upper side of fractions with diagonal stroke (U+2044). This can be used, with dnom, to manually construct fractions, but for most users frac will be a better solution.

4.8.3. dnom – Denominators

Changes numbers to those suitable for use on the right/lower side of fractions with diagonal stroke (U+2044). This can be used, with numr, to manually construct fractions, but for most users frac will be a better solution.

4.8.4. nalt – Alternate Annotation Forms

Produces letters and numbers circled, in parenthesis, or followed by periods, as follows:

nalt[1], circled letters or numbers: (a) (b) ... (z); (0) (1) (2) ... (20).

- nalt[2], letter or numbers in parentheses: (a) . . . (z); (0) (1) . . . (20).
- nalt[3], double-circled numbers: (1) (1) ... (10).
- nalt[4], white numbers in black circles: 0 1 2 3 ... 20.

```
nalt[5], numbers followed by period: 0. 1.... 20.
```

For enclosed figures 10 and higher, rlig (Required Ligatures) must also be enabled (as it should be by default: see Required Features below).

4.8.5. tnum – Tabular Figures

Fixed-width figures: 0123456789 (with lnum), 0123456789 (default or with onum).
4.8.6. onum – Oldstyle Figures

Junicode's default figures are oldstyle and proportional, harmonizing with lowercase characters: 0123456789. Use this feature to switch temporarily to oldstyle figures in a context where lnum is active.

4.8.7. pnum – Proportional Figures

Junicode's default figures are proportionally spaced: unlike tabular figures, they are not all the same width: 0123456789. Use this feature to switch temporarily to proportional figures in a context where tnum is active.

4.8.8. lnum – Lining Figures

Figures in a uniform height, harmonizing with uppercase letters: 0123456789 (with tnum), 0123456789 (default or with pnum).

4.8.9. zero – Slashed Zero

Produces slashed zero in all number styles, including superscripts, subscripts, and fractions made with frac: $0 \circ 0 \circ \frac{10}{30}$.

4.8.10. sso9 – Alternate Figures

In the manner of old typefaces, Junicode's default number one is shaped like a small capital I and its zero is a plain ring. This feature provides more modern-looking figures: 01. Only oldstyle figures are affected by this feature.

4.9. Superscripts and Subscripts

4.9.1. sups – Superscripts

Produces superscript numbers and letters. Superscript numbers are in one of two styles: oldstyle proportional (from oldstyle numbers) and lining tabular (from lining numbers). All lowercase letters of the basic Latin alphabet are covered, and most uppercase letters: ⁰¹²³ 45⁶⁷ abcde ABDEG. Wherever superscripts are needed

32 FEATURE REFERENCE

(e.g. for footnote numbers), use sups instead of the raised and scaled characters generated by some programs. With sups: ⁴⁵⁶⁷. Scaled: ⁴⁵⁶⁷.

4.9.2. subs – Subscripts

Produces subscript numbers. Only produces oldstyle proportional and lining tabular figures: _{2345 8901}.

4.10. Punctuation and Symbols

MUFI encodes nearly twenty marks of punctuation in the PUA. In Junicode these can be accessed in either of two ways: all are indexed variants of . (period), and all are associated with the Unicode marks of punctuation they most resemble (but it should not be inferred that the medieval marks are semantically identical with the Unicode marks, or that there is an etymological relationship between them). The first method will be easier for most to use, but the second is more likely to yield acceptable fallbacks in environments where Junicode is not available.

Marks with Unicode encoding are not included here, as they can safely be entered directly. In MUFI 4.0 several marks have PUA encodings, but have since that release been assigned Unicode code points: *paragraphus* (<u>Y</u> U+2E4D), medieval comma (? U+2E4C), *punctus elevatus* (: U+2E4E), *virgula suspensiva* (<u>f</u> U+2E4A), triple dagger ([‡] U+2E4B).

4.10.1. ss18 – Old-Style Punctuation Spacing

Colons, semicolons, parentheses, quotation marks and several other glyphs are spaced as in early printed books.

```
4.10.2. cv69 – Variants of J] (U+204A / U+2E52, Tironian nota)
1=z7, 2=z7, 3=JJ, 4=JJ, 5=ee, 6=JJ, 7=JJ, 8=gJ, 9=g9, 10=JJ, 11=JJ.
```

4.10.3. cv70 – Variants of . (period)

1=', 2=', 3=', 4=;, 5=.,, 6=:, 7=;, 8=;, 9=?, 10=?, 11=?, 12=?, 13=?, 14=?, 15=?, 16=°, 17=~, 18=:, 19=?, 20=?, 21=?, 22=?, 23=?. This feature provides access to all non-Unicode MUFI punctuation marks. Some of them are available via other features (see below).

4.10.4. cv71 – Variant of \cdot (U+00B7, middle dot)

1=0 (distinctio), 2=0.

4.10.5. cv72 – Variants of , (comma)

1=,, 2='.

4.10.6. cv73 – Variants of ; (semicolon)

1=; (*punctus versus*), 2=.,, 3=:, 4=:, 5=:, 6=.,, 7=:, 8=:. Several complex punctuation marks are gathered here. This does not imply that these marks are variants of the semicolon.

4.10.7. cv74 – Variants of : (U+2E4E, punctus elevatus)

1=?, 2=?, 3=?, 4=? (*punctus flexus*), 5=~, 6=?, 7=~. Some of these are affected by ss06, Enlarged Minuscules.

4.10.8. cv75 – Variant of ! (exclamation mark)

1=! (punctus exclamativus).

4.10.9. cv76 – Variants of ? (question mark)

1=?, 2=?, 3=?. Shapes of the *punctus interrogativus*.

4.10.10. cv77 – Variant of ~ (ASCII tilde)

1=~ (same as MUFI U+F1F9, "wavy line").

34 FEATURE REFERENCE

4.10.11. cv78 – Variant of * (asterisk)

1=::, 2=*, 3=*, 4=*, 5=*. MUFI defines U+F1EC as a signe de renvoi. Manuscripts employ a number of shapes (of which this is one) for this purpose. Junicode defines it as variant 1 of the asterisk—the most common modern signe de renvoi.

4.10.12. cv79 – Variants of / (slash)

1=1/2, 2=1/2. The first of these is Unicode, U+2E4E.

4.11. Spacing Abbreviations

4.11.1. cv80 – Variant of γ (U+A75D, rum abbreviation)

1=ğ.

4.11.2. cv82 – Variants of spacing ⁹ (U+A770)

1=9, 2=9. cv82[1] produces the baseline *-us* abbreviation (same as MUFI U+F1A6). MUFI also has an uppercase baseline *-us* abbreviation (U+F1A5), but as there is no uppercase version of U+A770 to pair it with, it is indexed separately here.

4.11.3. cv83 – Variants of 3 (U+A76B, "et" abbreviation)

1=;, 2=₃, 3=:, 4=:. [1] and [3] are identical in shape to a semicolon and a colon, but as they are semantically the same as U+A76B, it is preferable to use those characters with this feature. [2] produces a subscript version of the character, a common variant in early printed books. [4] has a lower extension that crosses the descender of a preceding **q**.

4.11.4. cv67 – Spacing zigzag (variant of U+00AF, spacing macron)

A spacing version of \circ (U+035B, combining zigzag) appears in John Hutchins, *The History and Antiquities of the County of Dorset* (London, 1774). It is not in Unicode or MUFI. In the future this feature may be used, as necessary, for other spacing marks of abbreviation.

4.11.5. cv99 – Word omitted symbol (variant of U+00B0, degree)

The degree sign is often used as an editorial sign in editions of the Greek New Testament. This feature scales and positions it to match other editorial signs (U+2E00–u+2E0D).

4.12. Combining Marks

4.12.1. cv84 – MUFI combining marks (variants of U+0304)

MUFI encodes a number of combining marks in the PUA (with code points between E000 and F8FF), but when these characters are entered directly, they can interfere with searching and accessibility, and some important applications fail to position them correctly over their base characters. To avoid these problems, enter U+0304 ($\overline{0}$, COMBINING MACRON) and apply cv84, with the appropriate index, to both mark and base character. This collection of marks does not include any Unicode-encoded marks (from the "Combining Diacritical Marks" ranges), as these can safely be entered directly. It does include three marks (cv84[30], [31] and [32]) that lack MUFI code points but are used to form MUFI characters, and three more ([2], [33], and [34]) that have no code points in Unicode or MUFI.

This feature may often appear to have no effect. When this happens it is because an application replaced a sequence like **a** U+0304 with a precomposed character like \bar{a} (U+0101) before Junicode's OpenType programming had a chance to work. This process is called normalization, and it usually has the effect of simplifying text processing tasks, but can sometimes prevent the proper functioning of OpenType features. To disable it, place the character U+034F COMBINING GRAPHEME JOINER between the base character and the combining mark (or the first combining mark). For example, to produce the combination \tilde{u} , enter **u** U+034F U+0304.

These marks can sometimes be produced by other cvNN features, which may be preferable to cv84 as providing more suitable fallbacks for applications that do not support Character Variant (cvNN) features.

36 FEATURE REFERENCE

For some marks with PUA code points, users may find it easier to use entities than this feature.

These marks are not affected by most other features. This is to preserve flexibility, given the rule that the feature that produces them must be applied to both the mark and the base character. For example, if you had to apply smcp "Small Caps" to U+1DE8 b to get cv84[11] b, it would be impossible to produce the sequence naa (or the reverse case NAA) with the diacritic properly positioned.

| 1 = ೆ | 8 = ° | 15 = ¹ | 2.2 = ံ | 29 = ै | 36 = ි |
|------------------|-------------------|---------------------------|--------------------|-------------------|----------------|
| <u>2</u> = | 9 = [*] | 16 = ^j | 2.3 = ° | 30 = ċ | 37 = <i>ු</i> |
| 3 = [÷] | 10 = Ö | 17 = ^j | 24 = ै | 31 = ざ | <u>3</u> 8 = ් |
| 4 = | 11 = ^B | 18 = ^к | 2.5 = ै | 32 = ç | 39 = Ö |
| 5 = ි | 12 = Ö | 19 = ^m | 2.6 = ° | 33 = Ō | |
| 6 = े | 13 = Š | 20 = Ö | 27 = ° | 34 = õ | |
| 7 = ° | 14 = ° | $21 = \overset{0}{\circ}$ | 28 = ^{on} | 35 = ³ | |

4.12.2. cv81 – Variants of ^(U+035B), combining zigzag above)

1= $\overset{\circ}{}$, 2= $\overset{\circ}{}$, 3= $\overset{\circ}{}$. Positioning of the zigzag can differ from that of other combining marks, e.g. $\overset{\circ}{B}$ fd. If calt "Contextual Alternates" is enabled (as it is by default in most apps), variant forms of cv81[2] will be used with several letters, e.g. $\overset{\circ}{d}$ Pk. Enable case for forms that harmonize with capitals ($\overset{\circ}{A}$ $\overset{\circ}{B}$ $\overset{\circ}{C}$ $\overset{\circ}{D}$), smcp for forms that harmonize with small caps ($\overset{\circ}{E}$ $\overset{\circ}{F}$ $\overset{\circ}{G}$ $\overset{\circ}{H}$).

4.12.3. ss10 – Character Entities for Combining Marks

Instead of cv84 for representing non-Unicode combining marks, some users may wish to use XML/HTML-style entities. When ss10 is turned on (preferably for the entire text), these entities appear as combining marks and are correctly positioned over base characters. For example, the letter **e** followed by &__eogo; will yield **e**. An advantage of entities is that they are (unlike the PUA code points or the indexes of cv84) mnemonic and thus easy to use. A disadvantage is that searches cannot ignore combining marks entered by this method as they can using the cv84 method. (Every method of entering non-Unicode combining

marks has disadvantages: users should weigh these, choose a method, and stick with it.)

If you use any of these entities in a work intended for print publication, you should call your publisher's attention to them, since they will likely have their own method of representing them.

| &_ansc; → ै | &_eogo; → ీ | &_oogo; → ໍໍ | &_sa; → ్ |
|------------------------|--|-----------------------|--|
| &_an; → ື | &_emac; → $^{\bullet}$ | &_oslash; → ॑ | &_tsc; \rightarrow [†] |
| &_ar; → ै | &_idotl; → ॑ | &_omac; → ೆ | &_y; → ° |
| &_arsc; → [®] | &_j; → ॑ | &_orr; → [∞] | &_thorn; \rightarrow $\overset{\mathrm{b}}{\circ}$ |
| &_as; → ୂ | &_jdotl; → ॑ | &_oru; → ొ | |
| &_bsc; → B | &_ksc; → ँ | &_q; → ^q | |
| &_dsc; → $^{\circ}$ | &_munc; \rightarrow $\overset{m}{\circ}$ | &_ru; → ै | |

For another function of Stylistic Set 10, see Chapter 6, Entering Characters with Tags.

4.12.4. ss20 – Low Diacritics

The MUFI recommendation includes a number of precomposed characters with base letters b, h, k, þ, ð and ð and a number of combining marks. Instead of being positioned above ascender height as usual (e.g. \mathring{h}), the MUFI glyphs have the marks positioned above the x-height (e.g. \mathring{h}). Using the MUFI code points for these precomposed glyphs can interfere with searching and drastically reduce accessibility. Users of Junicode should instead use a sequence of base character + combining mark, and apply \$\$20 to the two glyphs. Variant shapes of \eth and \eth that accommodate the combining mark will be substituted for the normal base characters (but this is not necessary for the other base characters). Examples: \mathring{b} \eth \mathring{h} \mathring{k} \mathring{h} \eth . These marks are affected by this feature:

| ै (U+0363) | ီ (U+0366) | ៉ (U+1ACE) |
|---------------------------------|--------------------|------------|
| " (U+1DD3) | ់ (U+036C) | ៉ (U+0367) |
| ် (U+0364) | ී (U+1DE2) | ံ (U+036E) |
| ់ (U+0304/cv84[15]) | ੈ (U+1DE3) | ి (U+1DE6) |
| ៉ (U+1DDE) | õ (U+1DE3/cv87[1]) | |
| [™] (U+0304/cv84[19]). | ៉ (U+036D) | ් (U+035B) |

38 FEATURE REFERENCE

ss20 is intended for use only with the diacritics and base characters listed here; other base+diacritic combinations may be disrupted by the feature. You should therefore apply it only to relevant base+diacritic pairs (e.g. via a style in InDesign or a word processor or a command in LuaTEX).

```
4.12.5. cv85 – Variant of " (U+1DD3, combining open a)
1=<sup>°</sup>.
```

4.12.6. cv86 − Variant of ° (U+1DD8, combining insular d) 1=°.

4.12.7. cv87 − Variant of ³ (U+1DE3, combining r rotunda) 1=õ.

4.12.8. cv88 – Variant of combining dieresis (U+0308)

1=^o. This also affects precomposed characters on which this variant dieresis may occur, e.g. <u>a</u>.

4.12.9. $cv89 - Variant of \overline{o}$ (U+0305, combining overline)

1=**ं**.

4.12.10. cv90 − Variants of ¯ (U+035E, combining double macron) 1=55, 2=55.

4.12.11. cv92 – Variant of combining breve below (U+032E)

1= \bigcirc . Position the mark after the middle of three glyphs, and apply cv92 to both the mark and (at least) the middle glyph. This mark is not available via cv84.

4.13. Currency and Weights

4.13.1. cv93 – Variants of ¤ (U+0044, generic currency sign)

| 1 = <i>I</i> ∏ | $6 = \ddot{v}$ | 11 = 🔀 | 16 = £ | 21 = C | 26 = Z |
|-------------------|--------------------|--------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|---------|
| $2 = \frac{1}{2}$ | 7 = f ^g | 12 = İİ | 17 = 🛓 | $2.2 = i \sqrt[3]{r}$ | 27 = () |
| 3 = ¥ | 8 = ge | 13 = \$ | 18 = 🖗 | 23 = 2/9 | |
| 4 = ⊅ | 9 = (| $14 = \mathcal{L}$ | 19 = m} | 24 = ß | |
| 5 = 3 | $10 = \nabla$ | 15 = L | $20 = \eta \mathcal{D}$ | $25 = l s \ell$ | |

All of MUFI's currency and weight symbols (those that do not have Unicode code points) are gathered here, but some are also variants of other currency signs (see below).

4.13.2. cv94 – Variant of 15 (U+2114)

1=tt. Same as MUFI U+F2EB (French Libra sign).

4.13.3. cv_{95} – Variants of £ (U+00A3, British pound sign)

1=&, 2=ft, 3=&, 4=&, 5=£, 6=£. Same as MUFI U+F2EA, F2EB, F2EC, F2ED, F2EE, F2EF, pound signs from various locales.

4.13.4. cv_{96} – Variant of \Re (U+20B0, German penny sign)

1=1% r. Same as MUFI U+F2F5.

4.13.5. cv97 – Variant of f (U+0192, florin)

1=f³. Same as MUFI U+F2E8.

4.13.6. cv98 – Variant of $\frac{7}{2}$ (U+2125, Ounce sign)

1=6). Same as MUFI U+F2FD, Script ounce sign.

40 FEATURE REFERENCE

4.14. Ornaments

4.14.1. ornm – Ornaments

Produces ornaments (fleurons) in either of two ways: as an indexed variant of the bullet character (U+2022) or as variants of a-z, A-C:

| a, 1 | Ť | i, 9 💥 | q, 17 👸 | y, 25 💌 |
|--------------|---|---------|---------|---------|
| b, 2 | 0 | j, 10 💥 | r, 18 🐹 | z, 26 👪 |
| c, 3 | Dige | k, 11 💥 | s, 19 | A, 27 🕅 |
| d, 4 | * | l, 12 💥 | t, 20 💥 | B, 28 🌌 |
| e, 5 | 2\$ 5 | m, 13 💥 | u, 21 🐹 | C, 29 🚥 |
| f, 6 | *** | n, 14 💥 | V, 22 | |
| g , 7 | The second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second se | 0, 15 💥 | W, 23 🔀 | |
| h, 8 | <u>2</u> . | p, 16 🙀 | X, 24 | |

The method with letters of the alphabet is easier, but the method with bullets will produce a more satisfactory result when text is displayed in an environment where Junicode is not available or ornm is not implemented.

4.14.2. Lady Junicode

Lady Junicode cannot be produced by an OpenType feature, believing that it would be vulgar to make herself so accessible. She has, indeed, commanded that the author of this document not publish her code point, located in one of the more private corners of the Private Use Area. She has, however, given permission to publish her miniature:

Q

If you encounter her while adventuring in her domains, greet her respectfully, and she will welcome you graciously.

4.15. Required Features

Required features, which provide some of the font's most basic functionality—ligatures, support for other features, kerning, and more—include ccmp (Glyph Composition/Decomposition), calt (Contextual Alternates), liga (Standard Ligatures), loca (Localized Forms), rlig (Required Ligatures), kern (Horizontal Kerning), and mark/mkmk (Mark Positioning). In MS Word these features have to be explicitly enabled on the Advanced tab of the Font dialog (Ctrl-D or Cmd-D: enable Kerning, Standard Ligatures, and Contextual Alternates, and the others will be enabled automatically), but in most other applications they are enabled by default.

5. Entering characters with tags

Any character in Junicode that can be rendered using a Character Variant (cvNN) feature can also be rendered using a sequence consisting of a base character and two Unicode tags—that is, characters from the Unicode tag range. This range duplicates the ASCII character set (which consists, roughly, of things that can be typed on a U.S. English keyboard), but the characters it contains are normally invisible. They are used as modifiers for a preceding character (in other fonts, usually a flag symbol). Junicode contains a partial collection of tag characters:

| a U+E0061 | [b] U+E0062 | <u>⊾</u> U+E0063 |
|----------------------|----------------------|------------------|
| 🗟 U+E0064 | € U+E0065 | 🔝 U+E0066 |
| g] U+E0067 | [b]] U+E0068 | 🔝 U+E0069 |
| j U+Eoo6A | 🕼 U+E006B | 🛄 U+E006C |
| nu U+E006D | ₽ U+E006E | ı U+E006F |
| [₽] U+E0070 | [¶] U+E0071 | <u>∎</u> U+E0072 |
| <u></u> S U+E0073 | t U+E0074 | ₩ U+E0075 |
| <u>₩</u> U+E0076 | 💹 U+E0077 | ₩ U+E0078 |
| [<u>¥</u>] U+E0079 | 🔀 U+E007A | 🖗 U+E0030 |
| IL U+E0031 | 🛣 U+E0032 | <u></u> U+E0033 |
| 4 U+E0034 | | [€] U+E0036 |
| ₩ U+E0037 | U+E0038 | ₩ U+E0039 |

When creating web pages or XML documents, you can enter these using character entities (e.g. $\delta # \times E0073$; for \blacksquare); along the same lines, you can use the

\char command (e.g. \char"0E0073) when composing TeX documents. But such entities and commands are not generally available in editors and word processors, and entering the tags themselves can be tricky because they are not only invisible, but also ignored by the application (the cursor skips over them). Instead of attempting to enter the code points for tags directly, use character entities consisting of **an ampersand**, two underscores, the tag character, and **a semicolon**. These will yield visible tags. For example, typing δ_{-6} ; will yield the tag f_{-6} .

To use the tag method of entering characters, first type the base character from the table below, then the two tags. For example, to make a square C (\mathbf{L}), enter one of these sequences:

| Web page: | C󠁳󠁱 |
|-----------------|---------------------------|
| TeX: | C\char"0E0073\char"0E0071 |
| Word processor: | C&s&q (appears as C 📓 🖫) |

Then apply the OpenType feature **ss10** (Stylistic Set 10) to the passage or passages containing the tags or, if tags occur throughout, to the whole document. The tags will disappear and the preceding characters (the base characters) will be transformed.

For variants of the combining macron (U+0304) and perhaps other combining marks, it will often be necessary to place the COMBINING GRAPHEME JOINER (U+034F) between the macron and the base character that precedes it. This will prevent normalization (the shaping engine changing sequences of character + combining mark into precomposed characters), which interferes with the operation of tags.

Most of the two-tag sequences documented here are designed to be mnemonic. For example, the sequence in the example above stands for "square." However, two-tag sequences are not capable of describing characters in any detail, and in some cases, where the number of variants is large (especially for period, combining macron, and currency), the tags are not descriptive at all, but rather an index (the same numbers used in the corresponding cvNN features).

These tags are compatible with Junicode's other OpenType features, including the cvNN features, and can be mixed with them. They will not interfere with

the placement of combining marks, which can come either before or after the tag-pair. Use a cvNN feature when a variant should appear throughout the text, repeatedly in a particular passage (for example, a block quotation), or in a style. A tag sequence may be preferable for isolated forms or to override an OpenType feature.

In the list below, records for each character are color-coded as follows:

| green | MUFI characters with PUA code points |
|--------|---------------------------------------|
| yellow | Other characters with PUA code points |
| blue | Characters with Unicode code points |
| red | Characters without code points |

Tags or **cvNN** features are usually to be preferred to PUA code points, which should be used only where accessibility and searchability are not issues (mainly in printed texts). Unicode code points can safely be entered directly. Junicode makes a few of them accessible via **cvNN** features and tags because it may often be desirable to associate these characters with their bases rather than the Unicode code points. For example, the insular T (\overline{C}) is sure to be searchable as T if entered with the sequence T $[\underline{L}]$, but if entered as U+A786 it may or may not be searchable as T, depending on the application.

Characters without code points can only be entered via tags or OpenType features.

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|--------|----------------|--------|------------------------------------|
| period | • TAG 1 TAG | • | Distinctio / F1F8 |
| period | • TAG TAG | • | Comma positura / F1E2 |
| period | • TAG TAG | 7 | High comma positura / F1E3 |
| period | • TAG 4 TAG | ; | Punctus versus / F1EA |
| period | • TAG TAG | •7 | Punctus with comma positura / F1E4 |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|--------|----------------|--------|---|
| period | • TAG TAG | :, | Colon with middle comma positura / F1E5 |
| period | • TAG TAG | ;; | Two dots over comma positura / F1F2 |
| period | • TAG TAG | ÷ | Three dots over comma positura / F1E6 |
| period | • TAG TAG | ·· | Punctus elevatus diagonal stroke / F1F0 |
| period | . TAG TAG | : | Punctus elevatus with high back / F1FA |
| period | . TAG TAG | | Punctus elevatus with onset / F1FB |
| period | . TAG TAG | ? | Punctus flexus / F1F5 |
| period | · TAG TAG | ~ | Dotless punctus elevatus / TBA |
| period | • TAG TAG | ÷ | Punctus elevatus with s-shaped top / TBA |
| period | • TAG 4 TAG | ~ | Dotless punctus elevatus with s-shaped top / TBA |
| period | . TAG TAG | ی ۰ | Enlarged punctus elevatus / TBA |
| period | • TAG TAG | ~ | Enlarged dotless punctus elevatus / TBA |
| period | • TAG TAG | ٠ | Enlarged punctus elevatus with s-shaped top / TBA |
| period | • TAG B | ~ | Enlarged dotless punctus elevatus with s-shaped top / TBA |
| period | • TAG TAG | ! | Punctus exclamativus / F1E7 |
| period | • 1 TAG TAG | ۰. | Punctus interrogativus / F160 |
| period | . TAG TAG | ĩ | Punctus interrogativus horizontal tilde / F1E8 |
| period | . TAG TAG | ∞ • | Punctus interrogativus lemniskate / F1F1 |
| period | . 1 TAG | ~ | Wavy line / F1F9 |
| period | . TAG TAG | ÷ | Signe de renvoi / F1EC |
| period | . TAG TAG | + | Virgula suspensiva / F1F4 |
| period | • TAG TAG | / | Short virgula / F1F7 |
| U+0304 | े 🕫 🚹 | ഀ | Combining curly bar above / F1CC |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|--------|-------------------------|----------------|-------------------------------------|
| U+0304 | <u>े</u> 🕫 🔓 | ് | Combining diagonal macron |
| U+0304 | <u>े</u> 🗖 🛐 | ं | Combining bar above with dot / F1C0 |
| U+0304 | <u>े</u> 👩 [| ් | Combining angular zigzag / F1C7 |
| U+0304 | ā 🖉 ₅ | ి | Combining curly zigzag / F1C8 |
| U+0304 | ā 👩 👩 | े | Combining vertical tilde / 033E |
| U+0304 | ā 👩 🗾 | å | Combining ligature an / F036 |
| U+0304 | ā 🖉 🖁 | ्र | Combining ligature aN / F03A |
| U+0304 | ā 🕵 🔤 | ీ | Combining ligature ar / F038 |
| U+0304 | ā 1. O | ଁ | Combining ligature aR / F130 |
| U+0304 | ā 11. TAG | <mark>،</mark> | Combining B / F013 |
| U+0304 | | °. | Combining D / F016 |
| U+0304 | ā 1 IAG | ڈ | Combining e with macron / F136 |
| U+0304 | | ్ | Combining e with ogonek / F135 |
| U+0304 | ā 1. I. | ் | Combining dotless i / F02F |
| U+0304 | ā 14 DAG | j | Combining j / F030 |
| U+0304 | ā 1. TAG | ر ۱ | Combining dotless j / F031 |
| U+0304 | | Č | Combining K / F01C |
| U+0304 | ā 14. TAG | 8 Ö | Combining uncial m / F01F |
| U+0304 | <u>਼</u> ਸੁੱਖ ਹੈ ਕ | Ô | Combining o with macron / F13F |
| U+0304 | | ိ | Combining o with ogonek / F13E |
| U+0304 | | ి | Combining o with stroke / F032 |
| U+0304 | 売 2 3 TAG TAG | q O | Combining q / F033 |
| U+0304 | | ి | Combining rum abbreviation / F040 |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|--------|------------------|--------|--|
| U+0304 | Ē 🔓 TĀG | Ţ | Combining T / F02A |
| U+0304 | | y O | Combining y / F02B |
| U+0304 | Ē 🔏 📊 | þ | Combining thorn / F03D |
| U+0304 | | ് | Combining ligature o r rotunda / F03E |
| U+0304 | Ē 🔏 🖪 | ී | Combining ligature letter o rum / F03F |
| U+0304 | <u>े</u> 3 0 | ் | Combining diagonal dieresis |
| U+0304 | ā 3 1 | ॅ | Combining dot and acute |
| U+0304 | <u>े</u> 3 2 | ਼ | Combining ogonek and dot |
| U+0304 | <u>े</u> 3 3 746 | Ō | Combining narrow macron |
| U+0304 | <u>े</u> 3 4 | õ | Combining macron with serifs |
| U+0304 | <u>े</u> 🔏 ₅ | ै | Combining et sign |
| U+0304 | <u>े</u> 🔏 🔓 | ్ | Combining spiritus asper sign |
| U+0304 | <u>े 3</u> 77 | Q | Attached subscript a |
| А | | a | Insular A / F201 |
| А | | A | Square A / F13A |
| А | A S d | Ą | A with diagonal stroke / E8DA |
| А | A E I | а | Enlarged minuscule A |
| a | | a | Insular a / F200 |
| a | | λ | Uncial a / F214 |
| a | | α | Open a / F202 |
| a | | a | Closed a / F203 |
| a | | d | Neckless a / F215 |
| a | a 🔤 🕵 | œ | oc-shaped a / TBD |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|------|--------------|--------|-------------------------------------|
| a | ahc | a | high caroline a / TBD |
| a | | u | Square a / TBD |
| a | | a | Pointed a / TBD |
| a | | а | Enlarged minuscule a / EEE0 |
| a | | α | Enlarged oc-shaped a / TBD |
| В | Be n | b | Enlarged minuscule B |
| В | | Ъ | Insular B |
| b | | b | Enlarged minuscule b / EEE1 |
| С | | Е | Square C / F106 |
| С | | С | Enlarged minuscule C |
| с | | Cĩ | c with curl / F198 |
| с | | С | Enlarged minuscule c / EEE2 |
| D | Di e | б | Enlarged minuscule insular D |
| D | | Ö | Insular D / A779 |
| D | | d | Enlarged minuscule D |
| d | | б | Insular d default form / A77A |
| d | | б | Insular d second form |
| d | | σ | Insular d third form |
| d | d in the two | б | Enlarged minuscule insular d / EEE4 |
| d | | ď | d with curl / F193 |
| d | | d | Enlarged minuscule d / EEE3 |
| Е | E | Э | Uncial closed E / F217 |
| Е | E | e | Uncial E / F10A |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|------|--------------|--------|-------------------------------------|
| Е | E | e | Insular E |
| Е | E e n | e | Enlarged minuscule E |
| e | | e | Uncial e / F218 |
| e | | e | e with bar / F219 |
| e | ebh | e | High e with bar / F21A |
| e | | e | Enlarged minuscule e / EEE6 |
| F | Fin n | ŗ | Insular F / A77B |
| F | Fe n | f | Enlarged minuscule F / EEE7 |
| F | Fi e | ŗ | Enlarged minuscule insular F |
| f | | r | Insular f / A77C |
| f | | r | Insular f with split top / TBD |
| f | | ŗ | Insular f with dotted hooks / F21C |
| f | | p | Semi-closed insular f / EBD5 |
| f | | p | Closed insular f / EBD6 |
| f | | ŗ | Enlarged minuscule insular f / EEFF |
| f | | f | Narrow f / F000B |
| f | | fi | f with curl / F194 |
| f | | f | Enlarged minuscule f / EEE7 |
| G | Gin | δ | Insular G / A77D |
| G | | ğ | Ormulum G with bar / A7D0 |
| G | | Б | Square G / F10E |
| G | | g | Enlarged minuscule G |
| g | g | δ | Insular g / 1D79 |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|------|------------------|--------|---|
| g | go I | g | Ormulum g with bar / A7D1 |
| g | g s c | g | Script g / 0261 |
| g | gra u | gr | g with curl / F196 |
| g | gen n | g | Enlarged minuscule g / EEE8 |
| g | gn e | δ | Enlarged insular g / TBD |
| g | g C 1 TAG | g | Closed g with separate loops / F21D |
| g | g C 2 TAG ZAG | 8 | Closed g with large lower loop / F21E |
| g | g C 3 TAG TAG | g | Closed g with small lower loop / F21F |
| Н | | þ | Uncial H / F110 |
| Н | | h | Enlarged minuscule H |
| Н | | Н | H with high left stem / TBD |
| h | h d c | h | h with descender / F23A |
| h | ha u | h | h-shaped <i>autem</i> abbreviation / E8A3 |
| h | he n | h | Enlarged minuscule h / EEE9 |
| h | he d | þ | Enlarged minuscule h with descender |
| h | h 🕵 🙇 | b | Caroline a |
| h | he c | b | Enlarged Caroline h / TBD |
| h | h 🖾 🖾 | ħ | Caroline h with right descender and bar / TBD |
| h | h 🕵 🛄 | hr | h with curl / TBD |
| Ι | | İ | I with dot above / 0130 |
| Ι | I d r | Ι | I with descender / A7FE |
| Ι | | i | Enlarged minuscule I |
| Ι | | l | I without serif / TBD |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|------|------------------|--------|--------------------------------|
| i | | 1 | Dotless i / 0131 |
| i | | 1 | Long I / F220 |
| i | i b d | ÷ | i with double bar / E8A1 |
| i | | ij | i final form (when i precedes) |
| i | | j | i final form |
| i | i e n TAG TAG | i | Enlarged minuscule i / EEEA |
| J | J d a | j | J with dot above / E15C |
| J | | j | Enlarged minuscule J |
| j | j 🚮 📠 | J | Dotless j / 0237 |
| j | j S d | j | j with double bar / E8A2 |
| j | j d a | j | j with dot accent / F000D |
| j | j e n | j | Enlarged minuscule j / EEEB |
| K | Ke n | k | Enlarged minuscule K |
| k | | k | Uncial k / F208 |
| k | k II d | ķ | Uncial k with descender / TBD |
| k | | k | Closed k, one / F221 |
| k | k c 2 TAG ZAG | ķ | Closed k, two / F209 |
| k | | k | k with curl / F195 |
| k | k 🕵 n | k | Enlarged minuscule k / EEEC |
| L | | 1 | Enlarged minuscule L |
| 1 | | l | Descending 1 / F222 |
| 1 | | 1 | Enlarged minuscule 1 / EEED |
| 1 | | t | l with high stroke / A749 |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|--------|----------|--------|---|
| 1 | | ľ | l with high stroke ending with flourish / F000F |
| 1 | | l | Insular l |
| U+019A | | ħ | barred l with curl |
| М | M u d | Ŋ | Uncial M with descender / F224 |
| М | | ຒ | Uncial M / F11A |
| М | | N | Epigraphic M / A7FF |
| М | M e n | m | Enlarged minuscule M |
| m | mu | Ŋ | Uncial m with descender / F23D |
| m | | m | Uncial m / F23C |
| m | md | ŋ | m with descender / F223 |
| m | | m | Enlarged minuscule m / EEEE |
| N | N d e | Ŋ | N with descender / F229 |
| N | | n | Enlarged minuscule n / EEEF |
| N | | Ц | N with low bar and descender / TBD |
| n | n 🗟 度 | ŋ | n with descender / F228 |
| n | n 🖻 📠 | ħ | n with bar / E7B2 |
| n | | n | n with curl / F19A |
| n | n 度 👖 | n | Enlarged minuscule n / EEEF |
| n | n 🔊 🗖 | Ν | Small cap n with descender / F22A |
| n | | ŋ | n with attached subscript a |
| n | n 🔤 🛱 | Ζ | Wide petite cap n with descender / TBD |
| n | n 🕵 🏛 | ħ | enim abbreviation / TBD |
| Ο | | 0 | Enlarged minuscule O |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|------|----------|--------|----------------------------------|
| о | | 0 | Enlarged minuscule o / EEF0 |
| Р | Pro E | Р | Reversed P / A7FC |
| Р | Pen n | р | Enlarged minuscule P |
| р | | р | Enlarged minuscule p / EEF1 |
| р | | р | Alternate p for Ormulum |
| Q | | P | Q with stem / F22C |
| Q | | Q | Q with long tail, one |
| Q | | Q_ | Q with long tail, two |
| Q | | q | Enlarged minuscule Q |
| q | q s d | Ŕ | q with diagonal stroke / E8B4 |
| q | | q | Enlarged minuscule q / EEF2 |
| R | R in Inc | n | Insular R / A783 |
| R | | ર | R rotunda / A75A |
| R | | r | Enlarged minuscule R |
| r | | р | Insular r / A782 |
| r | | 2 | r rotunda / A75B |
| r | | r | r with curl / F19B |
| r | | n | r with alternate curl / TBA |
| r | | r | Enlarged minuscule r / EEF3 |
| S | | ŗ | Insular S / A784 |
| S | S S B | 8 | Sigmoid S / A7D8 |
| S | Sa d | S | Ascending and descending S / TBD |
| S | | Ζ | Reverse Z-shaped S / TBD |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|------|------------------|--------|---|
| S | Sen n TAG TAG | S | Enlarged minuscule S |
| S | S S d | 8 | S with diagonal stroke (Sanctus abbrev) |
| S | | ß | Middle Scots S |
| S | | S | Hollow S |
| s | | r | Insular s / A785 |
| s | | r | Insular s with split top / TBD |
| s | S TAG TAG | 8 | Sigmoid s / A7D9 |
| s | S TAG | S | Ascending and descending s / TBD |
| s | S TAG TAG | ſ | Long s / 017F |
| s | S TAG TAG | S | Enlarged minuscule s / EEF4 |
| s | S TAG TAG | ſ | Long s with descender / F127 |
| s | | þ | Long s with flourish / E8B7 |
| s | S TAG TAG | Ý | Long s with diagonal stroke / E8B8 |
| s | | f | Long s with loop |
| s | S TAG TAG | ſ | Long s with short tail / TBD |
| s | S TAG S | ſ | Middle Scots s |
| s | S TAG TAG | ST | s with curl |
| s | S TAG K | Ś | s with hook |
| Т | | С | Insular T / A786 |
| Т | Ten n | t | Enlarged minuscule T |
| t | | τ | Insular t / A787 |
| t | | tī | t with curl / F199 |
| t | | t | Enlarged minuscule t / EEF5 |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|------|---|--------|---|
| t | t 🖸 🗖 | Ţ | Cap-like t with descender / TBD |
| t | | лt | t with approach / TBD |
| U | | u | Enlarged minuscule U |
| U | | U | Lowercase-shaped U |
| U | U | ų | Lowercase-shaped U with descender / TBD |
| u | | u | Enlarged minuscule u / EEF7 |
| V | V_{DAG} | V | Enlarged minuscule V |
| v | | v | Enlarged minuscule v / EEF8 |
| v | V S d TAG | Ŷ | v with diagonal stroke / E8BA |
| v | V $\begin{bmatrix} b \\ TAG \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} a \\ TAG \end{bmatrix}$ | ¥ | v with bar / E74E |
| v | V en n | V | Enlarged minuscule v / EEF8 |
| v | V S 2 TAG ZAG | v₹ | v with two bars / E8BC |
| v | V E TAG | V | Enlarged minuscule v with low point / TBD |
| W | | W | Enlarged minuscule W |
| W | | W | W Anglicana |
| w | W e n | W | Enlarged minuscule w / EEF9 |
| w | W a n | ((3 | w Anglicana |
| р | p re n | р | Enlarged wynn / TBD |
| X | Xe n | Х | Enlarged minuscule X |
| x | X en n | Х | Enlarged minuscule x / EEFA |
| х | X TAG TAG | х | x with long left leg / AB57 |
| x | X S 1 TAG TAG | x | x with diagonal stroke (upper left) / E8BD |
| х | X S 2 TAG TAG | X | x with diagonal stroke (lower right) / E8BE |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|--------|------------------|--------|--|
| х | X S 3 TAG | X | x with two diagonal strokes (lower right) / E8CE |
| Y | Y s d | ¥ | Y with diagonal stroke (Hymnus abbrev) / E8DB |
| Y | Yen n | у | Enlarged minuscule Y |
| у | Y TAG TAG | У | y with main right stroke / F233 |
| У | y b a | У | y with bar / E77B |
| У | y en n | у | Enlarged minuscule y / EEFB |
| У | y c u TAG | Y | Curved y / TBD |
| у | y s c | r | Short curved y / TBD |
| Z | | 8 | Visigothic Z / A762 |
| Z | | Z | Enlarged minuscule Z |
| Z | | 3 | Visigothic z / A763 |
| Z | Z | ђ | Middle High German z / F238 |
| Z | Z en m | Z | Enlarged minuscule z / EEFC |
| U+0104 | Ąs 1 | A | A with short diagonal stroke / F0000 |
| U+0104 | Ąs 2 TAG TAG | A | A with long diagonal stroke / F001E |
| U+0104 | Ą f | Ą | A with flourish / F0002 |
| U+0105 | ą S 1 TAG TAG | ą | a with short diagonal stroke / F0001 |
| U+0105 | ą S 2 TAG TAG | å | a with long diagonal stroke / F001F |
| U+A733 | | æ | Uncial aa |
| U+A733 | | æ | Closed aa / EFA0 |
| U+A733 | | æ | Enlarged minuscule aa / EFDF |
| U+00C6 | Æn | Æ | Neckless Æ / EFAE |
| U+00C6 | Æ | æ | Enlarged minuscule $Æ$ |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|--------|-------------|--------|---|
| U+00E6 | æn e | æ | Neckless æ / EFA1 |
| U+00E6 | æ e n | æ | Enlarged minuscule <i>x</i> / EAF1 |
| U+00E6 | | x | Open æ / F204 |
| U+00E6 | æs q | æ | æ with square a / TBD |
| U+00E6 | | æ | æ with round a / TBD |
| U+00E6 | | æ | Uncial æ |
| U+A734 | | Q | Neckless AO / F205 |
| U+A734 | | æ | Enlarged minuscule AO |
| U+A734 | | æ | Enlarged minuscule AO with smaller O |
| U+A735 | | æ | Enlarged minuscule ao / EFDE |
| U+A735 | 20 E Z | æ | Enlarged minuscule ao with smaller o / EAF2 |
| U+A735 | | Q | Neckless ao / F206 |
| U+A735 | | xo | Uncial ao |
| U+A739 | N Inc E | ð | Neckless av / EFA2 |
| U+0111 | đ 🗗 | ď | d with flourish / F0007 |
| U+00F0 | Ŏ E a | 70 | Enlarged eth alternate form / TBD |
| U+0118 | E | Ę | E with centered ogonek |
| U+0118 | E S L | È | E with diagonal stroke / F0009 |
| U+0118 | ĔĘ | Ę | E with dot, acute, and centered ogonek |
| U+0118 | Ĕ | Ĕ | E with dot, acute, and diagonal stroke |
| U+0119 | ę c e | ę | e with centered ogonek |
| U+0119 | ęs t | ¢ | e with diagonal stroke / F000A |
| U+0119 | ę́ <u>⊾</u> | ę́ | e with dot, acute, and centered ogonek |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|------------|-------------------|--------|---|
| U+0119 | ćs t | ĕ | e with dot, acute, and diagonal stroke |
| &_eogo; | &_eogo; 🔀 🗜 | ి | Combining e with centered ogonek |
| &_eogo; | &_eogo; S tr | ీ | Combining e with diagonal stroke |
| U+021C | | 3 | Yogh with flat top |
| U+021C | | δ | Yogh with insular shape |
| U+021D | 3 The The | 3 | yogh with flat top |
| U+021D | 3 Inc Inc | δ | yogh with insular shape |
| U+014A | ŊĿ | Ŋ | Rounded N with low hook |
| U+014A | Ŋ ŀ b M | ກ | Rounded N with baseline hook |
| U+A7C1 | | Ø | Old Polish o with broken slash / F0011 |
| U+A7C1 | a 2 TAG | Ø | Old Polish o with short slash / F0012 |
| U+A7C1 | A B B TAG | Q | Old Polish o with lower left slash / F0013 |
| U+A7C1 | a 4 TAG | σ | Old Polish o with upper right slash / F0014 |
| U+1E8F | ý s d | ý | Short curved y with dot / TBD |
| U+A765 | | Þ | thorn with stroke with different slant / F149 |
| U+A765/ENG | | Þ | thorn with stroke with different slant |
| U+0241 | | > | Alternate glottal stop / F001B |
| U+204A | | 5 | Tironian et sign later form / F001D |
| U+204A | | £ | Tironian et sign later form with bar |
| U+204A | | Ċ | Tironian et sign without descender / TBD |
| U+204A | | Э | Tironian et sign with bar / TBD |
| U+204A | | e | Tironian et sign round form / TBD |
| U+204A | Ĵ. | Г | Generic Tironian et sign / TBD |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|-----------|------------------------------|--------|--|
| U+204A | | 7 | Generic Tironian et sign with bar / TBD |
| U+204A | | Л | Generic Tironian et sign with curl / TBD |
| U+204A | | ባ | Generic Tironian et sign with curl and bar / TBD |
| U+2E52 | | 7 | Tironian Et sign later form / F001C |
| U+2E52 | | z | Tironian Et sign later form with bar |
| U+2E52 | | Ĵ | Tironian Et sign without descender / TBD |
| U+2E52 | | Э | Tironian Et sign with bar / TBD |
| U+2E52 | | e | Tironian Et sign round form / TBD |
| U+2E52 | | ٦ | Generic Tironian Et sign / TBD |
| U+2E52 | | 7 | Generic Tironian Et sign with bar / TBD |
| U+2E52 | | Л | Generic Tironian Et sign with curl / TBD |
| U+2E52 | | J | Generic Tironian Et sign with curl and bar / TBD |
| U+2E52 | | Ĵ | s-shaped paragraphus / TBD |
| U+2E52 | | Ĵ | cc-shaped paragraphus / TBD |
| U+00AF | | 4 | Spacing zigzag |
| U+035E | The Inc | 0 I | Double macron with serifs |
| U+035E | a <u>2</u> | ୍ଚ | Shorter double macron with serifs |
| U+00B7 | | • | Distinctio / F1F8 |
| U+00B7 | | • | Slightly raised period / TBD |
| comma | , a 1 TAG 1 | 7 | Comma positura / F1E2 |
| comma | , a 2 TAG DAG | 7 | High comma positura / F1E3 |
| semicolon | | ; | Punctus versus / F1EA |
| semicolon | | •7 | Punctus with comma positura / F1E4 |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point | |
|------------|--------------------|--------|--|--|
| semicolon | | :, | Colon with middle comma positura / F1E5 | |
| semicolon | | ;; | Two dots over comma positura / F1F2 | |
| semicolon | ; TAG TAG | ;; | Three dots over comma positura / F1E6 | |
| semicolon | ; TAG 6 TAG TAG | 77 | Punctus with double comma positura / TBD | |
| semicolon | ; a 7 TAG TAG | ⇔ | Hexagonal positura / TBD | |
| semicolon | ; TAG B TAG TAG | :~ | Positura with two dots and tick / TBD | |
| U+2E4E | | ÷ | Punctus elevatus diagonal stroke / F1F0 | |
| U+2E4E | | : | Punctus elevatus with high back / F1FA | |
| U+2E4E | · A BAG BAG | | Punctus elevatus with onset / F1FB | |
| U+2E4E | · a 4 TAG TAG | ? | Punctus flexus / F1F5 | |
| U+2E4E | Z A 5 TAG TAG | J | Dotless punctus elevatus / TBA | |
| U+2E4E | | ÷ | Punctus elevatus with s-shaped top / TBA | |
| U+2E4E | | ~ | Dotless punctus elevatus with s-shaped top / TBA | |
| U+2E4E | | ی ۰ | Enlarged punctus elevatus / TBA | |
| U+2E4E | · TAG P | J | Enlarged dotless punctus elevatus / F1F5 | |
| U+2E4E | | ۲ | Enlarged punctus elevatus with s-shaped top / F1F5 | |
| U+2E4E | | ~ | Enlarged dotless punctus elevatus with s-shaped top / F1F5 | |
| exclam | | ! | Punctus exlamativus / F1E7 | |
| question | | ŗ | Punctus interrogativus / F160 | |
| question | | ĩ | Punctus interrogativus horizontal tilde / F1E8 | |
| question | | ∞ • | Punctus interrogativus lemniskate / F1F1 | |
| asciitilde | | ~ | Wavy line / F1F9 | |
| asciitilde | | 4 | Wavy line / F1F9 | |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|----------|--------------------|---------|---|
| asterisk | | \cdot | Signe de renvoi / F1EC |
| asterisk | * a 2 TAG TAG | * | Aldine asterisk with long limb / F1EC |
| asterisk | * a 3 TAG TAG | * | Five-spoked Aldine asterisk / F1EC |
| asterisk | | * | Eight-spoked Aldine asterisk / F1EC |
| asterisk | * a 5 TAG TAG | * | Dotted Aldine asterisk / F1EC |
| slash | | + | Virgula suspensiva / F1F4 |
| slash | | / | Short virgula / F1F7 |
| hyphen | | 2 | Hyphen with curl / F1F7 |
| U+A75D | | ş | Alternate rum abbreviation / F0016 |
| U+035B | 수 요 🏛 | ් | Combining angular zigzag / F1C7 |
| U+035B | र्ट 🛄 | ి | Combining curly zigzag / F1C8 |
| U+035B | े <u>फ</u> ह | ් | Combining vertical zigzag (tilde) / 033E |
| U+A770 | | 9 | Baseline spacing us abbreviation / F1A6 |
| U+A770 | | 9 | Uppercase us abbreviation / F1A5 |
| U+A76B | 3 TAG TAG | ; | Semicolon-like et abbreviation / F1AC |
| U+A76B | 3 TAG TAG | 3 | Subscript et abbreviation |
| U+A76B | 3 TAG TAG | : | Colon-like et abbreviation / TBD |
| U+A76B | 3 TAG 4 TAG TAG | : | et abbreviation crossing preceding q / TBD |
| U+1DD3 | ් යූ 1 | Ğ | Combining flattened a with macron / F1C1 |
| U+1DD8 | े क् र 1 | ి | Alternate combining insular d / F0005 |
| U+1DE3 | 2 a 1 | õ | Combining ur abbreviation lemniskate / F1C2 |
| U+00E4 | ä | ä | a with diagonal dieresis / E8D5 |
| U+00F6 | ödi | ö | o with diagonal dieresis / E8D7 |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|--------|--------------|--------------------|--|
| U+0308 | ं 🗟 🔛 | ि | Combining diagonal dieresis |
| U+0305 | े क 1 | ା୦ | Combining horizontal stroke with dot / F1C0 |
| U+032E | ુ 🔒 🔝 🖯 | ୍ଚ୍ଚ | Breve below three letters / F1FC |
| U+00A4 | | Ш | Latin as libralis sign / F2E0 |
| U+00A4 | | × | Latin small capital letter x with bar / F2E2 |
| U+00A4 | | ¥ | Latin small capital letter y with bar / F2E3 |
| U+00A4 | | Þ | Latin small capital letter d with slash / F2E4 |
| U+00A4 | | 3 | Pharmaceutical dram sign / F2E6 |
| U+00A4 | | $\ddot{	extsf{v}}$ | Ecu sign / F2E7 |
| U+00A4 | | f | Floren sign with loop / F2E8 |
| U+00A4 | | GR | Groschen sign / F2E9 |
| U+00A4 | | Φ | Helbing sign / F2FB |
| U+00A4 | | ₹ | Krone sign / F2FA |
| U+00A4 | | ŧ₿ | Dutch libra sign / F2EA |
| U+00A4 | | ft | French libra sign / F2EB |
| U+00A4 | | Ð | Italian libra sign / F2EC |
| U+00A4 | | L | Flemish libra sign / F2ED |
| U+00A4 | | Ŀ | Lira nuova sign / F2EE |
| U+00A4 | | £ | Lira sterlina sign / F2EF |
| U+00A4 | | 4 | Old mark sign / F2F0 |
| U+00A4 | | ¥ | Old flourish mark sign / F2F1 |
| U+00A4 | | m¥ | Marked small letter m sign / F2F2 |
| U+00A4 | | ねつ | Flourished small letter m sign / F2F3 |

| Base | Sequence | Result | Description / Code point |
|--------|------------------|--------|-------------------------------------|
| U+00A4 | | C | Pharmaceutical obelus sign / F2F4 |
| U+00A4 | | ifr | Penning sign / F2F5 |
| U+00A4 | | 218 | Old Reichstaler sign / F2F6 |
| U+00A4 | | ß | German schilling sign / F2F7 |
| U+00A4 | C 2 5 TAG TAG | ßl | German script schilling sign / F2F8 |
| U+00A4 | | Z | Scudi sign / F2F9 |
| U+00A4 | | 9 | Script ounce sign / F2FD |
| U+2114 | tb a 1 | tt | French libra sign / F2EB |
| U+00A3 | £ 1 II | Ø | Dutch libra sign / F2EA |
| U+00A3 | £ a 2 TAG TAG | ft | French libra sign / F2EB |
| U+00A3 | £ a 3 TAG TAG | £ | Italian libra sign / F2EC |
| U+00A3 | £ a 4 TAG 4 | Ŀ | Flemish libra sign / F2ED |
| U+00A3 | £ TAG 5 | Ĺ | Lira nuova sign / F2EE |
| U+00A3 | £ TAG 6 TAG | £ | Lira sterlina sign / F2EF |
| U+20B1 | | ifr | Penning sign / F2F5 |
| U+0192 | | ß | Floren sign with loop / F2E8 |
| U+2125 | Z TAG | 9 | Script ounce sign / F2FD |

¹ Junicode entities (like &___a;) following U+A7C1 (Old Polish o) are not properly displayed or resolved for technical reasons related to U+A7C1 having very recently been added to Unicode. However, tags entered directly (as here) or via HTML/XML entity references and TeX commands will still work, and the Junicode entity will work once applications are updated with the latest additions to the Unicode standard.

6. Transcribing records

This chapter provides guidance for persons transcribing records (laws and other public documents) in the style of Charles Trice Martin's *The Record Interpreter*, *Statutes of the Realm*, and similar guides and editions. Unlike most editions of early texts, these retain (or recommend retaining) the capitalization, punctuation, and abbreviations of their manuscript sources.

6.1. A preliminary note on transcription

Here are a few observations, based on a long career as a scholarly editor of medieval and eighteenth-century texts.

Before embarking on the task of transcribing an old document, ask yourself what value you want to add to the document as it already exists, because different kinds of transcription add different kinds of value. The kind of transcription that adds the least is that which aims at the exact *visual* reproduction of a document. A transcript is not a facsimile: it needs to do something that a photograph can't do.

Converting a document from visual image to Unicode-encoded text adds a good bit of value all by itself, but only if done with due regard for the semantics of Unicode characters. Every Unicode character has a meaning, and that meaning is a help to readers. Using the wrong character is a hinderance to readers, even it if *looks* right.

For example, in transcribing a Middle English text, you may decide that the Unicode ezh (3, U+0292) looks more like the yogh in your source than the Unicode yogh (3, U+021D) and therefore decide to use it for yogh. But the ezh is not a yogh! It is a character in the International Phonetic Alphabet and a

letter in the alphabets of several minor languages—but not a letter in the Middle English language. If you use it where the yogh is called for, it will make your text less accessible and less searchable. Indexing, concordance and bibliographical programs may be misled by it; screen readers will misinterpret it. To solve one problem (that of visual representation), you may well have introduced a host of far more serious problems.

Fortunately, Junicode offers a solution for this particular problem. The Open-Type feature cv63 substitutes for the yogh a character that *looks* like the ezh but is semantically a yogh and therefore will be handled correctly by applications. But neither Junicode nor any other font can solve every problem of this kind. Sometimes you will have to call to mind the important principle stated above: *A transcript is not a facsimile*. It is much more important that it should have the same *meaning* as the original than that it should have the same *look*.

This chapter concerns the transcription of texts in Latin (and to some extent, other archaic languages, e.g. Old and Middle English, Old French). It is long-standing custom, when transcribing certain kinds of documents, to retain marks of abbreviation—for example, the p^b you may find in a manuscript or printed edition representing the word *propterea*. This is okay—and Junicode can help with the task. But when dealing with the abbreviations, punctuation, and diacritics of an old text it is more important than ever that you use semantically correct characters for your transcription, as this will help readers who already face significant challenges.

For example, the abbreviation \mathbf{p}^{a} as printed here consists of an underlying sequence of Unicode characters: \mathbf{p} (U+A753, the common abbreviation for *pro*) + $\mathbf{p} + a^{a}$ (U+0363, the combining small *a*). The OpenType feature hlig (Historical Ligatures) has been applied to this sequence, changing its appearance but not its underlying value. That underlying value is intelligible to computer applications in the sense that they can recognize each character.

This doesn't mean, though, that computer programs can correctly interpret p as *propterea*. Many (probably *most*) Latin abbreviations are ambiguous: this one, for example, can mean *propterea* or *propria*. Some abbreviations (most notoriously o U+035B) can mean many things, depending on context. It takes a human being with a knowledge of Latin to interpret them correctly.

So another way you can add value in your transcript is by interpreting ab-

66 TRANSCRIBING RECORDS

breviations like p^b and supplying expansions of them. Fortunately, systems for representing texts often offer ways to handle this task gracefully. For example, in a TEI (Text Encoding Initiative) text, you would use this construction:

<choice>

```
<abbr rend="hlig">m²</abbr>
<expan>propterea</expan>
</choice>
```

This kind of structure can be approximated in HTML, with supporting CSS and scripting to allow readers to choose between a "diplomatic" version, with unexpanded abbreviations, and a "reading" version, with expanded abbreviations and perhaps other amenities, such as modern punctuation and capitalization.

There are other ways to add value to a transcript—for example, by correcting errors, annotating the content, or writing textual notes. Each of these operations takes your transcript farther from the facsimile and closer to the edition.

6.2. Common combining marks

A combining mark is a character that combines with another character (called the base) to form a character with accent (e.g. \acute{e}) or an abbreviation (e.g. \acute{p} for *prae*). Unicode and the Medieval Unicode Font Initiative (MUFI) offer code points for many precomposed combinations of base + combining mark, but it is also possible to place any mark over any base character by entering first the base and then the combining mark. It is also possible to place a combining mark over another combining mark. For example, to produce $\frac{\ddot{q}}{q}$, enter this sequence: q (U+0071) + U+0363 + U+0304.

Junicode 2 contains many variants of combining marks: for example the curly zigzag \Im is a variant of Unicode's angular zigzag \Im (U+035B), produced by applying the OpenType feature cv81[2] to both the base character and the combining mark. Sometimes the combination of base + combining mark + OpenType feature will not produce the desired effect. When this happens, place U+034F (a special invisible combining mark, included in Unicode for exactly this purpose) between the base and the (visible) mark.

a. For a straight stroke over any letter, use the COMBINING MACRON (U+0304):
ōnis omnis; omīs omnis; dāpna dampna; dampa dampna.

The combining macron can also be applied above superscripts and combining marks. Apply the OpenType feature cv84[33] for a narrower macron:

antiquā antiquam; a quam.

For the superscript *a*, use the OpenType feature sups (see r. below).

b. For a straight stroke through a tall letter, use the COMBINING SHORT STROKE OVERLAY (U+0335): **f** d **t**. But Unicode also has precomposed versions of **d**, **l** and other characters with stroke, e.g. d (U+0111), **t** (U+019A).

c. For ~ above any character, use the COMBINING TILDE (U+0303):

ã *ac, apud*; ã *alias.* dñs *dominus*; cařina *carmina*; fčis *factis.* põita *posita*.

d. For ~ through a vertical stroke, use the TILDE OVERLAY (U+0334): $\frac{1}{2}$ d (U+0303 would be positioned above the letter, e.g. \tilde{l} , \tilde{d}). For the ligatures $\frac{1}{2}$, $\frac{1}{2}$

e. For the tilde positioned above two letters, use COMBINING DOUBLE TILDE (U+0360) between the letters. It is automatically repositioned to clear tall characters: \overline{co} to \overline{do} ol. The same is true of DOUBLE BREVE (U+035D) \overline{co} do, DOUBLE MACRON (U+035E) \overline{co} do, DOUBLE INVERTED BREVE (U+0361) \widehat{co} do, and DOUBLE CIRCUMFLEX (U+1DCD) \widehat{co} do.

f. The figure used to represent *er* (and other similar combinations) is a common medieval abbreviation which takes many forms. The semantically correct Unicode character is the COMBINING ZIGZAG (Å, U+035B), but the best match in Junicode 2 for the figure as it appears in the *Record Interpreter* and the *Statutes* is a gothic variant of this, which MUFI encodes as U+F1C8 (the curly form zigzag). However, because for technical reasons many applications will not position the MUFI character correctly over the base, that code point should be avoided. The best way to access this variant is to apply cv81[2] to U+035B, as here:

debe debere; int inter; Prū ferrum; gro generatio; p; prae; serue servire.

68 TRANSCRIBING RECORDS

The curly form of the combining zigzag may be attached to any letter, and it may change shape depending on the letter it is attached to (including caps, for which use the case feature, and small caps: \overrightarrow{ABCB}).

g. All letters a–z, and several others too, have combining forms. You may access these via their code points, when they are standard Unicode, via the cv84 feature, or via Junicode's special entity references. For details, see 4.10.3, Character Entities for Combining Marks.

å quo; أ qui; quatt quattuor.

6.3. Spacing characters

h. The symbol for *is*, *es* and a number of other abbreviations is the IS-SIGN (U+A76D):

forf foris; omf omnes; 9tf competentes; inff infortunium.

This character will sometimes ligature with the preceding letter. The italic version differs from the roman stylistically (*for*? om? gt? *inf*?), but it will be intelligible to informed readers.

i. There are two characters for *-us* in Unicode: SPACING US U+A770 (do not confuse this with CON U+A76F) and COMBINING US U+1DD2. The *Record Interpreter* and *Statutes* appear to use only the spacing character:

ipi' ipsius; ils' uersus; p'tea postea; p' post.

j. The three-like sign is the ET SIGN (3, U+A76B, also used for *us* in the Latin ending *-ibus*). Do not use the numeral three (3) or the Middle English yogh (3, U+021D):

quib3 quibus; lic3 licet; s3 sed.

k. For *-rum* the Unicode RUM ROTUNDA (U+A75D) is like the one in MUFI/Junicode. The one in the *Record Interpreter* and *Statutes* is a late stylized version of this. Use U+A75D and apply OpenType feature cv80 to obtain the correct shape:

aĩaz animarum; cozpere corrumpere; beatoz beatorum.

1. For *cum*, *con*, etc. use SMALL LETTER CON (U+A76F):

9putus computus; 9a contra; 9nouit cognouit.

m. For *per* (or sometimes *par* and other similar sequences), use P WITH STROKE U+A751:

psoa persona; 9pet comparet.

n. For *pro*, use P with FLOURISH U+A753:

pceres proceres.

o. For *prae*, *præ*, *pre*, there is no separate character; use a variant of the ZIGZAG (f. above) with **p**:

pses praesens.

p. For **q** with stroke through the descender, there are two Unicode points: U+A757 for a straight stroke, and U+A759 for a diagonal stroke (the *Record Inter-preter* appears to use only the former, and neither is listed among the *Statutes* abbreviations):

q quod; qd quid; qb3 quibus.

q. For *quae*, *que*, use **q** followed by ET (U+A76B) with or without hlig: **q3 q3**. For the semicolon-like ET sign (**q**;), use cv83[1]; for the subscripted version (which can also form a ligature via hlig), use cv83[2]: **q3 q3**.

r. All of the letters a-z are available in superscript form. Access with the **sups** OpenType feature:

q^os quos; cⁱlo circulo; capⁱ capituli.

The basic Latin letters a–z have anchors that allow you to position combining marks over them (see a. above)

s. Tironian ET sign] U+204A, cap] U+2E52. With cv69[1] τζ; with cv69[2] τζ.

t. For *est*, use ∻ U+223В номотнетис. Use of a mathematical sign for this purpose is not ideal, but Unicode offers no better solution.

u. For *tz* (Old French), use **z** U+01B6 z WITH STROKE.

v. For an abbreviation for *Rex*, use **R** U+211E or **R** U+211F.

w. At least one edition uses a spacing version of the COMBINING ZIGZAG (**f.** above). Neither Unicode nor MUFI has a matching character: with Junicode, apply cv67 to the spacing MACRON (U+00AF): ⁵.

6.4. Other formatting

x. For underdotted text, use Stylistic Set 7, Underdotted. For letters that lack an underdotted form, use U+0323 COMBINING DOT BELOW.

6.5. On the web

Because Junicode is a very large font, web pages should use a subsetted version to speed loading (see Chapter 9, Junicode on the Web, for instructions). The variable version of the font is better for web use than the static fonts, since one variable font file can do the work of many static font files.

All major web browsers (Firefox, Chrome, Safari, Edge) are capable of accessing all of Junicode's characters via OpenType features, use of which promotes accessibility and searchability. When building a web page, study which features will be needed and write them into the appropriate element or class definition of the page's CSS style sheet. For example, if you use the curly form of the zigzag (U+035B) anywhere, you are likely to want it everywhere, and so it should be included in the CSS styling for the <body> element:

```
body {
  font-family: Junicode;
  font-feature-settings: "cv81" 2;
}
```

But the hlig feature, if applied to the whole text, will produce many unwanted effects, so it should be included in a class definition to be used in a applied just to the target sequence:

```
JUNICODE 71
.que {
  font-feature-settings: "hlig" on;
}
filio<span class="que">q&#xA76B;</span>
```

The illustrations here use the low-level CSS font-feature-settings property. There are higher-level properties for some OpenType features, but as these are not (yet) universally supported by browsers, and some implementations are buggy, it is best to stick with font-feature-settings for now.

For the purposes addressed in this document, the font-feature-settings for the <body> element should probably be as follows:

```
font-feature-settings: 'cv69' 2, 'cv80' 1, 'cv81' 2;
```

And the following classes should be defined:

```
.super {
  font-feature-settings: 'sups' on, 'cv84' 39;
}
.que {
  font-feature-settings: 'hlig' on;
}
.deleted {
  font-feature-settings: 'ss07' on;
}
```

7. The Enlarge Axis

The character recommendation of the Medieval Unicode Font Initiative (MUFI) includes a class of characters called "Enlarged Minuscules," for representing characters that are lowercase in shape but intermediate between lowercase and uppercase in size: these are often used to begin sentences in medieval manuscripts. MUFI encodes these characters in the Private Use Area, posing accessibility and searchability problems, as explained in the introduction to the "Feature Reference" chapter of this manual.

Junicode provides a solution to these problems via the OpenType feature Stylistic Set 6 (sso6, "Enlarged minuscules"). This feature also works in Junicode VF, the variable version of Junicode, which in addition offers a far more flexible way of representing enlarged minuscules—the Enlarge axis.

An "axis" is an aspect of a font that can be varied along a numerical range. A family of traditional fonts like Times New Roman has a weight axis with a font file on either end: Regular and Bold. Other font families have more weights along this axis: for example, Light, Medium, ExtraBold. Most variable fonts also have a weight axis, but all weights are contained in a single file, and users are not restricted to just a few weights, but can select any weight between the extremes.

Because almost every font family has at least two weights, Weight is the most familiar axis. But several other axes are frequently found in both variable fonts and extended font families. Junicode has Weight and Width axes (Width varying from 75 Condensed to 125 Expanded, with 100 Regular in the middle), and the variable font also has an Enlarge axis, which can vary the size of many lowercase letters from that of the font's capitals to that of the lowercase letters: Just as the size of these sentence-initial letters varies widely in manuscripts, so it can vary on web pages and in print (though few applications for producing

Oñs Oñs Oñs Oñs dñs

printed documents currently support variable fonts). Notice that the letters are not simply scaled: the proportions change and the weight remains consistent (a lowercase letter scaled up would look too heavy, but a letter scaled via the Enlarged axis will have its original weight at the lower end of the axis and the same weight as a capital at the top).

The Enlarge axis runs from 0 to 100. You can choose any number in that range: to match the effect of sso6 precisely, choose 32. To ensure that the xheight of all letters matches, choose 47 or less: above that value, the xheight of letters like **e** increases at a higher rate than that of letters like **b**.

To use the axis in a web page, declare a CSS class specifying the value for the axis. For example, the second of the examples in the figure above has the axis set to 75:

```
.SentenceInitial {
  font-variation-settings: "wght" 400, "wdth" 100, "ENLA" 75;
}
```

In the text, enclose the first letter of a sentence in a with the class "SentenceInitial" (the entity is for insular d):

ꝺñs

The result will be an abbreviation that begins with an "Enlarged Minuscule" insular d, precisely matching the look of the second example in the figure above.

These lowercase letters are affected by the Enlarge axis:¹

| a → a | $x \to x$ | $\infty \rightarrow \infty$ | $y \rightarrow y$ | $\mathfrak{d} \to \mathfrak{d}$ | $e \rightarrow e$ |
|-----------------------------------|-----------------------------|-------------------------------|-------------------|---------------------------------|-------------------|
| $\lambda \ \rightarrow \ \lambda$ | $x \rightarrow x$ | $a \rightarrow a$ | $b \rightarrow b$ | $9 \rightarrow 9$ | $e \rightarrow e$ |
| $a \rightarrow a$ | $\infty \rightarrow \infty$ | $x \rightarrow x$ | $c \rightarrow C$ | $\eth \to \varPhi$ | $e \rightarrow e$ |
| $a \rightarrow b a$ | $\omega \rightarrow \omega$ | $\mathscr{X} \to \mathscr{X}$ | $d \rightarrow d$ | $\eth\to \eth$ | $e \rightarrow e$ |

¹ Note that all composite characters (e.g. \dot{a} , \ddot{u}) based on these are also affected, so that the actual number of affected characters is much greater than shown here.

74 THE ENLARGE AXIS

| $\phi \rightarrow \phi$ | $\hbar \rightarrow \hbar$ | $n \rightarrow n$ | $p \rightarrow p$ | $s \rightarrow S$ | $z \rightarrow Z$ |
|---------------------------------|---------------------------------|-------------------------------------|---|-------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|
| $f \rightarrow f$ | $\mathfrak{h} \to \mathfrak{h}$ | $o \rightarrow 0$ | $\mathbb{P} \to \mathbb{P}$ | $r \rightarrow f$ | $\flat \rightarrow \flat$ |
| $f \rightarrow f$ | i → İ | $\theta \rightarrow \theta$ | $\dot{\boldsymbol{\Phi}} \to \boldsymbol{\hat{\Phi}}$ | $t \rightarrow t$ | |
| $r \rightarrow r$ | $1 \rightarrow 1$ | $\sigma \rightarrow 0$ | $p \rightarrow p$ | $\tau \rightarrow \tau$ | $\flat \rightarrow \flat$ |
| $g \rightarrow g$ | j → j | $\mathbf{q} \rightarrow \mathbf{q}$ | $q \rightarrow q$ | $u \rightarrow u$ | $p \rightarrow p$ |
| $a \rightarrow b$ | J → J | $\Theta \rightarrow \Theta$ | $\Phi \to \Phi$ | $v \rightarrow v$ | |
| $\xi \rightarrow \xi$ | $k \rightarrow k$ | $\infty \rightarrow \infty$ | $r \rightarrow r$ | $\mathbf{w} \rightarrow \mathbf{W}$ | $ ^{\flat} \rightarrow ^{\flat} $ |
| $h \rightarrow h$ | $1 \rightarrow 1$ | $\phi \rightarrow \phi$ | $p \rightarrow p$ | $p \rightarrow p$ | |
| $\mathfrak{h} \to \mathfrak{h}$ | $i \rightarrow i$ | $\phi \rightarrow \phi$ | $2 \rightarrow 2$ | $x \rightarrow X$ | $ \not \rightarrow $ |
| $b \rightarrow b$ | $m \rightarrow M$ | $\infty \rightarrow \infty$ | $2 \rightarrow 2$ | $y \rightarrow y$ | $ \flat \to \flat$ |

8. Junicode on the Web

If you are using Junicode on a web page, you should prefer the variable fonts (those with "VF" in the family name and filename) to the static fonts. One variable font file can do the work of many traditional font files. For example, the Test of High-Level CSS Properties web page displays Junicode in regular, bold and semicondensed styles. It used to be that your user would have to download three font files, one for each style, but one variable font will display all three.

But you may be thinking, *That font is big*! It's true: even the compressed webfont (.woff2) is nearly a megabyte in size—enough to seriously slow down the loading of a web page.

To solve this problem, you'll need to subset the font—that is, produce a copy that contains only what you need. The subsetted font that downloads with the property test web page is approximately 275k in size—almost thirty percent of the size of the full webfont. It's still a pretty big download, but that's because the page displays a lot of the font's features. If I were displaying, say, a diplomatic transcript of a Latin text, the font would be much smaller.

So the first section of this chapter will talk about how to subset the Junicode font.

8.1. Subsetting Junicode

First the legalities. It is perfectly all right to create a modified version of Junicode via subsetting, compress it into a webfont (almost certainly in woff2 format), and host it on your web server. This is because "Junicode" is not a "Reserved Font Name" (which complicates web use of many fonts licensed under the Open Font License). If you are nevertheless nervous about the legal requirements of the

76 JUNICODE ON THE WEB

Open Font License, you can change the font name to something arbitrary with the --obfuscate-names option of the pyftsubset program, and you can embed the Open Font License, or a link to it, in your CSS. These steps should settle any ambiguity about whether you are in compliance with the license.

Generating a subsetted version of Junicode should be one of the last tasks you perform before deploying your web page(s). Until then, it is recommended that you work with the unmodified font. After subsetting, review your pages thoroughly to make sure everything is displayed properly. If you have forgotten to include a glyph in your subsetted font, you will see little boxes where characters should be or, perhaps, the correct characters displayed in the wrong typeface. If you have omitted features, you will see default instead of transformed characters.

There are many subsetting programs, some online and very easy to use. But for maximum control (and thus the smallest fonts), you should choose pyftsubset, a part of the fontTools library, which runs under Python 3.7 or higher. This is a command-line tool which takes a long list of arguments; you should create a shell script to run it.

Here is the script used to create the subsetted font for the property test web page mentioned above:

```
#!/bin/zsh
pyftsubset JunicodeVF-Roman.ttf \
--flavor=woff2 --output-file=JunicodeVFsubset.woff2 \
--recommended-glyphs \
--text="jq" --text-file=Junicode-2-feature-test.html \
--layout-features+=liga,sso1,sso2,sso3,sso4,sso5,sso6,sso7,sso8,\
ss10,ss12,ss13,ss14,ss15,ss16,ss17,ss18,ss19,ss20,cv01,cv02,cv05,\
cv06,cv07,cv08,cv09,cv10,dlig,hlig,onum,pnum,pcap,smcp,c2sc,subs,\
sups,zero \
--layout-features-=rlig
```

For those unfamiliar with shell scripts, the first line specifies the shell the script is to run under (in this case the default shell for Mac OS, but bash is another possible choice), and the backslashes mean that the command continues on the next line. The rest of the file is a list of arguments passed to pyftsubset. Let's walk through them.

First after the program name comes the name of the unsubsetted, uncompressed font file. After that, the --flavor argument tells the program that you want a webfont in woff2 format, and --output is the name of the font file you want the program to save.

Having taken care of this preliminary business, we tell pyftsubset what we want the font to contain.

--recommended-glyphs includes a few characters that every font should have, according to the OpenType specification—though in fact modern browsers don't care. It's best, however, to conform to the specification, since it's impossible to say with absolute certainty that no program will ever reject the font because of the absence of these few characters.

--text-file is the name of a file to treat as a list of characters that *must* be included in the font. In this case I have simply used the html file for the web page for this purpose. If your site contains multiple web pages, your job will be more complicated. You must make sure the text file contains all the characters used on the site—either that or supplement the text file with a --text argument (which here adds two lowercase letters that don't appear in the web page—just in case). The text file will contain only encoded characters—you don't have to worry here about unencoded characters produced by OpenType features.

--layout-features+ tells the program which OpenType features you want to retain in the font. All others, except for the Required Features, are discarded. All of the characters referenced in these features will also be included in the output file, as long as those characters are variants of characters in your text file. For example, the smcp (Small Caps) feature has many more small caps than there are letters of the alphabet, but most of them are not included in the subsetted font. The program's parsimony with characters keeps the font file as small as possible. Note that some features are included automatically: ccmp, locl, calt, liga, rlig, kern, mark, and mkmk.

--layout-features- tells the program which OpenType features to omit. Normally, rlig (Required Ligtures) is automatically included in fonts by pyftsubset, but as it has no relevance to this web page, it can be omitted.

These are the most useful arguments, but there are many more. Type pyftsubset --help for a complete list. Once you have written your script, run it (in Mac OS or Linux you need to make the file executable by typing chmod +x

78 JUNICODE ON THE WEB

mysubsetscript on the command line).

Before you put your subsetted font to work, check it carefully in a program like FontGoggles, which lets you preview the font and test all its OpenType features. If you find errors, revise your script and run it again.

8.2. Junicode and CSS/HTML

This section assumes a basic knowledge of HTML (Hypertext Markup Language, used to construct web pages) and CSS (Cascading Style Sheets, used to format them). If you want to learn about these subjects, the number of good books and online tutorials is so great that it makes no sense to try to list them. Just make sure that the instructional materials you choose are of recent vintage, because the relevant standards are always changing.

In the CSS for your web page, the @font-face at-rule for a variable font is a little different from the one for a static font in that the range of possible values for each axis can be declared:

```
@font-face {
    font-family: "Junicode VF";
    src: url("./webfiles/JunicodeVFsubset.woff2");
    font-weight: 300 700;
    font-stretch: 75% 125%;
    font-style: normal;
}
```

These ranges are not strictly necessary, but they will prevent your supplying invalid values for font-weight and font-stretch (that is, width) in other CSS rules.

Once you have declared the font, you can invoke it in setting up classes. For example:

```
body {
  font-family: "Junicode VF";
  font-size: 28px;
  font-weight: normal; /* that is, 400 */
```

```
font-stretch: 112.5%; /* that is, semiexpanded */
}
h1 {
font-family: "Junicode VF";
font-size: 125%;
font-weight: 600; /* that is, semibold */
font-stretch: 112.5%; /* that is, semiexpanded */
}
.annotation {
font-size: 90%;
font-weight: 300; /* that is, light */
font-stretch: 87.5%; /* that is, semicondensed */
}
```

These classes should be tested in all browsers. If any fail to display text properly, you can use font-variation-settings instead of the high-level font-weight and font-stretch:

```
body {
  font-family: "Junicode VF";
  font-size: 28px;
  font-variation-settings: "wght" 400, "wdth" 112.5;
}
h1 {
  font-family: "Junicode VF";
  font-size: 125%;
  font-variation-settings: "wght" 600, "wdth" 112.5;
}
.annotation {
  font-size: 90%;
  font-variation-settings: "wght" 300, "wdth" 87.5;
}
```

To accommodate older browsers, you should make a selection of Junicode static fonts, subset them, and include them in your CSS. For example, if you need normal and bold weights of Junicode roman, your @font-face at-rule may look like this:

```
@font-face {
    font-family: "Junicode VF";
    src: url("./webfiles/JunicodeVFsubset.woff2");
    font-weight: 300 700;
    font-stretch: 75% 125%;
    font-style: normal;
}
@font-face {
    font-family: "Junicode";
    src: url("./webfiles/Junicode-Regular.woff2");
    font-weight: 400;
    font-style: normal;
}
@font-face {
    font-family: "Junicode";
    src: url("./webfiles/Junicode-Bold.woff2");
    font-weight: 700;
    font-style: normal;
}
```

Now use asupports in your CSS rules to determine which font gets downloaded:

```
body {
  font-family: "Junicode", serif;
}
@supports (font-variation-settings: normal) {
  body {
    font-family: "Junicode VF", serif;
  }
}
b {
  font-weight: 700;
}
@supports (font-variation-settings: "wght" 700) {
  b {
    font-variation-settings: "wght" 700;
  }
```

}

The variable version of Junicode will be downloaded only if the browser supports it, and the static version will be downloaded only if needed.

9. Junicode and T_{EX}

9.1. Loading the packages

There are packages for both Junicode (the static font) and Junicode VF (the variable font) in CTAN, the TEX repository, and also in the TEX Live distribution (run tlmgr to get them). Both static and variable versions have a convenient script for loading and managing the font: use \usepackage{junicode} for the static font and \usepackage{junicodevf} for the variable font (which requires LuaTEX). These commands accept several options commonly used in font packages:

light The weight of the type for the main text is light instead of regular.

- medium The weight of the type for the main text is medium, somewhat heavier than regular.
- **semibold** The weight of bold type is somewhat lighter than the usual bold. This may be a good choice if you have selected the light option.
- **condensed** The width of the type is narrow. Note that in the static font, bold type cannot be condensed: when this option is selected, any bold type in the text will have normal width.
- semicondensed The width of the type is wider than condensed but narrower than the default. In the static font, bold type cannot be semicondensed.
- **expanded** The width of the type is about 125%. Note that in the static font, light type cannot be expanded: using both the light and the expanded options will produce an error.

semiexpanded The width of the type is wider than the default but narrower than expanded. In the static font, light type cannot be semiexpanded.

proportional Numbers in the document will be proportionally spaced. This is the default.

tabular Numbers will be tabular (or monospaced).

oldstyle Numbers will be old-style, harmonizing with lowercase letters.

lining Numbers will be lining, harmonizing with uppercase letters.

With the variable font, terms like "light" and "semibold" (and, for that matter, "regular") do not denote a fixed shape the way they do with the static font, but rather a range of weights and widths that vary with the point size. You can see these variations if we scale a line of footnote text and a line of header text to the same \large size:

Here is some sample text for footnotes (about 8pt).

Here is some sample text for headers (18pt or larger).

The glyphs for footnote text are heavier and wider than those for headers, recalling the way punchcutters in the era of metal type often designed small sizes to be relatively thicker and wider than main text or titles. This promoted legibility at small sizes and also evenness of color on pages with diverse text blocks.

Junicode VF provides vastly more flexibility than static Junicode, starting with two options that go with the weight and width options listed above:

- weightadjustment Adjusts the weight of the type by adding this number. For example, if you choose medium for your document (weight averaging about 500) and bold (weight around 700), and also include the option weightadjustment=-25, then the weights of medium and bold text will be lightened by 25 (to 475 and 675).
- widthadjustment Adjusts the width of the type by adding this number. For example, if you choose semicondensed for your document (width averaging 87.5), and you also include the option widthadjustment=5, then the average width will be 92.5, between semicondensed and regular.

84 JUNICODE AND $T_{E}x$

9.2. Advanced Options

If you are using the variable font and the basic options listed above don't yield the results you want, the options listed in this section allow you to choose from an effectively infinite number of styles. Do this by supplying custom axis coordinates for one or more of the four basic styles of the main text (Regular, Italic, Bold, BoldItalic) via package options called SizeFeatures. For example, here are the SizeFeatures for this document:

```
\usepackage[
    MainRegularSizeFeatures={
        {size=8.6,wght=550,wdth=120},
        {size=10.99,wght=475,wdth=115},
        {size=21.59,wght=400,wdth=112.5},
        {size=21.59,wght=351,wdth=100}
    },
   MainItalicSizeFeatures={
        {size=8.6,wght=550,wdth=118},
        {size=10.99,wght=475,wdth=114},
        {size=21.59,wght=450,wdth=111},
        {size=21.59,wght=372,wdth=98}
    },
    MainBoldSizeFeatures={
        {size=8.6,wght=700,wdth=120},
        {size=10.99,wght=700,wdth=115},
        {size=21.59,wght=650,wdth=112.5},
        {size=21.59,wght=600,wdth=100}
    },
   MainBoldItalicSizeFeatures={
        {size=8.6,wght=700,wdth=118},
        {size=10.99,wght=700,wdth=114},
        {size=21.59,wght=650,wdth=111},
        {size=21.59,wght=600,wdth=98}
    }
]{junicodevf}
```

These options consist of lists of associative arrays, each prescribing axis coordinates for a range of sizes. In these arrays, the size key is mandatory: any array without one is ignored. The arrays should be in order of point size. The first

array prescribes axis coordinates for all sizes up to size, the last array for all sizes greater than size, and any intermediate arrays a range from the previous to the current size.¹ So the ranges covered in each list above are -8.6, 8.6-10.99, 10.99-21.59, and 21.59-.²

The keys other than size are the four-letter tags for the font's axes: wght (Weight), wdth (Width), and ENLA (Enlarge).³ When a key is omitted, the default value for that axis is used. It is up to the user to make sure the values given for each axis are valid—the package does no checking (though fontspec will do a good bit of checking for you). When SizeFeatures are given in this way, they override any other options that set or change axis coordinates (e.g. weightadjustment).

The SizeFeatures options can only set axis coordinates; with the Features options you can set OpenType features for the main text or for the four main styles individually.

For example, if you want your document to use the conventions observed by early English typesetters for the distribution of **s** and **f**, load the package this way:

```
\usepackage[MainFeatures={
    Language=English,
    StylisticSet=8
}]{junicodevf}
```

If you want to use these conventions only for text in the regular style, use Main-RegularFeatures instead of MainFeatures. For the other styles, use MainItalicFeatures, MainBoldFeatures, and MainBoldItalicFeatures. All of the features you pass via these options must be valid for fontspec: in fact, they are passed straight through to fontspec.

¹ If you want only one size array, make size improbably low (e.g. 5) and place a comma after the closing brace of the array.

² Any modification of the default text size (e.g. in the \documentclass command) can affect the size definitions in these arrays, with the result that (for example) 10 no longer means exactly "ten points." You may have to experiment to get these numbers right.

³ By convention, tags for axes defined in the OpenType standard are lowercase; custom axes are uppercase. Junicode's ENLA is a custom axis.

86 JUNICODE AND $T_{E}x$

9.3. Selecting Alternate Styles

In addition to the document's main font, you can choose from up to fifty predefined styles—thirty-eight if you are using the static font (in the list below, styles available only to variable font users are red). The commands for shifting to these styles are as follows (of the italic styles, only the base "jItalic" is listed; append "Italic" to any of the others, except "jRegular"):

| ∖jRegular | \jSmExpLight | \jSmCondSmbold |
|---------------|----------------|----------------|
| \jItalic | \jExpLight | \jSmExpSmbold |
| \jCond | \jMedium | \jExpSmbold |
| \jSmCond | \jCondMedium | \jBold |
| ∖jSmExp | \jSmCondMedium | \jCondBold |
| ∖jExp | \jSmExpMedium | 5 |
| \jLight | ∖jExpMedium | \jSmCondBold |
| \jCondLight | \jSmbold | \jSmExpBold |
| \jSmCondLight | \jCondSmbold | \jExpBold |

These commands will be self-explanatory if you bear in mind Junicode's abbreviations for style names: Cond=Condensed, Exp=Expanded, Sm=Semi.⁴ Use them to shift temporarily to a style other than that of the main text. For example, to shift to the Condensed Light style for a short phrase, use this code:

```
{\jCondLight a short phrase}.
```

The result: a short phrase.

To add features to any of these styles (variable font only), use the style name (without the prefixed "j" and with Features appended) as a package option. To change the size features for the style, do the same, but with SizeFeatures instead of Features appended:

```
\usepackage[
    CondLightFeatures={
    Language=English,
```

⁴ The purpose of these abbreviations is to keep font names under the character-limit imposed by some systems.

```
JUNICODE 87
StylisticSet=2
},
CondLightSizeFeatures={{size=5,wght=325,wdth=80},}
]{junicodevf}
```

This will shift text in the Condensed Light style from default to insular lettershapes and slightly increase the weight and width of all glyphs in that style. Here the SizeFeatures section is very simple (as in the package file itself), but you can have as many size ranges as you want, just as you can for the main font.

9.4. The Enlarge Axis

The variable package defines four different styles for Junicode VF's Enlarge axis, in four sizes:

| Not Enlarged | abc | abc |
|----------------|-----|-----|
| \EnlargedOne | abc | abc |
| \EnlargedTwo | abc | abc |
| \EnlargedThree | abc | abc |
| \EnlargedFour | abc | abc |

You can produce an italic version of the enlarged minuscule by appending "Italic" to the style name. You can also customize these styles with SizeFeatures:

```
\usepackage[
    EnlargedThreeSizeFeatures={{size=5,ENLA=85},}
]{junicodevf}
```

This example will set all axes except for ENLA to their default coordinates. You can, of course, define other axes, and, as with Junicode's other SizeFeatures options, as many size arrays as you like. Features options are not available for the Enlarged styles.

88 JUNICODE AND $T_{E}X$

9.5. Other Commands

The font packages' other commands (listed in the following table) are offered as conveniences, being shorter and more mnemonic than the fontspec commands they invoke (though of course all fontspec commands remain available). Each of these commands also has a corresponding "text" command that works like **\textit{}**—that is, it takes as its sole argument the text to which the command will be applied. Each "text" command consists of the main command with "text" prefixed—for example, **\textInsularLetterForms{}** corresponding to **\InsularLetterForms**. For a fuller account of the OpenType features applied by these commands, see Chapter 4, Feature Reference.

| \AltThornEth | Applies sso1, Alternate thorn and eth. |
|------------------------|--|
| \InsularLetterForms | Applies sso2, Insular letter-forms. |
| \IPAAlternates | Applies sso3, IPA alternates. |
| \HighOverline | Applies sso4, High Overline. |
| \MediumHighOverline | Applies sso5, Medium-high Overline. |
| \EnlargedMinuscules | Applies sso6, Enlarged minuscules. |
| \Underdotted | Applies sso7, Underdotted. |
| \ContextualLongS | Applies sso8, Contextual long s. |
| \AlternateFigures | Applies sso9, Alternate Figures. |
| \EntitiesAndTags | Applies ss10, Entities and Tags. |
| \EarlyEnglishFuthorc | Applies ss12, Early English Futhorc. |
| \ElderFuthark | Applies ss13, Elder Futhark. |
| \YoungerFuthark | Applies ss14, Younger Futhark. |
| \LongBranchToShortTwig | Applies ss15, Long Branch to Short Twig. |
| \ContextualRRotunda | Applies ss16, Contextual r rotunda. |
| \RareDigraphs | Applies ss17, Rare Digraphs. |
| \OldStylePunctuation | Applies ss18, Old-style Punctuation. |

| \LatinToGothic | Applies ss19, Latin to Gothic. |
|----------------|--|
| \LowDiacritics | Applies ss20, Low Diacritics. |
| \jcv, \textcv | Applies any Character Variant feature (see below). |

The syntax of \jcv is \jcv[num]{num}, where the second (required) argument is the number of the Character Variant feature, and the first (optional) argument is an index into the variants provided by that feature (starting with zero, the default). \textcv takes an additional required argument (\textcv[num]{num}{text}—the text to which the feature should be applied.

Character Variant features can also be selected by means of commands consisting of the prefix \jcv plus any letter of the basic Latin alphabet (e.g. \jcvA, \jcvz), or any of the mnemonics below. For example, a feature for lowercase **a** can be expressed as \textcv[2]{\jcva}{a}, yielding **u**.

| \jcvaa | \jcvcombiningrrotunda | \jcvmiddot |
|---------------------------|-----------------------|---------------------|
| \jcvAE | \jcvcombiningzigzag | \jcvoPolish |
| \jcvae | \jcvcomma | \jcvounce |
| \jcvAO | \jcvcurrency | \jcvperiod |
| \jcvao | \jcvdbar | \jcvpunctuselevatus |
| \jcvAogonek | \jcvdcroat | \jcvquestion |
| \jcvaogonek | \jcvEng | \jcvrum |
| \jcvASCIItilde | \jcvEogonek | \jcvsemicolon |
| \jcvasterisk | \jcvetabbrev | \jcvslash |
| \jcvav | \jcvexclam | 5 |
| \jcvbrevebelow | \jcvflorin | \jcvspacingusabbrev |
| \jcvcombiningdieresis | \jcvGermanpenny | \jcvspacingzigzag |
| \jcvcombiningdoublemacron | \jcvglottal | \jcvsterling |
| \jcvcombininginsulard | \jcvlb | \jcvthorncrossed |
| \jcvcombiningopena | \jcvlhighstroke | ∖jcvTironianEt |
| \jcvcombiningoverline | \jcvmacron | \jcvYogh |

10. Encoded Glyphs in Junicode

0

The following table lists all the encoded glyphs in Junicode Roman. The font also contains more than 2,000 *unencoded* glyphs, accessible via OpenType features. For a comprehensive list of these features, see Chapter 4, Feature Reference.

Code points for which Junicode has no glyphs are represented in the table by blue bullets (the actual bullet at U+2022 is black). Many of Junicode's glyphs (e.g. spaces, formatting marks) are invisible: these are represented by blanks in the table. A few glyphs are too large for their table cells, and these spill out on one or more sides.

Table 10.1: Encoded Glyphs in Junicode

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 A B C D E F

| Basic Latin | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---------------|---|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|
| U+0000 - 000F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | | • | • |
| U+0020 - 002F | | ! | " | # | \$ | % | & | , | (|) | * | + | , | - | | / |
| U+0030 - 003F | 0 | Ι | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | : | ; | < | = | > | ? |
| U+0040 - 004F | @ | А | В | С | D | Е | F | G | Η | Ι | J | K | L | М | Ν | 0 |
| U+0050 - 005F | Р | Q | R | S | Т | U | V | W | Х | Y | Ζ | [| \ |] | ۸ | _ |
| U+0060 - 006F | ` | a | b | с | d | e | f | g | h | i | j | k | 1 | m | n | 0 |
| U+0070 - 007F | р | q | r | s | t | u | v | W | X | у | Z | { | Ι | } | ~ | • |

Table 10.1: Encoded Glyphs in Junicode, *cont.*

| | Θ | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | Α | В | С | D | E | F |
|---|---|---|----|-----|------|----|------|------|----|----|---|---|-----|-----|-----|---|
| | | | | Lat | in-1 | Su | pple | eme | nt | | | | | | | |
| U+00A0-00AF ; ¢ £ ¤ ¥ ¦ § " © a « ¬ - ® - | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| U+00B0 - 00BF | o | ± | 2 | 3 | , | μ | ¶ | | ځ | I | 0 | » | 1⁄4 | 1⁄2 | 3⁄4 | ż |
| U+00C0 - 00CF | À | Á | Â | Ã | Ä | Å | Æ | Ç | È | É | Ê | Ë | Ì | Í | Î | Ï |
| U+00D0 - 00DF | Ð | Ñ | Ò | Ó | Ô | Õ | Ö | × | Ø | Ù | Ú | Û | Ü | Ý | Þ | ß |
| U+00E0 - 00EF | à | á | â | ã | ä | å | æ | ç | è | é | ê | ë | ì | í | î | ï |
| U+00F0 - 00FF | ð | ñ | ò | ó | ô | õ | ö | ÷ | ø | ù | ú | û | ü | ý | þ | ÿ |
| Latin Extended-A | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | La | um | ĽA | .cnu | icu- | | | | | | | | |
| U+0100 - 010F | Ā | ā | Ă | ă | Ą | ą | Ć | ć | Ĉ | ĉ | Ċ | ċ | Č | č | Ď | ď |
| U+0110 - 011F | Đ | đ | Ē | ē | Ĕ | ĕ | Ė | ė | Ę | ę | Ě | ě | Ĝ | ĝ | Ğ | ğ |
| U+0120 - 012F | Ġ | ġ | Ģ | ģ | Ĥ | ĥ | Ħ | ħ | Ĩ | ĩ | Ī | ī | Ĭ | ĭ | Į | į |
| U+0130 - 013F | İ | 1 | IJ | ij | Ĵ | ĵ | Ķ | ķ | к | Ĺ | ĺ | Ļ | ļ | Ľ | ľ | Ŀ |
| U+0140 - 014F | ŀ | Ł | ł | Ń | ń | Ņ | ņ | Ň | ň | 'n | Ŋ | ŋ | Ō | ō | Ŏ | ŏ |
| U+0150 - 015F | Ő | ő | Œ | œ | Ŕ | ŕ | Ŗ | ŗ | Ř | ř | Ś | ś | Ŝ | ŝ | Ş | ş |
| U+0160 - 016F | Š | š | Ţ | ţ | Ť | ť | Ŧ | ŧ | Ũ | ũ | Ū | ū | Ŭ | ŭ | Ů | ů |
| U+0170 - 017F | Ű | ű | Ų | ų | Ŵ | ŵ | Ŷ | ŷ | Ÿ | Ź | ź | Ż | ż | Ž | ž | ſ |

Latin Extended-B

| U+0180 - 018F | ħ | В | Б | Б | Ъ | b | С | С | C | Ð | D | Б | Б | g | Е | Ð |
|---------------|---|---|---|----|----|----|----|----|----|----|----|----|----|---|---|---|
| U+0190 - 019F | 8 | F | f | G | γ | b | l | Ŧ | К | ƙ | ł | λ | ш | Ν | η | θ |
| U+01A0 - 01AF | Q | Q | Ŋ | օլ | Р | þ | Ř | S | s | Σ | ſ | ţ | Т | f | Т | Ů |
| U+01B0 - 01BF | ư | U | U | Ŷ | У | Z | Z | 3 | 3 | 3 | z | 2 | 5 | 5 | 5 | р |
| U+01C0 - 01CF | Ι | | ŧ | ! | DŽ | Dž | dž | LJ | Lj | lj | NJ | Nj | nj | Ă | ǎ | ľ |
| U+01D0 - 01DF | ĭ | Ŏ | ŏ | Ŭ | ů | Ü | ū | ΰ | ΰ | Ŭ | ů | Ù | ù | ə | Ä | ā |

92 ENCODED GLYPHS IN JUNICODE

Table 10.1: Encoded Glyphs in Junicode, *cont*.

| | 0 | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | Α | В | С | D | Е | F |
|---------------|---|----|----|----|---|----|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|---|---|---|
| U+01E0-01EF | Ă | ā | Ē | ā | G | g | Ğ | ģ | Ř | Ř | Q | Q | Q | ē | ž | ž |
| U+01F0-01FF | j | DZ | Dz | dz | Ġ | ģ | Ю | Ţ | Ņ | 'n | Å | ã | Æ | Ŕ | Ó | ģ |
| U+0200 - 020F | À | à | Â | â | È | ề | Ê | ê | Ĩ | ĩ | Î | î | Ő | ő | Ô | ô |
| U+0210-021F | Ř | ř | Â | î | Ü | ù | Û | û | Ş | ş | Ţ | ţ | 3 | 3 | ť | ň |
| U+0220 - 022F | η | ¢ | 8 | 8 | ζ | Z, | À | à | Ę | ç | Ö | ö | Õ | ō | Ò | ò |
| U+0230 - 023F | Ō | ō | Ŷ | ÿ | • | • | • | J | ф | φ | A | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+0240 - 024F | • | ? | ? | ₿ | • | • | Æ | ¢ | J | j | • | • | • | • | • | • |

IPA Extensions

| U+0250 - 025F | e | a | D | б | С | ç | þ | ď | е | ə | Э | ε | 3 | 3. | 8 | f |
|---------------|---|---|---|----|----|----|----|----|----|----|---|---|--------|----|---|---|
| U+0260 - 026F | g | g | G | у | r | Ч | h | h | i | ι | I | ł | ł | l | ß | ш |
| U+0270 - 027F | щ | ŋ | ŋ | η | N | θ | Œ | 0 | ф | ĩ | ľ | ſ | ſ | t | ſ | נ |
| U+0280 - 028F | R | R | Ş | ſ | ł | ſ | ſ | ļ | t | ŧ | ប | υ | Λ | Μ | λ | Y |
| U+0290 - 029F | Z | Z | 3 | 3 | ? | የ | չ | С | 0 | В | θ | ď | н | j | Ą | L |
| U+02A0 - 02AF | q | 2 | ę | ďz | dz | ď∡ | ts | ţſ | tc | fŋ | k | Ł | W W | Π | ų | ų |

Spacing Modifier Letters

| U+02B0 - 02BF | h | ĥ | j | r | L | ł | R | w | у | , | " | " | , | , |) | c |
|---------------|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|
| U+02C0 - 02CF | ? | ٢ | < | > | ^ | v | ^ | × | ı | - | , | ` | | _ | | , |
| U+02D0 - 02DF | I | • |) | c | | Ŧ | + | - | J | • | o | ί | ~ | " | ٦ | × |
| U+02E0 - 02EF | x | 1 | s | x | የ | ٦ | ٦ | ┥ | ⊣ | L | L | F | ~ | = | " | v |
| U+02F0 - 02FF | ^ | < | > | o | ` | " | " | ~ | : | Г | ٦ | L | ٦ | | L | ÷ |

Combining Diacritical Marks

| U+0300-030F | ' | ^ | ~ | - | - | 5 | · | •• | ? | 0 | " | • | I | н | " |
|-------------|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|
|-------------|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|

| | Θ | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | Α | В | С | D | Е | F |
|---------------|---|---|----------|---|-----|---|----|----|---|---|---|---|---|----------|---|----------|
| U+0310-031F | ٠ | Ŷ | ٤ | , | e | , | | | 4 | ۲ | 7 | د | ¢ | ÷ | Ŧ | + |
| U+0320 - 032F | - | J | ι | | | o | , | \$ | ι | ı | - | w | ~ | ^ | J | <u>^</u> |
| U+0330 - 033F | ~ | - | _ | _ | ~ | - | - | / | / | , | | • | ~ | × | ì | = |
| U+0340 - 034F | ` | , | <u>^</u> | , | •'• | ι | - | = | | , | * | * | * | ÷ | ٠ | |
| U+0350 - 035F | > | ¢ | ۰ | × | < | > | >^ | , | • | * | • | 4 | _ | \smile | _ | _ |
| U+0360 - 036F | ~ | | _ | a | e | i | 0 | u | c | d | h | m | r | t | v | x |

Table 10.1: Encoded Glyphs in Junicode, *cont.*

Greek and Coptic

| U+0370 - 037F | • | • | • | • | ' | , | • | • | • | • | ι | • | • | • | ; | • |
|---------------|---|---|---|---|---|------|-------|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|----|----|
| U+0380 - 038F | | • | • | • | 1 | •'• | Ά | • | Έ | Ή | Ί | • | Ό | • | Ϋ́ | Ώ |
| U+0390 - 039F | ΰ | А | В | Г | Δ | Е | Ζ | Η | Θ | Ι | K | Λ | М | Ν | ΙΞ | 0 |
| U+03A0 - 03AF | П | Р | • | Σ | Т | Υ | Φ | Х | Ψ | Ω | Ϊ | Ϋ | ά | έ | ή | ί |
| U+03B0 - 03BF | ΰ | α | β | γ | δ | ε | ζ | η | θ | ι | κ | λ | μ | ν | ξ | 0 |
| U+03C0 - 03CF | π | ρ | ς | σ | τ | υ | φ | χ | ψ | ω | ï | ΰ | ó | ύ | ώ | K, |
| U+03D0 - 03DF | • | θ | • | • | • | ф | ພ | ĸ | Q | Ŷ | ς | ς | F | F | 4 | 4 |
| U+03E0 - 03EF | う | 7 | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+03F0 - 03FF | ĸ | ę | • | • | • | e | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| | | | | | (| Cyri | illic | | | | | | | | | |
| U+0420 - 042F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ъ | • | Ь | • | • | • |
| U+0440 - 044F | • | | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ъ | • | Ь | • | • | |
| | | | | | G | eor | giar | 1 | | | | | | | | |

U+10F0-10FF • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

94 ENCODED GLYPHS IN JUNICODE

| | 0 | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | Α | В | С | D | Е | F |
|---------------|---|---|---|----|---|----|-----|---|----|---|---|---|---|---|--------------|----|
| | | | | | | Ru | nic | | | | | | | | | |
| U+16A0 - 16AF | ŕ | ۴ | Ν | N | ٨ | M | Þ | Þ | 1 | ۴ | ۴ | 1 | ŧ | ŧ | 1 | ŧ |
| U+16B0 - 16BF | 1 | R | < | k | r | ۴ | ť | Х | X | P | Η | Ħ | * | ł | ł | ŀ |
| U+16C0 - 16CF | ł | Ι | ł | \$ | ¢ | ł | 1 | 1 | ٢ | Y | ٤ | Ч | I | ł | \downarrow | Ť |
| U+16D0 - 16DF | 1 | 1 | ₿ | ŧ | ₿ | K | Μ | M | Ψ | t | 1 | ł | ٥ | × | М | \$ |
| U+16E0 - 16EF | Υ | * | ľ | ¥ | Ж | ¤ | Ψ | I | \$ | ٩ | ч | • | : | + | ↑ | Ж |
| U+16F0 - 16FF | φ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |

Table 10.1: Encoded Glyphs in Junicode, *cont*.

Buginese

| | | | | | | | | | | | | δ | ր | τ | |
|---------------|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|-------|---|---|---|
| U+1AC0 - 1ACF | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | | | | • |

Phonetic Extensions

| U+1D00 - 1D0F | A | Æ | x | ₿ | С | D | Ð | Е | 3 | i | J | К | Ł | М | Ν | 0 |
|---------------|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|
| U+1D10 - 1D1F | С | 0 | c | Ø | æ | 8 | ^ | U | Р | я | Я | Т | U | n | ü | m |
| U+1D20 - 1D2F | v | w | Z | 3 | S | ۹ | Г | Λ | п | Р | Ψ | Л | А | Æ | В | B |
| U+1D30 - 1D3F | D | Е | Е | G | Н | Ι | J | K | L | М | N | Ν | 0 | в | Р | R |
| U+1D40 - 1D4F | Т | U | W | a | e | a | æ | b | d | e | ə | 8 | 3 | g | i | k |
| U+1D50 - 1D5F | m | ŋ | 0 | э | ^ | U | р | t | u | n | w | v | ۹ | β | γ | δ |
| U+1D60 - 1D6F | φ | χ | i | r | u | v | β | γ | ρ | φ | χ | æ | ъ | đ | ŧ | ₩ |
| U+1D70 - 1D7F | ₽ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | δ | • | Ŧ | • | • | • | ų |

Phonetic Extensions Supplement

| U+1D90 - 1D9F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | c | • | • | • |
|---------------|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|
| U+1DA0 - 1DAF | f | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+1DB0 - 1DBF | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | | • | Z | • | • | • | • |

Table 10.1: Encoded Glyphs in Junicode, *cont.*

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 A B C D E F

Combining Diacritical Marks Supplement

| U+1DC0 - 1DCF | • | • | • | • | <u>_</u> | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | ^ | , | 4 |
|---------------|----|---|---|---|----------|----|----|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|
| U+1DD0 - 1DDF | لح | ν | 9 | и | æ | 20 | av | ç | 9 | ð | g | G | k | 1 | L | м |
| U+1DE0 - 1DEF | n | N | R | 2 | s | ſ | Z | | b | | | f | | | р | • |
| U+1DF0 - 1DFF | | w | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Latin Extended Additional

| U+1E00 - 1E0F | Å | ą | Ġ | b | Ŗ | ķ | Ē | þ | Ć | ć | Ď | ď | Ņ | ġ | Đ | ₫ |
|--|------------------|------------------|------------------|----------------|------------------|-------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|-----------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|------------------|
| U+1E10 - 1E1F | Ņ | ģ | Ď | ģ | È | è | É | é | Ĕ | ę | Ę | ę | Ĕ | ĕ | Ė | ḟ |
| U+1E20 - 1E2F | Ē | ģ | Ĥ | h | Ĥ | ķ | Ĥ | ĥ | Ӊ | ķ | Ĥ | ĥ | Ĩ | į | Í | " 1 |
| U+1E30 - 1E3F | Ŕ | ƙ | Ķ | ķ | Ķ | ķ | Ļ | ļ | Ļ | Ī | Ŀ | <u>1</u> | ř | ļ | Ń | ŕ |
| U+1E40 - 1E4F | М | ṁ | Ņ | 'n | Ņ | 'n | Ņ | ņ | Ņ | ņ | Ņ | ň | Ő | ố | Ö | ö |
| U+1E50 - 1E5F | Ò | ò | Ó | ó | Ý | ý | Þ | ġ | Ŕ | ŕ | Ŗ | ŗ | Ŗ | ŗ | Ŗ | ŗ |
| U+1E60 - 1E6F | Ś | ṡ | Ş | ş | Š | ś | Š | š | Ş | ş | Ť | t | Ţ | ţ | Ţ | ţ |
| U+1E70 - 1E7F | Ţ | ţ | Ü | ų | Ų | ų | Ų | ų | Ú | ấ | Ü | ü | Ũ | ĩ | Ņ | Ņ |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| U+1E80 - 1E8F | Ŵ | ẁ | Ŵ | ŵ | Ŵ | ÿ | Ŵ | w | Ŵ | w | Ż | ż | Ä | ÿ | Ý | ý |
| U+1E80 - 1E8F U+1E90 - 1E9F | Ŵ Ź | ẁ 2 | Ŵ Ż | ŵ Ż | ₩ Z | ₩ <u>Z</u> | Ŵ <u>h</u> | ŵ ť | Ŵ ŵ | ₩ ÿ | Х ả | x Í | Χ̈́ f | ÿ f | Ý ß | ý δ |
| | | | | | | | | | • | • | | | | | | 5 |
| U+1E90 - 1E9F | Ź | ź | Ż | ż | Ż | Ī | ħ | ť | Ŵ | ÿ | å | İ | ł | f | ß | δ |
| U+1E90 - 1E9F U+1EA0 - 1EAF | Ź Ą | ź ą | Ż Ả | z ả | Ż Ã | <u>z</u> ấ | h À | ť à | ů Ř | ỷ ấ | ả Ã | ŕ ã | f Â | f ậ | ß Å | δ ắ |
| U+1E90 - 1E9F U+1EA0 - 1EAF U+1EB0 - 1EBF | Ź Ą Ă | ź ạ ằ | Ż Ả Å | Z ả ả | Z Ã Ă | z ấ ă | h À Ă | ť à ặ | · ŵ ẩ Ę | ỷ ẩ ẹ | ả Ã Ľ | ſ â ẻ | f Â Ē | f ậ ẽ | ß Å É | δ ắ ế |
| U+1E90 - 1E9F U+1EA0 - 1EAF U+1EB0 - 1EBF U+1EC0 - 1ECF | Ź Ą Ă È | î a à è | Ż Ả Ẩ Ê | z. ªa °ể | Z Ã Ã Ê | z á va ê | h À Ă Ê | ť à ặ ệ | ů Ř Ę ľ | ° ý ẩ ę ỉ | ả Ã Ė Į | ſ ã ẻ į | f Â Ē Ọ | f ậ ẽ ọ | ß Å É ď | δ ắ ể ỏ |

96 ENCODED GLYPHS IN JUNICODE

Table 10.1: Encoded Glyphs in Junicode, *cont*.

| | 0 | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | A | В | С | D | E | F |
|---------------|---|----------------|----|-----|-----|------|------|-----|-----|----|------|-----|------|------|------|--------------------|
| | | | | G | ree | k Ez | xter | nde | d | | | | | | | |
| U+1F00 - 1F0F | ά | ά | ά | ά | ά | ă | â | ά | Ά | Ά | Ά | Ϋ́A | Ϋ́Α | Ά | À | Â |
| U+1F10 - 1F1F | ė | έ | ŝ | ŝ | ž | ž | • | • | Έ | Έ | Έ | "Е | "Е | Έ | • | • |
| U+1F20 - 1F2F | ή | ή | ή | ή | ή | ή | ή | ή | Ή | Ή | "Н | "H | "H | Ή | Ή | ٩ |
| U+1F30-1F3F | i | ì | ĩ | ĩ | ľ | ĭ | î | ີ້ເ | Ί | Ί | ľ" | I" | "I | Ί | Ί | ſ |
| U+1F40-1F4F | ò | ò | ő | ő | ő | ő | • | • | 'Ò | Ó | Ο" | "О | "O | "O | • | • |
| U+1F50 - 1F5F | ů | ່ບ | ΰ | ΰ | ů | ů | ů | ິ້ນ | • | 'n | • | "Υ | • | Ϋ́ | • | Ϋ́ |
| U+1F60-1F6F | ώ | ώ | ŵ | ŵ | ů | ŭ | ŵ | ŵ | Ώ | Ώ | "Ω | "Ω | "Ω | ſΩ | 'nΩ | $\Omega^{\hat{r}}$ |
| U+1F70 - 1F7F | ά | ά | έ | έ | ή | ή | ì | ί | ò | ó | ΰ | ύ | ώ | ώ | • | • |
| U+1F80 - 1F8F | ģ | ά | ά | γ̈́ | ἄ | ų | ą | ά | Άι | Άι | 'nλι | 'n | ̈́Aι | ̈́Αι | ĥι | Âι |
| U+1F90 - 1F9F | ń | ή | ň | 'n | ň | ň | ń | ń | Ήι | Ήι | "Hı | Ήι | "Hı | "Hı | Ήι | Ήι |
| U+1FA0 - 1FAF | ώ | ဖုံ | ŵ | ŵ | ő | ų | ພໍ່ | လို | 'Ωι | Ώι | ἲΩι | ʹΩι | "Ωι | ʹΏι | 'nΩι | îΩι |
| U+1FB0 - 1FBF | ά | $\bar{\alpha}$ | ά | ά | ά | • | â | â | Ă | Ā | Ά | Ά | Aι | , | ι | , |
| U+1FC0 - 1FCF | Ŷ | £ | 'n | Ŋ | ή | • | ή | ĥ | Έ | Έ | Ή | Ή | Ηι | " | >1 | \$ |
| U+1FD0 - 1FDF | ĭ | ī | ï | ΰ | • | • | î | î | Ĭ | Ī | ľ | Ί | • | e1 | ej | २ |
| U+1FE0 - 1FEF | ŭ | Ū | ΰ | ΰ | ļ | þ | ΰ | ΰ | Ť | Ϋ́ | Ϋ́ | Ϋ́ | Ϋ́ | ۰. | •• | ` |
| U+1FF0-1FFF | • | • | ώ | ώ | ώ | • | ŵ | ŵ | 'O | Ό | Ώ | Ώ | Ωι | , | , | • |

General Punctuation

| U+2000 - 200F | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | • | • |
|---------------|---|-------------|---------|---|-----|---|-----|-----|----|----|---|---|---|---|---|----------|
| U+2010 - 201F | - | - | _ | - | _ | | | _ | " | , | , | • | " | " | " | " |
| U+2020 - 202F | † | ‡ | • | ۲ | • | | ••• | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | |
| U+2030 - 203F | ‰ | ‰ 00 | ' | " | /// | ` | " | ~~~ | ^ | < | > | Ж | ‼ | ? | _ | \smile |
| U+2040 - 204F | | ٨ | * ** | - | / | E |] | ?? | ?! | !? | Ĵ | ₽ | ∎ | D | * | ; |

Table 10.1: Encoded Glyphs in Junicode, *cont*.

| | Θ | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | Α | В | С | D | E | F |
|---|------------------|-----|------|------|-----|------|--------------|-------|------|-----|-----|-----|-----|------------|-----|----|
| U+2050 - 205F | $\left(\right)$ | * | % | ~ | • | • | ·: | ,,,,, | ÷ | • | • | • | # | • | • | • |
| | | | Sup | ersc | rip | ts a | nd | Sub | scri | pts | | | | | | |
| U+2070 - 207F | 0 | i | • | • | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | + | - | = | (|) | n |
| U+2080 - 208F | о | I | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | + | - | = | (|) | • |
| U+2090 - 209F | • | • | • | • | э | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| Currency Symbols | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| U+20A0 - 20AF | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | € | • | • | • |
| U+20B0 - 20BF | Ŋ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| Combining Diacritical Marks for Symbols | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| U+20D0 - 20DF | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | · | • | \bigcirc | • | • |
| Letterlike Symbols | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| U+2100 - 210F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Э | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+2110 - 211F | • | • | • | • | ₫b | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ŗ | Ŗ |
| U+2120 - 212F | • | • | ТМ | ý | • | 3 | Ω | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+2130 - 213F | • | • | F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | · | • | • | • | • |
| U+2140 - 214F | • | • | • | · | • | • | • | • | • | · | • | • | · | • | Я | • |
| | | | | N | Jun | nber | r Fo | rms | 5 | | | | | | | |
| U+2150 - 215F | 1/7 | 1⁄9 | 1/10 | 1/3 | 2/3 | 1/5 | 2/5 | 3/5 | 4⁄5 | 1⁄6 | 5⁄6 | 1⁄8 | 3⁄8 | 5⁄8 | 7⁄8 | 1/ |
| U+2160 - 216F | Ι | П | Ш | IV | V | VI | VII | VIII | IX | Х | XI | XII | L | С | D | М |
| U+2170 - 217F | i | ii | iii | iv | v | vi | vii | viii | ix | x | xi | xii | 1 | с | d | m |
| U+2180 - 218F | Φ | D | Ф | С | С | G | \downarrow | D | 0 | % | • | • | • | • | • | • |

98 ENCODED GLYPHS IN JUNICODE

Mathematical Operators

Table 10.1: Encoded Glyphs in Junicode, *cont*.

| U+2200 - 220F | • | • | 9 | • | • | Ø | Δ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | П |
|---------------|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|----|---|---|--------------|---|---|---|---|---|
| U+2210 - 221F | • | Σ | - | • | • | / | • | • | • | • | \checkmark | • | • | • | ∞ | • |
| U+2220 - 222F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Λ | • | • | • | ∫ | • | • | • | • |
| U+2230 - 223F | • | • | • | • | ÷ | | • | :: | • | • | • | ÷ | • | • | • | • |
| U+2240 - 224F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | * | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+2260 - 226F | ≠ | • | • | • | ≤ | ≥ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+22D0 - 22DF | • | | • | | | | • | > | | • | • | | • | • | | |

Miscellaneous Technical

| U+2300 - 230F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | ſ | 1 | • | • | • | • | • | • |
|---------------|---|---|---|---|-------------|---|---|---|---|-----------|-----------|---|---|---|---|---|
| U+2320 - 232F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | \langle | \rangle | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+23D0 - 23DF | • | U | ₽ | ⊻ | | • | | • | | • | • | • | • | | | • |

Enclosed Alphanumerics

| U+2460 - 246F | 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 |) 8 9 10 11 (| 12 13 14 15 16 |
|---------------|----------------------------|----------------------|-----------------------|
| U+2470 - 247F | 17 18 19 20 (1) (2) (3 | 3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (| 8) (9) (10) (11) (12) |
| U+2480 - 248F | (13)(14)(15)(16)(17)(18)(1 | 9)(20) 1. 2. 3. | 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. |
| U+2490 - 249F | 9. 10. 11. 12. 13. 14. 1 | 5. 16. 17. 18. 19. 2 | 20. (a) (b) (c) (d) |
| U+24A0 - 24AF | (e) (f) (g) (h) (i) (j) (h | s) (l) (m) (n) (o) (| p) (q) (r) (s) (t) |

Table 10.1: Encoded Glyphs in Junicode, *cont*.

| | 0 | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | A | В | С | D | E | F |
|------------------|--------------|----------|-----|------|------------|------|-----|----------------|----------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|-----|-------------------|------------|
| U+24B0 - 24BF | (u) | (v) | (w) | (x) | (y) | (z) | (A) | B | \bigcirc | \bigcirc | Œ | F | G | (H) | (]) | J |
| U+24C0 - 24CF | K | L | (M) | (N) | \bigcirc | P | 0 | R | (\mathbb{S}) | (T) | U | V | W | (X) | (\underline{Y}) | (Z) |
| U+24D0 - 24DF | (a) | b | ¢ | d | e | (f) | g | (h) | i | (j) | k | 1 | \bigcirc | (n) | 0 | P |
| U+24E0 - 24EF | (p) | r | S | t | U | V | W | (\mathbf{x}) | (y) | Z | 0 | 0 | D | ß | 14 | (5 |
| U+24F0 - 24FF | 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 | | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | 10 | 0 |
| Geometric Shapes | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| U+25A0 - 25AF | | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | | • | • | • | • |
| U+25B0 - 25BF | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | ⊳ | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+25C0 - 25CF | • | • | • | ۵ | • | • | ٠ | \diamond | • | • | \diamond | • | 0 | • | • | • |
| | | | N | Aiso | cella | ineo | ous | Sha | ipes | ; | | | | | | |
| U+2610 - 261F | | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | æ | ->- | s t | 50 | 8 | đ | Ŗ. |
| U+2620 - 262F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | ¥ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| | | | | | D | oing | bat | s | | | | | | | | |
| U+2710 - 271F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | † | • | • |
| U+2720 - 272F | ₩ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+2740 - 274F | 886 886 | | | | | | | • | | | | | | | | |
| U+2760 - 276F | • | • | • | • | • | • | ě | § \$ } | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+2770 - 277F | • | • | • | • | • | • | 0 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 6 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | 0 |
| | ۰ ۲ ۰ | 1 | 1 | | | . 1 | | | 10 | 1 | 1 | ٨ | | | | |

Miscellaneous Mathematical Symbols-A

U+27E0-27EF • • • • • [[]] < > • • • •

100 ENCODED GLYPHS IN JUNICODE

| 1 | abie | : 10 | .1: E | ncc | Jaea | GI | ypn | 5 111 | Jui | nco | ae, | con | ι. | | | |
|---|------|--------------|-------|------|--------|------|------------|-------|------|------|---------|-----|----|----|---|---|
| | Θ | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | A | в | с | D | E | F |
| | Su | ppl | eme | enta | ıl M | ath | ema | tic | al C | per | ato | rs | | | | |
| U+2AF0 - 2AFF | | | | | • | • | | | • | | | • | • | // | | |
| | N | Aic | cella | ne | oue | Sur | nho | اد م | nd | Δ rr | owe | | | | | |
| | | v115 | cent | | | • | | | nu z | 111 | 0 | | | | | |
| U+2B20 - 2B2F | • | • | • | • | • | • | \diamond | • | · | • | • | • | · | • | • | • |
| Latin Extended-C | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| $U+2C60-2C6F \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot$ | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | • | |
| U+2C70 - 2C7F | • | v | W | w | • | F | F | • | • | • | • | • | • | v | • | • |
| Supplemental Punctuation | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| U+2E00-2E0F 「「「」、」、」T T S S C □ \ / | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| U+2E10 - 2E1F | | | | | | | | = | | | <u></u> | ٥ | ١ | / | * | ÷ |
| U+2E20 - 2E2F | ŀ | \mathbf{H} | г | ٦ | L | J | С | С | ((|)) | ÷ | :. | :: | ÷ | ۶ | ۲ |
| U+2E30 - 2E3F | | | | | | | | | | | | | _ | | | |
| U+2E40 - 2E4F | = | | | | • | • | | | • | | 1 | ‡ | ? | ľ | ÷ | |
| U+2E50 - 2E5F | • | • | Ĵ | ! | ۶ | • | • | • | • | | • | • | • | - | • | • |
| | | С | јк 8 | Syn | nbol | s ar | nd P | un | ctua | itio | n | | | | | |
| U+3000 - 300F | | | | | | | | | | | « | >>> | | | | |
| | | | | | | _ | | - | | | | | | | | |
| | | | Ν | | lifie | | | | | | | | | | | |
| U+A710 - A71F | • | • | • | • | • | · | • | • | · | • | • | 1 | ţ | • | • | • |
| | | | | La | itin 1 | Ext | end | ed- | D | | | | | | | |
| U+A720 - A72F | | | 3 | 3 | c | c | H | h | Ę | ţz | | | | | | |
| U+A730 - A73F | F | S | A | æ | Æ | æ | Æ | aı | N | X | N | ¥ | Ŋ | y | Э | Э |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Table 10.1: Encoded Glyphs in Junicode, *cont*.

Table 10.1: Encoded Glyphs in Junicode, *cont*.

| | 0 | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | Α | В | С | D | Е | F |
|---------------|---|----|---|-----|----|----|----|----|---|---|---|---|---|----|---------|---|
| U+A740 - A74F | K | ħ | Ķ | ķ | Ķ | ķ | L | ł | Ł | t | θ | Ð | O | œ | \odot | ω |
| U+A750 - A75F | ₽ | ₽ | ₽ | Ъ | Ψ | φ | Q, | ą | Q | ₽ | ર | 2 | ¥ | ų | ý | ý |
| U+A760 - A76F | W | w | 8 | 3 | Þ | þ | ₽ | þ | p | р | 3 | 3 | P | P | 9 | 9 |
| U+A770 - A77F | 9 | d∤ | ķ | mļ | nį | ıţ | Ŗ | ťį | Ş | Ο | 9 | ŗ | ŗ | δ | 2 | 2 |
| U+A780 - A78F | Γ | I | ŋ | p | ŗ | ŗ | ζ | τ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+A790 - A79F | • | • | € | € | • | • | В | þ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+A7A0 - A7AF | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | 8 | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+A7B0 - A7BF | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ά | à | ľ | ì | 'U | ů |
| U+A7C0 - A7CF | Q | ¢ | W | ((3 | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | \$ | • | • |
| U+A7Do - A7DF | ğ | g | • | þ | • | ß | ß | ſ | 8 | 8 | Х | λ | ¥ | • | • | • |
| U+A7Fo - A7FF | | | | • | | • | | • | • | | | F | P | W | Ι | W |

LatinExtended-E

| U+AB50 - AB5F | • | • | u | • | • | • | • | Х | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
|---------------|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|
|---------------|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|

Private Use Area

| U+E000 - E00F | • | • | • | • | Á | • | • | • | • | • | Á | • | • | • | • | |
|---------------|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|
| U+E010 - E01F | Ă | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | |
| U+E020 - E02F | • | • | • | • | • | Ά | • | • | • | • | | • | Å | | • | • |
| U+E030 - E03F | • | | | Å | • | | Æ | | • | • | Æ | | | Ă | | Ă |
| U+E040 - E04F | Æ | Æ | Ä | Æ | Ŕ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E060 - E06F | • | • | • | | • | | Ċ | • | • | | • | • | | • | | • |
| U+E070 - E07F | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ç | Ď | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E080 - E08F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ð |

102 ENCODED GLYPHS IN JUNICODE

| | o | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | Α | В | С | D | E | F |
|---------------|---|---|----------------|---|---|---|---|---|----|---|---|---|---|---|---|---|
| U+E090 - E09F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ę | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E0B0 - E0BF | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ĕ | • | • | • | • | Ę | • | • | • |
| U+E0C0 - E0CF | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ĕ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E0D0 - E0DF | • | É | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E0E0 - E0EF | • | Ě | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ę | É | Ę | Ė | Ę | • | Ę | • |
| U+E0F0 - E0FF | ŕ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E100 - E10F | • | Ģ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E110 - E11F | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ĥ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E120 - E12F | Ħ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | İ | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E130 - E13F | • | • | • | • | • | Í | • | Ĭ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E140 - E14F | • | • | • | Ĩ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E150 - E15F | Ī | Ţ | \overline{J} | Í | Ī | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | j | • | • | • |
| U+E160 - E16F | • | • | Ĵ | Ĵ | • | • | • | • | Ķ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E190 - E19F | • | • | • | • | · | • | • | • | · | • | • | · | • | · | Ĺ | • |
| U+E1B0 - E1BF | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ā | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E1D0 - E1DF | • | • | M | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ñ | • | • | • |
| U+E200 - E20F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Q | • | • | • | Ó | • | • | • |
| U+E210 - E21F | | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ŏ | • | • | • | • |
| U+E220 - E22F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ô | • | • |
| U+E240 - E24F | | | | • | ů | | Ů | • | • | | | • | | • | • | Q |
| U+E250 - E25F | • | • | Ō | Ŏ | • | Q | • | Ý | • | É | • | • | • | Ē | • | • |
| U+E260 - E26F | Ĕ | • | Ę | • | • | • | • | • | Ρ́ | • | • | • | • | Þ | • | • |

Table 10.1: Encoded Glyphs in Junicode, *cont*.
| | Θ | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | Α | В | С | D | E | F | |
|---------------|---|---|---|---|----|---------------------|----|---|---|---|---|---|----|---|----|---|--|
| U+E270 - E27F | ŝ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | 6 | • | • | |
| U+E280 - E28F | • | • | Ċ | • | • | • | • | • | Q | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | |
| U+E2E0 - E2EF | | • | Ý | | • | | | | | • | • | | | | Ţ | • | |
| U+E300 - E30F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ú | • | Ŭ | • | • | • | • | |
| U+E310 - E31F | • | • | • | • | • | Ü | • | Û | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | |
| U+E320 - E32F | • | • | • | • | Ú | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ů | • | Ů | • | • | |
| U+E330 - E33F | • | Ù | • | • | • | • | • | Þ | • | • | Ý | Ŷ | • | • | • | • | |
| U+E340 - E34F | • | • | Ÿ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Ű | V | V | Ϋ́ | • | |
| U+E350 - E35F | Ŵ | • | • | ŵ | • | • | • | Ŵ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | |
| U+E370 - E37F | • | • | • | Ź | • | ${\breve{\bar{Y}}}$ | Ÿ | • | • | • | • | • | Ϋ́ | • | • | | |
| U+E380 - E38F | • | • | • | • | Ϋ́ | Ý | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | |
| U+E390 - E39F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Þ | |
| U+E3D0 - E3DF | • | • | | Ŏ | Ø | | | | | • | | | | | | • | |
| U+E3E0 - E3EF | • | • | • | • | • | ŗ. | ļ? | Ņ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | · | |
| U+E400 - E40F | • | • | • | • | ą́ | • | • | • | • | • | á | • | • | • | • | • | |
| U+E410 - E41F | ă | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | â | • | • | ä | • | â | |
| U+E420 - E42F | • | • | • | • | • | ű | • | • | • | • | • | • | å | å | å | • | |
| U+E430 - E43F | • | • | • | å | • | • | æ | • | • | • | ź | • | • | ă | • | ă | |
| U+E440 - E44F | æ | æ | ä | ż | b | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | þ | • | • | |
| U+E460 - E46F | • | • | • | • | • | • | ċ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | |
| U+E470 - E47F | • | • | • | • | • | • | ç | á | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | |
| U+E480 - E48F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | ģ | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

| | Θ | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | Α | В | С | D | E | F |
|---------------|---|---|-------------------------|---|---|---------------|---|---|---|---|--------|--------|---|---|---|---|
| U+E490 - E49F | • | đ | • | • | • | • | • | • | é | é | • | • | • | • | • | ę |
| U+E4B0 - E4BF | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | ĕ | • | • | • | • | ę | • | • | • |
| U+E4Co - E4CF | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | ë | • | • | • | • | ë | • | ě |
| U+E4Do - E4DF | • | ő | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E4E0 - E4EF | • | å | ė | ě | • | • | • | • | ę | ė | ę́ | ę | ę | • | ţ | • |
| U+E4F0 - E4FF | ŕ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E500 - E50F | • | ġ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E510 - E51F | • | • | • | • | • | • | ĥ | ħ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E520 - E52F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | ł | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E530 - E53F | • | • | • | • | • | $\frac{1}{1}$ | • | ĭ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E540 - E54F | • | • | • | ĩ | • | • | • | • | į | • | e 1 | v 1 | • | • | • | • |
| U+E550 - E55F | ī | j | Ī | j | Ī | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E560 - E56F | • | • | ĩ | ſ | • | • | • | • | ķ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E580 - E58F | | • | | | | • | • | | | | • | | Ī | | • | • |
| U+E590 - E59F | • | • | • | • | • | • | 1 | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | İ | • |
| U+E5A0 - E5AF | • | • | • | • | ļ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E5B0 - E5BF | • | 1 | • | • | • | • | • | • | m | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E5C0 - E5CF | • | • | • | • | • | ŵ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+E5D0 - E5DF | • | • | $\overline{\mathbf{m}}$ | • | • | • | • | ĥ | • | • | • | • | ñ | • | • | • |
| U+E5E0 - E5EF | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | ņ | • |
| U+E600 - E60F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | ę | • | • | • | ģ | • | ộ | • |
| U+E610 - E61F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | ŏ | • | • | • | • |
| U+E620 - E62F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | ö | ô | • | • |

1 2 3 4 5 6 789AB ο С D E F ô U+E630 - E63F • . . • . . • ŏ $\overset{1}{O}$ $\overset{u}{O}$ U+E640 - E64F å ò . . . • ò • • • • U+E650 - E65F • • ā ă • ø • ģ • œ́ æ • • • • U+E660 - E66F ắ · cę · · p p • • þ • U+E670 - E67F <u>ي</u> لل . . . • • • • . U+E680 - E68F • φġ ••• q ¥\$ ą • • • • • • . U+E6A0 - E6AF • • • ŗ • • · · · U+E6E0 - E6EF ••• ť•••• • • • ţ. ά · ŭ U+E700 - E70F • . . •• • • • • U+E710 - E71F • • • • • . • u' • • u · · · ů ů ů U+E720 - E72F · ů · · þ þ 💠 þ́ · ý ŷ U+E730 - E73F • • · · ÿ ÿ ν̈́ν v̄ U+E740 - E74F ∀ v • • • • • • . U+E750 - E75F $\overset{''}{W} \cdot \cdot \overset{e}{W} \overset{o}{W} \cdot$ • • • U+E770 - E77F $\cdot \cdot \cdot \dot{\overline{y}} \cdot \overline{\overline{y}} \cdot \overline{\overline{y}} \cdot \cdot \cdot$ ∀Ű • U+E780 - E78F ÿ • • ÿ ŷ • U+E790 - E79F ſ þ • • þ U+E7A0 - E7AF • • . • U+E7B0 - E7BF Ħ • • U+E7C0 - E7CF ħ ••• fi fk • 2 ſ . ō • . U+E7Do - E7DF Q ø U+E7E0 - E7EF r P. , Ņ • • • • F

| | Θ | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | Α | В | С | D | E | F |
|---------------|--------|------------------|------------------------------------|----|--------|--------|--------|-----|-----|----------|-------------------|----------|----|----|-----|------------|
| U+E8A0 - E8AF | • | į | į | h | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Į | 02 | fl |
| U+E8Bo - E8BF | Ŕ | æ, | • | æ | Ŕ | • | • | ۶ | Ý | • | Ŵ | V | vŧ | X | X | q 3 |
| U+E8Co - E8CF | • | þ | ħ | ħ | • | k | W | ա | Œ | æ | • | • | • | • | X, | • |
| U+E8D⊙ - E8DF | • | å | • | ģ | • | ä | • | ö | • | • | Ą | ¥ | k | ß | ŀì | ŀi |
| U+E8E⊙ - E8EF | ia | å | ě | ê | a 1 | o 1 | u 1 | j | 'n | ő | ŕ | ů | ů | ů | • | • |
| U+E8F0 - E8FF | a W | $\overset{i}{W}$ | $\overset{\mathrm{u}}{\mathrm{W}}$ | w | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+EADo - EADF | g | φ | φ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | ſt | • | ľђ | ſђ | ſĭþ | • |
| U+EAFo - EAFF | á | æ | ю | ę | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+EBAo - EBAF | fä | ſh | ſı | ſl | fö | ſþ | ſſ | ffi | ſſl | ſŧi | ſtr | fü | þ | ĥ | ƙ | Í |
| U+EBB⊙ - EBBF | Ń | Ŕ | δ | ŕ | ŕ | Ŵ | ń | Ŏ | ď | ź | ý | ý | • | ea | eu | ũ |
| U+EBCo - EBCF | Æ | ő | Ń | ä | Ő | ő | Ő | ő | Ű | ő | Ŵ | ý | • | Ò | ø | Þ |
| U+EBD⊙ - EBDF | Ġ | δ | Ď | ŗ | ŗ | ġ | ġ | Ė | • | • | Ĥ | Ķ | Ĺ | Ņ | Ż | ò |
| U+EBE⊙ - EBEF | Ø | ø | Ï | j | Ü | ö | Η̈́Ρ | β̈́ | ÿ | ÿ | Ŕ | æ | Ó | ģ | Ŏ | ŏ |
| U+EBF⊙ - EBFF | Ą | ą | Ę | ę | Ă | á | Ĭ | ĭ | Ŏ | ő | Ŏ | ģ | Ŏ | ŏ | Ű | ű |
| U+EEC⊙ - EECF | • | • | в | þ | dk | ct | 66 | ey | fä | fj | fr | ft | fü | fy | fft | ffy |
| U+EED⊙ - EEDF | fty | Ð | g | ġ | ğ | ฟ | р | ₽ | tr | tt | π | ty | ţ | PP | ஒ | ſ |
| U+EEE0 - EEEF | а | b | С | d | δ | ð | e | f | g | h | i | j | k | 1 | m | n |
| U+EEFo - EEFF | 0 | р | q | r | S | t | þ | u | V | W | Х | у | Z | 1 | J | ŗ |
| U+EF00 - EF0F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | Q | • | • | • |
| U+EF10 - EF1F | • | Х | • | • | • | Þ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+EF20 - EF2F | Ġ | Ņ | Ŕ | Ś | Ť | Ŗ | Ņ | Ģ | Ļ | Ņ | Ņ | Ŗ | ş | Ţ | • | • |
| U+EF90 - EF9F | X | × | ¥ | × | УĞ | Ŷ | ð. | ŝX | ** | XX XX | ي موقع موقع | X | | • | • | Ø |

| | 0 | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | Α | В | С | D | E | F |
|---------------|---|-----|---|--------------|---|----|----|----|-------------------------|----|------------------|-------|---|---------|-------------------------------------|-----|
| U+EFAo - EFAF | æ | æ | Х | đ | Ŧ | æ | d | n | aN | р | a | æ | ф | α | Æ | • |
| U+EFB⊙ - EFBF | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | R | ପ୍ୟ | ſŲ | • | • | • | • |
| U+EFD⊙ - EFDF | | | | • | | | | | ű | Ű | • | Æ | ź | œ | æ | æ |
| U+EFE⊙ - EFEF | Á | á | Á | ź | Á | áı | Ń | Ń | Ú | ώ | Á | á | Ű | ő | À | à |
| U+EFF⊙ - EFFF | À | ż | Ą | æ | Ą | æ | ĄŲ | ại | Ņ | Ņ | Ą. | Ŋ. | ŵ | ŵ | Ä | ä |
| U+F000 - F00F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | - | - | - | - | • | • |
| U+F010 - F01F | • | es. | b | В | | • | D | f | | | • | 6,013 | к | CA L | KI | m |
| U+F020 - F02F | • | • | • | • | • | р | • | • | • | • | т | у | • | • | • | 1 |
| U+F030 - F03F | j | J | ø | q | | • | an | • | a | • | an | τ | w | þ | 02 | 03, |
| U+F040 - F04F | ą | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+F050 - F05F | • | • | • | ō | ī | b | b | b | • | b | ľ | • | Ъ | ľ | b | В́ |
| U+F060 - F06F | • | • | ĥ | b' | h | ĥ | ĥ | ĥ | ħ | ĥ | ĥ | ĥ | ĥ | ľ | ĥ | ĥ |
| U+F070 - F07F | • | • | • | • | ĥ | k | k | k | ľ | k | k | ĸ | ľ | k | k | k |
| U+F080 - F08F | • | • | • | • | þ | þ | þ | þ | • | þ | þ | þ | • | • | þ | þ |
| U+F090 - F09F | • | • | • | $\bar{\tau}$ | ċ | • | δ | β | • | δ | δ | ð | Ŕ | δ | • | ď |
| U+F0A0 - F0AF | • | • | • | • | • | • | ზ | ð | $\overleftarrow{0}^{m}$ | • | $\delta^{\rm r}$ | Ŏ | ŏ | • | $\overset{\mathrm{vt}}{\mathrm{O}}$ | δ |
| U+F0B0 - F0BF | | | • | | | | • | Ē | Ϊf | k | ĺ | ľ | Ϊ | | k | ƙ |
| U+FoCo - FoCF | | • | é | ħ | Ġ | Ý | | ð | 4 | ò | á | ź | ā | é | | Ř |
| U+FoDo - FoDF | | | | • | • | • | | • | ð | ð | ĥ | | Ø | ழ | $\bar{\omega}$ | ā |
| U+F0E0 - F0EF | • | • | • | | | • | • | • | • | ð | þ | w | λ | | | • |
| U+F0F0 - F0FF | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | ŵ | āN | á | Ā | Ā | ā | • | • |
| U+F100 - F10F | • | • | • | • | • | • | Е | • | • | • | е | • | • | • | Б | • |
| U+F110 - F11F | Þ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | ന | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+F120 - F12F | • | • | • | • | • | • | 8 | ſ | 8 | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |

| | 0 | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 | Α | В | С | D | Е | F |
|---------------|---|---|--------------|-----|----------|----------|-----------------|--------------------|----------------|----|----|----|----------|----|-----|-----|
| U+F130 - F13F | æ | • | • | • | • | ę | ē | • | • | • | А | • | • | • | ę | Ō |
| U+F140 - F14F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | þ | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+F150 - F15F | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | ŧ | ð | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+F160 - F16F | | : | ÷ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+F170 - F17F | • | ă | • | • | • | ĕ | • | ĭ | • | ŏ | • | ū | • | • | • | • |
| U+F180 - F18F | • | á | • | ź | • | é | • | ź | • | ó | • | ū | • | • | • | • |
| U+F190 - F19F | • | ģ | • | ф | fi | k | gr | • | С | tī | Ŋ | r | • | • | • | R |
| U+F1A0 - F1AF | • | • | • | • | • | 9 | 9 | Z | • | • | • | • | ; | • | • | • |
| U+F1B0 - F1BF | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | ф | fö | 0 | • | х |
| U+F1C0 - F1CF | ÷ | ū | 2 | • | • | , | • | 7 | າ | • | • | • | ډ | • | • | • |
| U+F1D0 - F1DF | • | • | # | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | o | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+F1E0 - F1EF | ; | ľ | , | , | •7 | :, | ÷ | ! | ĩ | • | ; | • | ÷ | • | • | • |
| U+F1F0 - F1FF | : | • | ;; | • | + | ? | • | / | • | ~ | : | | \smile | • | • | • |
| U+F200 - F20F | a | a | α | a | x | Ø | ۵ | p | k | ß | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+F210 - F21F | • | • | · | • | λ | d | • | θ | e | e | e | p | ŗ | g | 8 | g |
| U+F220 - F22F | 1 | k | l | ŋ | Ŋ | m | Ŋ | • | ŋ | Ŋ | Ŋ | Ν | P | • | • | • |
| U+F230 - F23F | • | • | • | У | • | • | • | • | \mathfrak{h} | ih | h | • | m | ŋ | ń | C |
| U+F2E0 - F2EF | Ш | | x | ¥ | ⊅ | | 3 | $\ddot{\tilde{v}}$ | ß | R | ₿ | Ħ | £ | Ŀ | £ | £ |
| U+F2F0 - F2FF | Ł | ¥ | m¥ | ทุก | С | ışr | 21 ⁹ | ß | ßł | z | ₹ | φ | • | 9 | Ć | Ċ* |
| U+F4Fo - F4FF | • | • | | • | | | • | ſĨ | ſł | 11 | ſd | ſj | ſk | ſs | ſſk | ſſŧ |
| U+F700 - F70F | _ | U | ⊻ | J | <u> </u> | <u>~</u> | ć | Ċ | ú | È | × | × | × | • | • | • |
| U+F710 - F71F | • | • | • | • | Λ | <u>"</u> | <u>``</u> | Ű | Ű | x | × | ರ್ | 50 | • | • | • |

Table 10.1: Encoded Glyphs in Junicode, *cont*. 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 A B C D E F \cdot \cdot \overline{V} \overline{X} \overline{L} \overline{C} \overline{D} \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot U+F7B0 - F7BF . Alphabetic Presentation Forms U+FB00 - FB0F **Small Form Variants** U+FE50 - FE5F ••••• U+FE60 - FE6F % • • Specials ... U+FFF⊙ - FFFF - 🔶 . . Ancient Symbols U+10190 - 1019F Gothic U+10330 - 1033F λεгдеиζьψικλмиς η U+10340-1034F П Ц К S T Y ╞ X O Q ↑ · · · · **Enclosed Alphanumeric Supplement** 0. U+1F100 - 1F10F . U+1F110-1F11F (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F) (G) (H) (I) (J) (K) (L)(M)(N) (O) (P) U+1F120-1F12F (Q)(R) (S) (T) (U) (V)(W)(X) (Y) (Z) Variation Selectors Supplement U+E0030 - E003F U+E0060 - E006F .

Table 10.1: Encoded Glyphs in Junicode, cont.

```
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 A B C D E F
U+E0070-E007F • • • • •
```

Supplementary Private Use Area-A

| U+F0000 - F000F | A | ą | Ą | \overline{c} | c | Ⴆ | δ | ď | $\overline{\mathbf{d}}$ | Ĕ | ¢ | f | ī | j | ī | ľ |
|------------------------------------|-------------------------|---|---|----------------|---|---|---|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|----|---|---|---|---|
| U+F0010 - F001F | $\overline{\mathbf{m}}$ | Ø | Ø | Ø | Ø | q | ş | $\overline{\mathbf{v}}$ | $\overline{\mathbf{v}}$ | $\overline{\mathbf{X}}$ | $\overline{\mathbf{x}}$ | \$ | 7 | ζ | A | a |
| U+F0020 - F002F | ¢ | φ | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • | • |
| U+F0030 - F003F | 4 | Ð | c | ħ | * | 1 | | | | | 1 | | | | • | |
| 0+F0030 - F003F | Λ | D | C | D | ł | ł | Ç | Н | I | K | L | М | Ν | 0 | ľ | Q |
| U+F0030 - F003F U+F0040 - F004F | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | - |

Total number of glyphs shown from JunicodeVF-Roman.ttf: 3314

Because the package that produced the table above cannot handle Unicodes greater than U+FFFFF, these are listed separately below.

| 10A03D: S | 10A045: T | 10A007: œ | 10A028: b |
|------------------|------------------|--------------------|-------------|
| 10A047: U | 10A023: Ç | 10A032: P | 10A01B: ð |
| 10A026: H | 10A029: ђ | 10A050: <i>х</i> ́ | 10A051: |
| 10A036: Џ | 10A044: T | 10A033: ſ | 10A052: 70 |
| 10A03F: S | 10A03E: ŗ | 10A054: γ | 10A02D: ft |
| 10A048: U | 10A040: S | 10A003: J | 10A02E: ft |
| 10A04E: p | 10A031: ſ | 10A004: u | 10A02F: fp |
| 10A04A: V | 10A027: b | 10A005: a | 10A00A: bo |
| 10A04C: W | £ 10A053: و | 10A039: ŋ | 10A00B: œ |
| 10A008: <i>K</i> | 10A006: æ | 10A024: χ | 10A00E: fu |
| 10A02B: 1 | 10A021: ŗ | 10A00D: d | 10A00F: & |
| 10A04B: V | 10A02C: k | 10A01D: ზ | 10A010: ff: |
| 10A04D: 😾 | 10A037: N | 10A049: y | 10A011: E |
| 10A022: J | 10A04F: r | 10A025: b | 10A012: fm |
| | | | |

| 10A013: th | 10A03C: - | 10A05F: æ | 10A070: x |
|-------------|-----------------|------------|----------------------|
| 10A014: ඓ | 10A01E: כ | 10A060: z | 10A071: æ |
| 10A015: fp | 10A042: .,, | 10A061: ð | 10A073: [*] |
| 10A016: fr | 10A043: | 10A062: ŋ | 10A074: l |
| 10A017: Æ | 10A001: cc | 10A063: ct | 10A075: ਾਂ |
| 10A018: fx | 10A002: œ | 10A064: æ | 10А076: с |
| 10A034: ന്പ | 10A055: ð | 10A065: œ | 10A077: k |
| 10A035: դ | 10A056: p | 10A066: e | 10A078: g |
| 10A03A: pe | 10A057: æ | 10A067: ſ | 2 |
| 10A030։ քթ | 10A058: e | 10A068: J | 10A079: ŋ |
| 10A019: ðð | 10A059: ſp | 10A069: J | 10A07A: ð |
| 10A046: 듉 | 10A05A: ft | 10A06A: Ne | 10A07B: e |
| 10A00C: o | 10A05B: fp | 10А06В: р | 10A07C: a |
| 10A03B: · | 10A05C: ft | 10A06D: 5 | 10A07D: lł |
| 10A01F: Л | 10A05D: | 10A06E: p | 10A07E: e |
| 10A041: :, | 10A05E: g | 10A06F: f | 10A07F: _б |
| | - | | - |

Index of OpenType Features

| C2SC, 17 | CV22, 20 |
|----------------------------------|------------------------------|
| calt, 7, 24, 36, 41 , 77 | CV23, <mark>20</mark> |
| case, 18, 36, 68 | CV24, 20 |
| ccmp, 25 , 41 , 77 | CV25, 20 |
| cv01, 19 | cv26, <mark>20</mark> |
| cv02, 15, 19 , 89 | CV27, 20 |
| cvo3, 19 | cv28, 20 |
| cvo4, 19 | cv29, 20 |
| cvo5, 19 | cv30, 20 |
| cvo6, 19 | CV31, 20 |
| cvo7, 19 | CV32, 20 , 2 1 |
| cvo8, 19 | cv33, 20 |
| cvo9, 19 | cv34, 20 |
| cv10, 19 | cv35, 20 |
| CV11, 19 | cv36, <mark>20</mark> |
| CV12, 19 | CV37, 20 |
| CV13, 19 | cv38, 20 , 28 |
| CV14, 19 | cv39, 20 |
| cv15, 19 | cv40, 20 |
| cv16, 19 | CV41, 20 |
| CV17, 19 | CV42, 20 |
| cv18, 19, 21 | CV43, 21 |
| cv19, 19 | CV44, 21 |
| cv20, 19 | CV45, 21 |
| CV21, 20 | cv46, 21 |
| | |

| CV47, 21 | cv81, 36 , 66 |
|------------------------|----------------------------------|
| cv48, 21 | cv82, 34 |
| cv49, 21 | cv83, 34 , 69 |
| cv50, 21 | cv84, 21, 35 , 36, 37, 67 |
| CV51, 21 | cv85, <u>3</u> 8 |
| CV52, 21 | cv86, <u>3</u> 8 |
| CV53, 21 | cv87, 38 |
| cv54, 21 | cv88, <u>38</u> |
| cv55, 22 | cv89, <mark>38</mark> |
| cv56, 22 | cv90, <mark>38</mark> |
| cv57, 22 | cv91, 21, 22 |
| cv58, 22 | cv92, <mark>38</mark> |
| cv59, 22 | cv93, <mark>39</mark> |
| cv60, 22 | cv94, 39 |
| cv61, 22 | cv95, 39 |
| cv62, 7, 21, 22 | cv96, 39 |
| cv63, 22 , 65 | cv97, 39 |
| cv64, 22 | cv98, 39 |
| cv65, 22 | cv99, 35 |
| cv66, 22 | dlig 20 |
| cv67, 34 , 70 | dlig, 29 |
| cv68, 25 | dnom, 30 , 30 |
| cv69, 32 , 69 | frac, 30 , 30, 31 |
| cv70, 33 | |
| cv71, 33 | hlig, 21, 28 , 65, 69, 70 |
| cv72, 33 | kern, 41 , 77 |
| cv73, 33 | Keili, 41 , // |
| cv74, 33 | liga, 28, 41 , 77 |
| cv75, 33 | lnum, 30, 31 , 31 |
| cv76, 33 | loca, 22, 41 |
| cv77, 33 | locl, 77 |
| cv78, 34 | |
| cv79, 34 | mark, 41 , 77 |
| cv80, 34 , 68 | mkmk , 41, 77 |

114 INDEX OF OPENTYPE FEATURES

| nalt, 30 | sso7, 18, 24 , 88 |
|--------------------------------------|-----------------------------------|
| numr, 30 , 30 | sso8, 24 , 88 |
| | sso9, 31 , <mark>88</mark> |
| onum, 31 | ss10, 36 , 36, 37, 43, 88 |
| ornm, 8, 40 | ss12, 27 , 88 |
| pcap, 18 | ss13, 27 , 88 |
| pnum, 31 | ss14, 27 , 88 |
| | ss15, 27 , 88 |
| rlig, 30, 41 , 77 | ss16, 24 , 88 |
| rtlm, 27 | ss17, 28, 29 , 88 |
| salt, 24 | ss18, 32 , 88 |
| smcp, 17, 18, 36, 77 | ss19, 5, 26 , 89 |
| sso1, 4, 22, 88 | ss20, 37 , 89 |
| sso2, 3, 4, 22 , 28, 88 | subs, 32 |
| sso3, 26 , 88 | sups, 31 , 67 |
| ss04, 23 , 88 | tnum 20 21 |
| sso5, 23 , 88 | tnum, 30, 31 |
| sso6, 18, 22, 23 , 72, 73, 88 | zero, 31 |
| | |

This document was set in 12pt Junicode VF using the LuaETEX typesetting system with fontspec for font management. The font for code is Fira Mono. The sans serif font is Fira Sans. The source for the document, JunicodeManual.tex, is available at https://github.com/psb1558/Junicode-font.